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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Turnover
Jewellery retail
Other businesses

Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company

Earnings per share
- Basic
— Diluted

Dividend per share
- Interim
- Final

Total dividend per share for the year
Dividend payout ratio
Equity attributable to equity holders

of the Company
Equity per share
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* Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year ended *
31 December 2017 included a gain of HK$114 million on the disposal of
shares in Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

Turnover

Year
F1)
2018
2017
2016
2015

2014

2,117 16,633
2,048 16,093
2,346 19,069

2,313 19,246

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 Change
FERT FETT k)
17,130,414 14,516,326 +18%
1,675,928 2,117,055 -21%
18,806,342 16,633,381 +13%
1,012,257 876,418* +15%
149.4 cents i  129.5 cents 1 +15%
149.4 cents i  129.3 cents 1 +16%

15.0 cents 1l 9.0 cents Il

44.0 cents 1l 42.0 cents 1l

59.0 cents {li 51.0 cents Il

39% 39%
10,418,937 10,125,075 +3%
$15.4 T $15.0 ¢ +3%
HEZZT—+tF+ZA=+—HLHF
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

The strong recovery we had made in the first two quarters of 2018 was
tempered by much softer sales in the second half, when world events
made it clear that the trade war started by the USA was just the prelude
to a deep-seated conflict over global dominance in economic prowess,
technological advancement and political hegemony.

Profit before extraordinary gains for the Group improved by 29% to
HK$985 million. Lower rental expenses in Hong Kong and new shops in
the mainland contributed to the increase. In 2017, the Group made a
gain of HK$114 million on the disposal of part of its holding of shares
of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited. The growth would be
15% if the gain was included.

The trade war has changed the world order. As pressure is on nations
to take sides, alliances are being redrawn, friends and foes change role.
Even Brexit could take backstage to such upheavals.

It came as a bit of relief that, after a weak fourth quarter in 2018, sales
in the Lunar New Year period, in both Hong Kong and the mainland
was better than expected. Whether this presages better things to
come remains to be seen: the year is still fraught with uncertainties.
Nevertheless, we shall press on with our self-improvement: refining
product development, inventory control, manufacturing and logistical
skills, and polishing our brand image.

As always, | sincerely thank our shareholders, staff and customers for
their support and loyalty.

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 March 2019
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. CHAN Bing Fun, MB, BS, DMRT, aged 85, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He has been with the Group for over 45 years. Dr. CHAN
is a medical doctor in private practice in Hong Kong.

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing, BBS, MBE, JP, aged 72, is an
Executive Director of the Company, the Chairman of the Board, the
Group General Manager and a director of a number of subsidiaries
within the Group. Mr. CHOW is the cousin of Dr. Gerald CHOW King
Sing and Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing. He has been with the Group
for over 35 years, having been the Group General Manager and the
Chairman since 1998 and 2013 respectively. Mr. CHOW is a member
of the Board of Governors and a member of the College Council of the
UOW College Hong Kong. He is the Deputy Chairman of the Council of
the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. CHOW is appointed by the Home
Affairs Bureau’s to its Advisory Committee on Arts Development as the
Chairman as well as the Performing Arts Committee under the Board of
West Kowloon Cultural District Authority as a member. He was made an
Honorary Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts; and
he serves as a Director of the Board of The Hong Kong International
Film Festival Society Limited, which is a not-for-profit organization.
Mr. CHOW was a member of the Shunde People’s Political Consultative
Committee.

Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing, aged 62, is an Executive Director of
the Company. He is a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company and a director of a number of subsidiaries within the Group.
He has joined the Group for over 30 years. Dr. CHOW is the elder
brother of Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing and a cousin of Mr. Vincent
CHOW Wing Shing. For community services in Hong Kong, Dr. CHOW
is a panel member of the Public Affairs Forum under the Home Affairs
Bureau, HKSAR. He is also an expert member of the “Managing World
Cities” Programme of the Faculty of Social Sciences, University of Hong
Kong. He is a former member of the Central Policy Unit of the Hong
Kong Government (2009-2011) and a former council member of The
Better Hong Kong Foundation (2007-2015). Dr. CHOW also served in
the Central and Western District Fight Crime Committee (2009-2011).
He is an honorary member of the Hong Kong Fire Services Officers’
Mess and the founding President of the Central and Western District
Fire Safety Ambassador Honorary Presidents’ Association of the Hong
Kong Fire Services Department. Dr. CHOW has been a voting member
of the Po Leung Kuk Advisory Board since 1997. Dr. CHOW is also a
member of the Bauhinia Foundation Research Centre and the Hong
Kong Strategy.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel, MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising),
ACA, CTA(HK), FHKIoD, aged 65, was an Independent Non-executive
Director and the Secretary of the Company until September 2004. He
was re-designated as a Non-executive Director of the Company on
28 September 2004. Mr. TING is a member of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is an independent
non-executive director of seven other listed companies in Hong Kong,
namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd., Tongda Group Holdings
Limited, New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited, Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited, Texhong Textile Group Limited, Dongyue
Group Limited and China SCE Group Holdings Limited. Mr. TING is an
accountant in public practice and has more than 40 years of experience
in this field. Currently, he is a partner of Ting Ho Kwan & Chan,
Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam, GBS, OBE, JP, LL.B (Lond.) (Hons), aged 78, is
a Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 26 June 1995 and re-designated as a
Non-executive Director in September 2004. Mr. CHUNG is a solicitor
in practice. Apart from being a China-appointed Attesting Officer and
a Hong Kong Notary Public, he is also an independent non-executive
director of two other listed companies in Hong Kong, namely S E A
Holdings Limited and Datronix Holdings Limited.

Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing, aged 61, is an Executive Director
of the Company, the Group Deputy General Manager and a director
of a number of subsidiaries within the Group. Mr. CHOW has been
with the Group since 1984 (except 1988 to 1992) and has become
the Group Deputy General Manager since 1995. Mr. CHOW is the
younger brother of Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and a cousin of
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing. He has experience in real estate in
Canada. Mr. CHOW's key responsibilities include the marketing and staff
learning and development of the Group's jewellery business in Greater
China. He is a member of the Hong Kong Tourism Board, a Vice-chairman
of the Quality Tourism Services Association, an Executive Committee
member of the Hong Kong Retail Management Association, a member
of the Jewellery Industry Training Advisory Committee under the
Qualifications Framework of the Education Bureau and an Executive
Committee member of the Diamond Federation of Hong Kong, China
Limited. Mr. CHOW was a member of the Guangzhou Municipal
Tianhe District People’s Political Consultative Committee.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LEE Ka Lun, FCCA, aged 64, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, and the chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company on 28 September 2004. Mr. LEE is an accountant by
profession and has over 25 years of experience in banking and auditing.
He was the Regional Deputy Chief Executive of Lloyds TSB Bank plc and
Regional Director — Finance and Operation of Lloyds TSB's operations
in Asia for over 15 years and has extensive experience in corporate
banking, private banking, treasury, operations, IT developments and
general management. He is also a responsible officer approved by the
Securities and Futures Commission and serves as an independent non-
executive director of five other listed companies in Hong Kong, namely
Yuexiu Property Company Limited, Chong Hing Bank Limited (“Chong
Hing"”), Medicskin Holdings Limited, Ever Harvest Group Holdings Limited
and Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited. Mr. LEE is also an independent
non-executive director of Yuexiu Financial Holdings Limited, a holding
company of Chong Hing.

Dr. LO King Man, SBS, BBS, MBE, JP, FRSA, FHKU, UFHKPU, FHKAPA,
DocHKAPA, aged 81, is an Independent Non-executive Director, a
member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. He was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 28 September
2004. Following a career in higher education management, Dr. LO held
appointments as Director of the Hong Kong Academy for Performing
Arts during 1993 to 2004 and as Principal of the Canton International
Summer Music Academy established by the Guangdong Government
during 2004 to 2009. His public service included vice-chairmanship of
the former Urban Council and membership of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Basic Law Consultative Committee, Examination
Authority, Broadcasting Authority, Vocational Training Council and Arts
Development Council. He has served on governing boards of numerous
educational and cultural organizations. Dr. LO is the Chairman of the
Hong Kong Arts Festival Programme Committee and the Vice Chairman
of the Hong Kong Arts Festival Executive Committee. Dr. LO is also the
Director-general of Musica Viva Limited. He is an independent non-
executive director of another listed company in Hong Kong - Sing Lee
Software (Group) Limited.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung, OBE, JP, aged 73, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 17 December 2012. Mr. LAU is a qualified
electrical engineer, and a member of The Institution of Engineering
and Technology, United Kingdom, and with a postgraduate degree of
Master of Science from the University of Surrey, England. He has more
than 30 years of management and marketing experience, particularly in
the textile and apparel field. Mr. LAU is the managing director of The
Polyfabrics (Hong Kong) Limited. He was appointed as a member to
vice-chairman of the Urban Council from 1978 to 1995. Mr. LAU was
also appointed as a member of various committees, boards, and panels,
namely the Textiles Advisory Board, the Trade and Industry Advisory
Board, the Administrative Appeals Board, the Air Transport Licensing
Authority, the Appeal Board Panel (Town Planning), the Board of Review
(Inland Revenue Ordinance), the Broadcasting Authority, etc. He also
served as a Council Member of the University of Hong Kong from 1985
to 1997. Mr. LAU is active in several charitable organizations and in
Chiu Chow community associations.

Mr. Theodore TAM Shing Chi, CPA (Aust.), CPA, MBA, aged 60, is
the Company Secretary of the Company and the Group’s Chief Financial
Officer. Mr. TAM joined the Group in 2009 and has over 35 years of
experience in finance, accounting and management. Mr. TAM is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and
the CPA Australia. He holds a Master Degree in Business Administration
from the Melbourne University, Australia. Mr. TAM’s experiences
covered a variety of industries including auditing, business advisory
services with one of the Big Four accounting firms in Hong Kong as well
as the Regional Chief Financial Officer of one of the top three marketing
communication services companies in Asia Pacific.

Ms. Susan MAK Wei Yee, FCCA, CPA, aged 62, is the General
Manager of Chow Sang Sang Securities Limited. Ms. MAK joined the
Group in 2001 and has over 40 years of experience in accounting,
banking and finance. Ms. MAK is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LAU Hak Bun, aged 66, is the Group’s General Manager — Retail
Operations (Greater China). Mr. LAU has been with the Group for over
40 years. He is well-experienced in sales management. Apart from
managing the retail operations in Hong Kong and Macau, Mr. LAU is
also responsible for the development of operational strategies in Greater
China. He also serves as the Vice-chairman of the Hong Kong Jewellers’
& Goldsmiths’ Association Ltd. and the Chairman of The Kowloon Pearls,
Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association.

Ms. Sandra SHEK Tsang, aged 50, is the Group’s Brand Director.
Ms. SHEK is responsible for overseeing the development of the Group’s
branding, product development, brand marketing, customer service and
corporate gift business. Prior to joining the Group in 2013, she was
the General Manager of various international jewellery and accessories
brands. Ms. SHEK has over 20 years of sales operation and marketing
experience in Greater China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview

Worries over the Sino-US trade war buffeted the global business outlook
as well as consumer sentiments. As tension rose, equity markets turned
volatile and so did exchange rates. Renminbi dropped significantly
against the US dollar in the second and third quarters of 2018, when
both countries were seemingly dropping negotiations.

Gold price experienced a moderate spike in the third quarter, but gold
jewellery sales for the quarter registered double digit same store sales
growth (“SSSG"). However, the momentum soon frizzled, consumers
became more cautious and SSSG in the fourth quarter saw low to
negative growth in the festive season.

The Group's turnover for 2018 increased 13% to HK$18,806 million.
Overall profit attributable to equity holders increased by 15% to
HK$1,012 million. In 2017, there was an extraordinary gain of HK$114
million resulting from the disposal of part of the long-term holding of
shares of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited. In 2018, there
was a gain of HK$27 million generated from the sale of investment
holding in an associate. Excluding these gains from both years, the
adjusted profit attributable to equity holders in 2018 would be HK$985
million, a 29% improvement year-on-year.

Jewellery Retail

Jewellery retail accounted for 91% of the Group's turnover. Compared
to 2017, turnover grew 18% and operating profit increased by 34% to
HK$1,205 million.

Hong Kong and Macau

Sales registered a growth of 20%. SSSG for the year was 18% which
was 4 percentage points lower than TH mainly due to the softening in
the fourth quarter.

With a stronger base in 2H 2017, SSSG for gem-set jewellery was lower
in 2H 2018 than in 1H. Thus the SSSG for gem-set jewellery, for the
whole year, was at 21%.

During the year, one Chow Sang Sang shop and five watch shop-in-shop
branches were closed. The one remaining watch shop-in-shop ceased
operation in February 2019 as well. Such consolidation will strengthen
the inventory and supply to the 11 watch boutiques. One new Chow
Sang Sang shop was set up in Yuen Long.

In Macau, a new shop was set up in L'Arc Hotel.

Total shop rental expenditure was HK$87 million less than last year. For
lease renewals, rental adjustment ranged from +12% to -40%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Jewellery Retail (continued)

Hong Kong and Macau (continued)
Capital expenditure amounted to HK$54 million, most of which was for
new shops and refitting of shops.

Mainland China
Total turnover rose 16% year-on-year to HK$9,327 million. In Renminbi
terms, total turnover rose by 13% and SSSG was +3%.

Gold sales was stronger, with SSSG at +8%. Jewellery SSSG was -7% in
value. In term of volume, that is, the number of pieces sold, the SSSG
was +7%.

Online sales continued to grow and accounted for about 15% of our
China sales. Gold products dominated the sales mix.

At the end of the year, there were a total of 506 shops located in 125
cities. New shops numbered 105, and there were 21 closings. Fifty-five
of the new shops were set up in shopping malls. Number of shops by
brand was as below:

Brand e

Chow Sang Sang EEE
MINTYGREEN MINTYGREEN
EMPHASIS EMPHASIS

With new openings and the refitting of 67 stores, together with the on-
going construction of the new automated warehouse in Shunde, capital
expenditure came to RMB232 million.

Taiwan
The retail sector remained weak. There was no significant change in the
results from the prior year.

Wholesale of Precious Metals
Turnover decreased 21% to HK$1,603 million. Operating profit dropped
by 4% to HK$14 million.

Securities and Futures Broking

Riding on the momentum from 2H 2017, market sentiment was strong
for TH in 2018. However, local investors grew wary entering into 2H.
Overall, our turnover decreased by 3% from 2017 and income from
commission stayed flat.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Investments

Properties

The Group holds various properties that are being used for offices, shops
and factories. Rental income from investment properties amounted to
HK$12 million, which is less than 1% of the Group's turnover.

Shares in Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEC")

As at 1 January 2018, the Group had 3,561,800 shares of HKEC,
received as distribution from the reorganization of the then exchanges
in year 2000. The amount remained unchanged throughout the year
under review.

Finance

Financial Position and Liquidity

The Group generates strong recurring cashflow from its jewellery
business and continues to enjoy a solid cash position. As at 31
December 2018, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of HK$1,303
million (2017: HK$1,200 million). Cash is mostly held in Renminbi or
Hong Kong dollar and deposited in leading banks with maturity dates
falling within one year.

The Group was well supported by over HK$6,090 million in banking
facilities including bank borrowings and bullion loans, out of which
HK$733 million are committed facilities. As at 31 December 2018, the
total unutilized banking facilities amounted to HK$4,080 million (2017:
HK$4,128 million).

As at 31 December 2018, total bank borrowings and bullion loans
amounted to HK$966 million and HK$970 million respectively, most of
which were unsecured in accordance with the Group’s policy. All the
loans are repayable within three years. The gearing ratio was 18.6%,
based on total bank borrowings and bullion loans of HK$1,936 million
as a percentage of total equity of HK$10,419 million. The current ratio
of the Group was 4.

The Group manages risk of credit cost and availability by several
means: cultivating relationship with a large number of lending banks;
diversifying the funding sources by engaging a number of local and
overseas banks; putting some loans on a term basis; and fixing interest
costs on loans as appropriate. The Group had 21% of its bank loans
at fixed rates as at 31 December 2018, decreased from 24% as at 31
December 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance (continued)

Financial Position and Liquidity (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, outstanding derivatives on the books were
mainly bullion contracts for hedging the bullion price exposure.
Management monitors the hedging policy closely and the hedging level
of the Group is approximately 40% of the total gold inventories.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group's assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses are mostly
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi and US dollar. As such, the
risk is easily manageable and slight. Simultaneously, the Group maintains
an appropriate level of foreign currency borrowings for natural hedge
and cross currency swaps, to mitigate foreign exchange exposure. As at
31 December 2018, the borrowing denominated in New Taiwan dollar
amounted to NT$126 million.

Charge on Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, listed equity investments of HK$634 million
(2017: HK$719 million) were pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

Human Resources

The Group maintains its long-established performance-based
remuneration policies with a discretionary annual performance bonus.
Training has been provided to new and existing staff at a pace
commensurate with the expansion of the networks in all territories.

A share option scheme is in place to provide incentives or rewards to
eligible participants for their contribution to the Group and enabling the
Group to recruit and retain valuable employees. Details of the scheme
are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the total number of employees of the Group
was 9,605. There were 1,442 staff in Hong Kong and 7,912 staff in the
mainland. During the year ended 31 December 2018, total staff costs
(excluding Directors’ emoluments) amounted to HK$1,516 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Outlook

A so-so holiday season at the end of 2018 was overtaken by a more
positive Lunar New Year both in Hong Kong and the mainland. Whether
this upbeat carries through the rest of 2019 is uncertain, given the
contest between China and the USA over trade and other issues.

In Hong Kong, a steady increase in the number of tourist visits renders
support to the retail sector, but so far, spending has been leaning
toward lower-priced items. On the other hand, with labour cost standing
firm and rental expenses already adjusted down, further improvement
in performance will have to come from innovative products and higher
operating efficiency.

On the mainland, domestic consumption expansion is central to the
government’s strategy. With a larger base and challenges from within
and without, the rate of growth may be slower but still positive. As the
economy continues to expand, there are room for growth via product,
services and brand differentiation. Our new store brand — MINTYGREEN
will focus on enticing new and younger customers.

As our network of stores on the mainland can still be improved by
deeper penetration of certain cities, by having more stores in shopping
malls, by segmentation via the new brand MINTYGREEN, we plan to
open 60 new stores in the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are active in the field of the manufacture and retail of
jewellery, wholesale of precious metals, and securities and futures
broking. Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 46 to the financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the
Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 56 to 180.

An interim dividend of HK15.0 cents per ordinary share was paid on
21 September 2018. The Directors recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK44.0 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on 11
June 2019.

Business Review

A fair review and the outlook of the Group’s business are provided in
the Chairman’s Message on page 3 and the Management Discussion
and Analysis on pages 9 to 13 of this annual report. No important event
affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the financial year
under review. Certain financial key performance indicators are provided
in the Financial Highlights on page 2.

An account of the Group's key relationships with its employees,
customers and suppliers as well as the principal risks and uncertainties
of the Group are shown in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
38 to 48.

In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, and compliance with relevant laws and regulations are
included in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages
24 to 37.

The above review constitutes part of this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS BEEERE

Five-year Financial Summary LEMBREE

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non- TXEIAERBELAMRFE2ER
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as WEE BE BERFEEBRRE#EZZ
extracted from the audited financial statements and reclassified as BE(NRSECERVBRENIRELE
appropriate, is set out below. This summary does not form part of the AEFHAR) o WREW MEREEZIB
audited financial statements. WEZ—BD -

Results
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t—-HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET FET THET FET

Turnover ELL

Jewellery retail KETE 17,130,414 14,516,326 14,045,322 16,723,183 16,932,576

Other businesses Hip %% 1,675,928 2,117,055 2,047,215 2,346,074 2,313,382

18,806,342 16,633,381 16,092,537 19,069,257 19,245,958

Operating profit Eovingl 1,322,406 1,132,949 996,055 1,367,603 1,360,090
Share of profits of i NG|

associates, net wmAl o FE 245 4,550 4,207 454 2,211
Profit before tax B A& A 1,322,651 1,137,499 1,000,262 1,368,057 1,362,301
Income tax FriS# (310,394)  (261,081)  (258,086)  (237,737)  (276,907)
Profit for the year FREF 1,012,257 876,418 742,176 1,130,320 1,085,394
Profit attributable to: JEMEm A

Equity holders of the AN Eid

Company BEA 1,012,257 876,418 742,176 1,130,320 1,082,324
Non-controlling interests  FEIEAR AL SRS - - - - 3,070

1,012,257 876,418 742,176 1,130,320 1,085,394

Assets and Liabilities
BEERARE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET THET THET FHET

Total assets BEE 13,838,036 13,670,115 12,201,400 12,011,365 12,242,409
Total liabilities wafE (3,419,099) (3,545,040) (3,163,502) (2,933,450) (3,595,676)

10,418,937 10,125,075 9,037,898 9,077,915 8,646,733
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Charitable Contributions

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$2,020,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes
14 and 15 to the financial statements, respectively. Further details of
the Group's properties are set out on pages 181 to 184 of this annual
report.

Share Capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Save for the share option scheme as set out below, there was no equity-
linked agreement entered into by the Company during the year.

Share Option Scheme

A summary of the Company’s share option scheme and details of
movements in share options of the Company during the year are set out
in note 35 to the financial statements.

Emolument Policy

The long-established performance-based emolument policy for
the employees of the Group operates on the basis of rewarding
performance, with appropriate consideration on experience and
prevailing industry practices.

The Company determined the emoluments of the Directors on the
basis of the comparable companies, time commitment, responsibilities,
employment conditions, the Board’s corporate goals and objectives,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid
employees of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 10 respectively to
the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Dividend Policy

To comply with code provision E.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code
which was implemented on 1 January 2019, the Company adopted a
dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) in January 2019. The Dividend
Policy sets out the factors in determining the dividend payment of the
Company as well as the procedures on declaring and recommending the
dividend payments. The Company intends to distribute between 30% to
40% of the Group's annual consolidated net profits as dividends to its
shareholders. The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate
from time to time.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, amounted to HK$1,884,080,000, of
which HK$298,071,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for the
year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year. Purchases
from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 56% of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 29%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their close associates
or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group's five largest suppliers.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEERBEBEERAERADA

BE BORHEXARTZLTES

FRARRAREEMMBARGRERE -
BOSHEEMARRZ LHESR -

REBER

BET_T-NE-—A—HEBRNLES
JASFRIEEANSESFAEN  ARFRZE
—NE—ARMBEEBR([BREBK]) °
BEBREIETARNARERENE
2 URERNEZRERENERF - &
REBREALEEFELGRAFHEFN30%E
A% EERBDRTAARIBRR - EFE
BEERERRATRBEUR -

oDk
RZEBE-NF+-_A=+—8  x2QAR
BEEE-NN—"FRaAEXFEZ
8] 5 R % 15 %% 1,884,080,00078 ¢ » Hb
298,071,000 8 Tt Rk 3 AR EFE 2 K H
[ 8 o

FTERFRHER

RABESF  AKRBRAKREFPMIGHER
ERFREERIN30% -  AEBELAH
[EREATIERBRBIE 2 FRREES6E% &
FEERARERMEREEZ29% °

BEARAESAHTMETHEA LR
EHIRR(REZSMAEFARR S HTR
KE5% < BR)RAKERAHEREH
A ERES -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
2018 F R



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing

Non-executive Directors:

Dr. CHAN Bing Fun*

Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam

Mr. LEE Ka Lun*

Dr. LO King Man*

Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung*

* Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing, Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel and
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung shall retire by rotation at the 2019
annual general meeting (the “2019 AGM") pursuant to the Company’s
bye-laws. All the retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the 2019 AGM.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2019 AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management up to the
date of this report are set out on pages 4 to 8 of this annual report.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or
Contracts

Save as detailed in note 40 to the financial statements, no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or his connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year.

Management Contracts

Save for employment contracts, no other contracts relating to the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or in existence during
the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Company's bye-laws and subject to the provisions of the
statutes, every Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage
for the Directors and officers of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2018, the interests of the Directors in the issued
share capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Long positions:

BEFRE

BREARRERAIEFTRERIGEX B
AT AATBRESREMSABERR
FRARERTREIEEMEBABRMR
RRELZAABRRREL  BRALA
AEETRNAEE ARAEREZFRA
SESABELRHABEZEZRSRBE
BEERR -

EERkOzEs

RZE-NE+ZA=+—H K&5=R
ARRIRERABEZE(TEA(EARDBE
ERIEXVE) B BEITRAF - H(FBEHFK
HEKRAIEI2ERARRETRE LA
AR - KR EMBEITAZESRHTT
EFEHRHHRETR(ZESFR ) KER
ARRIRBEBBARSGARDA([BX
BTl AR BRI

#a:

Number of shares held

KR¥E

Approximate
Personal Family Corporate Trustee percentage of
interest interest interest interest Total  shareholding
BRESN
Name of Directors BEnS BARE FEREH NEER AN $2 &t 5Pl
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing kA4 - - - 136,271,595 " 136,271,595 20.12
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing EHKEE 19,711,680 70398 ¥ 56,244,316 7 - 76,026,394 11.22
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing BRmEL 28,681,104 52,8007 14244316 % 32,616,000 ? 75,594,220 11.16
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun I 1,320,000 - - - 1,320,000 0.19

Note: Wi -
0@ Pplease refer to the notes in the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’ e BB RIRR R EMA LR K

and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”. MRt 2 e | —ER 2 M EE -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the B EXHEBEN RZZE—NF+ A

Directors had registered an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2018, the interests of those persons in the issued
share capital of the Company as recorded in the register of interests
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

ESREROAES 2 ER

ADRRFRETMAEEBERTINES
FEBBZEBRFYFLABEARLDE
B sk B 21 M ok 2 R - SR FTRE
EAZEEN - Sl AR A S E A8
DEARHBTESTAREMAMEAER
BE%FER -

TERFRREMBATARG RIEERD 2
B

R-ZE-NF+-A=+—8 " BE(ES
REEEHINE3361& - RARBBETFREZ
BantMesABEERARIEBITRAA
TZRERIT

Long positions: o
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name Capacity shares held shareholding
KRERL
=L 4 EREA BAt
Everwin Company Limited Beneficial Owner 120,000,000 " 17.71
EERAA
Schroders Plc Investment Manager 75,197,447 © 11.10
REEBA
Speed Star Holdings Limited Beneficial Owner and Interest of 56,244,316 ¥ 8.30
Controlled Corporation
BB ARREH QA #m
Happy Family Limited Beneficial Owner 53,909,932 7.96
RERERR AT EERAA
The Capital Group Companies, Inc. Interest of Controlled Corporations 46,817,806 6.91
bt NI -
Happy Inc. Beneficial Owner 41,534,484 6.13

BB A
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (continued)

Notes:

)

136,271,595 shares in the Company were held by a discretionary trust of
which Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing was the beneficiary. The trustee of
the trust was Cititrust (Cayman) Limited, which held the interests in the
Company through the following companies:

Name of companies
REJETE

Everwin Company Limited
Golden Court Limited

Accordingly, Cititrust (Cayman) Limited was deemed to have interests in
the 136,271,595 shares. Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing was deemed to
have interests in the 136,271,595 shares in the Company.

70,398 shares and 52,800 shares in the Company were held by the
respective spouse of Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and Mr. Winston CHOW
Wun Sing.

42,000,000 shares in the Company were held by Speed Star Holdings
Limited, a company beneficially owned by Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
and his spouse.

14,244,316 shares in the Company were held by Eimoling Company
Limited, in which Speed Star Holdings Limited and Mr. Winston CHOW
Wun Sing owned 44.5% of the equity interest respectively.

32,616,000 shares in the Company were held by CWS Holdings Limited, a
company beneficially owned by a discretionary trust of which Mr. Winston
CHOW Wun Sing was the founder and one of the beneficiaries. The trustee
of the trust was UBS TC (Jersey) Ltd. and, accordingly, it was deemed to
have interests in the 32,616,000 shares in the Company.

Accordingly, Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and his spouse were deemed
to have interests in the 56,314,714 shares and 75,955,996 shares in the
Company respectively. Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing and his spouse were
deemed to have interests in the 46,913,116 shares and 75,541,420 shares
in the Company respectively.

Schroders Plc through its subsidiaries, namely Schroder Investment
Management (Hong Kong) Limited, Schroder Investment Management
(Singapore) Ltd and Schroder Investment Management Limited, held
33,190,447 shares, 37,499,000 shares and 4,508,000 shares in the
Company respectively, and was accordingly deemed to be interested in
the respective shares held by the aforesaid companies.
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Wizt -
M

)

—BEEERFAARA 136,271,595

Bin - BXKEERZETLZIZREA

i Cititrust (Cayman) Limited &% {E552

EﬂA'E%@TWQﬂ%E$QﬂZ%
fm N

No. of shares held

FRE A

120,000,000
16,271,595

R, » Cititrust (Cayman) Limited #48 /4
136,271,595 Bk {7 4k o FKATE
WAR BB ARAF 136,271,595 AR 1 1

Ny
ZS o
m

ABREERAAKAESE ZEBD 5
AR E 70,398 % 1 52,800 Ak n °

Speed Star Holdings Limited #7872 ]
42,000,000 Bt + %A Bl b EHAKE
RERBERHES

Eimoling Company Limited# & & 22 ]
14,244,316 &% 1% * Speed Star Holdings
Limited X B A K E £ D B EEZ R A
44.5% 2 XA

CWS Holdings Limited# A& & 2 &
32,616,000l - Z A ElH—IBDHE
ERERES  BaKEERZETLIK
VAREF—ZZEA o UBS TC (Jersey)
Ltd. BRZERZEREA AL BREA%ER
RA7] 32,616,000 AR S o

Hit - ABKEERERBSBERE
B AR AT 56,314,714 % &% 75,955,996
it Ezm e AnicEREERD
Bl AR BB AR 146,913,116 % &
75,541,420 IR R D HE S o

Schroders Plci# 8 £ [t & A & Schroder
Investment Management (Hong
Kong) Limited * Schroder Investment
Management (Singapore) Ltd [ Schroder
Investment Management Limited % Bl
A N2 A)33,190,447 f% ~ 37,499,000 %
54,508,000 ity - B #R AR -
MRARIEERHE 2RI
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(4)

The Capital Group Companies, Inc. through its subsidiaries, namely Capital
Guardian Trust Company, Capital International Sarl and Capital Research
and Management Company, held 689,700 shares, 4,085,700 shares and
42,042,406 shares in the Company respectively, and was accordingly
deemed to be interested in the respective shares held by the aforesaid
companies.

53,909,932 shares in the Company were held by Happy Family Limited, in
which the late Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling had a 20% equity interest.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, no person, other than
the Directors of the Company whose interests are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares” above, had registered an interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

Connected Transactions

During the year, the Group did not have any connected transactions
which were subject to the reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules throughout the year and
up to the date of this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Auditor

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 have
been audited by Ernst & Young, who will retire, and being eligible, offer
itself for re-appointment at the 2019 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 March 2019
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group complies with the Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Reporting Guide published by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “HKEx ESG Guide”). The main purpose of this report
is to disclose the Group's current management approach, strategies
and performance in social and environmental responsibility as well as its
vision for sustainable development strategies.

This report covers our performance for the year ended 31 December
2018. Unless specified otherwise, all policies and management systems
described in this report refer to our jewellery retail and manufacturing
operations in Greater China. ESG performance indicators reported in
this report cover our main operations in Hong Kong and Mainland China
unless specified otherwise.

The Board is responsible for the Group's ESG strategy and reporting
while our management is responsible for monitoring and managing ESG-
related risks as well as the effectiveness of our ESG risk management
and internal control systems.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group has established various means to communicate with internal
and external stakeholders comprising employees, customers, investors,
suppliers, trade associations, institutions and charitable organizations
that we support. The channels used to communicate with these
stakeholders include online questionnaires, interviews, feedback forms
and courtesy visits.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Materiality Analysis

The Group reviews the feedback from stakeholders periodically to
evaluate the materiality of the ESG topics in an ongoing manner. It has
conducted a focused stakeholder engagement exercise, with the purpose
to identify material aspects within different subject areas. Stakeholders
were invited to assess various ESG aspects with reference to the HKEx
ESG Guide. The issues deemed material were reviewed and endorsed by
the Board and management for their relative materiality and priorities.

The result of the exercise prioritized ESG subject areas and aspects in

EZ 10

AR B E R T 0 B O IR R A R AT A
B HekERZBMNERE - ~&HE
BERSHEETTEHRBINAEERY B
ERTRNBEFBNRAERNZE -
RPRBROERBERMRS e K
BAESINERE HELEAEELE
fELAtE - HEFSREEERN RER
FREZENBERUENELR -

IMERBRBEEBERFBRIAEERR

the following order:

EENERE HekELRER

Subject Area
TEHE

Most Material Aspects within the Subject Area
ETBRAEENZE

Social — Operating practices
e - £ETh

Social - Employment and labour practices
e - ERRSITH

Environmental
B

Social - Community
e -HE

Ensuring service and product quality
RRRERERE R
Protecting customer data

REEFER

Providing a safe working environment
Rt 2 TIERR
Ensuring employees’ occupational safety and health

EREENBEL2EEZR

Energy and wastewater management
R RSKER

Contribution to community development

HRERNER

While we strive for overall balance in the disclosure of the Group's ESG
initiatives and performance, emphasis will be placed on issues which are
considered more material to our business.

Operating Practices

The Group is committed to ensuring that its products are of premium
quality, obtained through verified and ethical sources and that processes
are well controlled to prevent the occurrences of corrupt practice.
During the year, we were not aware of any incidents of non-compliance
with laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group,
concerning health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress, as
well as prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEERBEBEERAERADA

BPBRERBEARERE HERER
ERERRBERFENRE  SSHRK
BRERMZEAFELEREL -

ZETA

ASEFNRERELEER  HEMVAR
BRENAERERE  BRAXEEE
BoPERRIERETR R BA
RUEERERGOEFREZE  BS &
ERABEEMBHOTE - BB LE
BERR - R ARFALRE - RALTA
FHAREREARENTRERNER
MBI E -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
2018 F R



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Operating Practices (continued)

Product Responsibility and Service Quality

The Group has systems in place to ensure that all products marketed
are monitored for (a) the fineness and veracity of materials; (b) the
presence of toxic elements as prescribed by national standards; and (c)
conformance with our defined levels of workmanship.

Management protocols in place define the testing methods and
sampling procedures for different products and materials. Tests using
both surface spectrometric and destructive methods are done by the
Group's externally-accredited laboratories located in Hong Kong and
Shunde. Workmanship inspection is conducted at several stages on all
products as they go through the supply chain. With the stringent quality
assurance process, there were no records of products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons during the year (2017:
Nil).

Management has established policies to ensure that the advertising and
labelling of our products are in line with applicable laws and regulations,
such as the Trade Descriptions Ordinance in Hong Kong and Advertising
Law of the People’s Republic of China. Moreover, in conformance with
the Group's Code of Conduct, management has systems in place to
ensure that intellectual property rights, both our own and of other
parties, are observed and respected in our business dealings. While
complying with the Trade Marks Ordinance in Hong Kong, we also
adhered to the Trademark Law and Patent Law of the People’s Republic
of China.

The Group respects the interests of our customers in the context of
applicable legal provisions, including the Sale of Goods Ordinance in
Hong Kong, Product Quality Law and Protecting Consumers’ Rights
and Interests Law of the People’s Republic of China. Should there be
enquiries or complaints, the Group has a dedicated team of customer
relations personnel for quick response. Customers can reach the team
via service hotlines and social media platforms including Facebook,
Weibo, WeChat, QQ and LIVE CHAT. In addition, all shop staff are
trained to handle queries on products, maintenance and repair. All
customer correspondence through the proper channels are logged
and documented. 78 product- and service-related complaints were
received during the year as compared to 114 in 2017. Furthermore,
in recognition of our efforts in providing quality services in Mainland
China, the Gemmological Association of Fujian named us “Excellent
Enterprise in Brand Service” in 2018.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Operating Practices (continued)

Customer Data Protection

The Group maintains database of customers. We have policies and
procedures that ensure compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations such as the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance in Hong
Kong and General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) of the European
Union, which govern the collection, use, retention and protection
of the customers’ personal data. We collect and maintain a minimal
amount of their personal details in the database. The database is well
protected both on policy and technological terms. Even within the
Group, customer data are released strictly on a need-to-know basis,
and the same will not be released without prior consent to outside
parties or even to units within the Group that are not the original data
collectors. Relevant details of our privacy policy are readily available on
our website.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has comprehensive procurement and supply chain
management policies which are benchmarked against the highest best
practice principles in the trade. During the supplier selection process,
we not only consider the infrastructure, production capacity and market
reputation of the potential suppliers, but also their commitment in
compliance with legal, ethical and social aspects, such as prevention
of child and forced labour, workplace health and safety, mitigation of
environmental impacts.

Diamond suppliers are required to provide documented proof of the
ethical provenance of their goods. All materials and finished goods are
monitored as stated under the paragraph “Product Responsibility and
Service Quality” and only those that passed the tests are accepted.
Through prioritizing suppliers with demonstrated management and
high performance on ESG aspects, relevant risks arisen from the supply
chain are mitigated and managed. Suppliers of substandard goods
and materials are subject to a system of warnings, temporary or even
permanent blocking of orders. Suppliers are similarly monitored for the
timeliness of their delivery.

Where possible, the Group maintains relationships with multiple
suppliers in order to avoid the risks inherent in over-reliance on
suppliers. The Group also supports fair competition when finding
potential suppliers by observing relevant laws and regulations such
as the Competition Ordinance in Hong Kong and Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Bid Invitation and Bidding. This commitment is
communicated with the procurement staff in the procurement and
supply chain management policies.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Operating Practices (continued)

Anti-corruption

In compliance with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong
and Interim Provisions on Prohibition of Commercial Bribery in Mainland
China, our employees are required to comply with the rules stipulated
in our Employee Handbook (the “Handbook”), which provide for
definitions of permissible and impermissible giving and receiving of
advantages and gifts. Employees are required to report receipts and
subsequent disposal of gifts. Our employees are also required to follow
the Group’s Code of Conduct, which defines appropriate methods in
handling conflict of interests. In addition, the Group has implemented
the Prevention of Money Laundering Policy, which spells out the
principles, work and reporting mechanism in relation to criminal activity.

The management has arranged trainings to employees on their expected
conduct upon the identification of potential incidents of corruption
or bribery within the workplace. Under the whistleblowing policy,
employees are protected if they submit signed reports on suspicious
activities. During the year, there were no reported cases of corruption
(2017: Nil).

Employment and Labour Practices

Training and development programs, employee welfare and relationship
building initiatives have always been important to our business.

Employment

The Group observes the Hong Kong's Sex Discrimination Ordinance,
Disability Discrimination Ordinance, Family Status Discrimination
Ordinance, Race Discrimination Ordinance and Mainland China’s
Employment Promotion Law. Being an equal opportunities employer,
the Group and its management embrace diversity in its workforce and
ensure that the employees are not discriminated against due to their
ethnicity, age, gender, marital status, religion or belief.

Adhering to the Employment of Children Regulations in Hong Kong,
Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labour and Law of the People's
Republic of China on the Protection of Minors, the use of child labour is
strictly prohibited by the Group. Human Resources Department verifies
candidates’ identity through checking their identity documents as well
as relevant certificates of proof. Similarly, forced labour is also not
tolerated.

On the other hand, the Group requires employees to comply with
its Code of Conduct as defined in the Handbook. The Handbook is
available on the Group's intranet.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Employee Welfare

Beyond the requirements stipulated in the applicable laws and
regulations, including the Hong Kong's Employment Ordinance,
Minimum Wage Ordinance, as well as Mainland China’s Labour Law,
Social Insurance Law and Provisions on Minimum Wages, the Group
maintains an open and standardized framework for employment, salary
review, and promotion. Apart from basic salary, employees are rewarded
with performance-based bonuses. Benefits such as paid vacation leave
and insurance are commensurate with, or better than local practices
and legal requirements. Relevant policies are fully communicated to the
employees through the Handbook.

To strengthen overall communication across various departments and
ranks within the Group, the Group has introduced a mobile application
"CChat”. The application allows employees to receive updates on
corporate and training information, as well as personal exchanges.

Management level of the Group regularly reviews employees’ goal
alignment, job performance and working conditions to ensure that the
employees’ personal development and job performance improvement
are in alignment with business priorities. Grievance procedures are in
place for the protection of employees. Personal details of employees are
strictly protected.

Work Safety and Health

The Group adheres to the principle of “safety and prevention first”
to create an accident-free working environment for the employees.
As such, the Group has established an Occupational Safety and
Health and Environmental Protection Affairs Committee to ensure the
employees have a safe and healthy working environment. Safety risks
in various facilities have been identified, assessed and managed with
corresponding preventive measures. Reqular safety inspections are being
conducted as follow-up. Safety- and health-related awareness building
trainings are conducted for the benefit of all staff.

During the year, we complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
related to providing safe environment at all locations of operations
and protecting employees from occupational hazards, including the
Hong Kong's Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance, Factories and
Industrial Undertakings (Safety Management) Regulation, as well as
Work Safety Law and Provisions on the Supervision and Administration
of Occupational Health at Work Sites of the People’s Republic of China.
In 2018, we had zero work-related fatality (2017: Nil) and 459.5 lost
days due to work-related injury (2017: 288.5). The increase in lost days
was mainly attributed to the long recovery time of an employee involved
in a traffic accident in Mainland China. Follow-up work had been carried
out immediately to reduce the likelihood of similar events in the future.
We had also drawn our employees’ attention to the incident so as to
heighten their awareness of occupational safety.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEERBEBEERAERADA

22/

BE -HERERRE

EREKRS IT<FRI(&)

ES 57

ERERAEZ R (REEBREEED)
(HETEKH) - AR A BEE) « (4t
SREFV(EEIERTE))NBENRTE
I AEERBELAARG—WEBER -
FINS T REAHES c RELF I B
TR ZFERBAMNTA - UREEH
BHIREEREMREZEREZEHRE
RREERF - FMFMTI L AEBER G
BT2H -

ALB S| AlCChat | FHERZS - 058
AEBESEFFIRBRAOEREE  FE
Bt AR REVEHER UL
TEEASR

AKEEEETHRIEENTIERRS
THERARTERSE  UHERERBBEAZ
RETERARNTEEASEEHRY -
AEEHTREEIMNAFES MEL
HEABR IR R BB RE o

TEL 2 BEFE

AEBEBT(Z2F— BHATINR
il REREETRINIHERE - B
b AEBRIMBEL2RERRERER
ZBg) MEREIFBEZ2REREMNT
fERE - ARECHA - FHEREE SR
KWz 2Rk > LEBHEEREEE
ERERR AKBETHETLEREE
REBRE YERTR2RBESHEE
il AREEET

FA - BPETRBEMRBEERRG(BE
BEBELZ 2 LBREA) (IHRRIE
RE(R2EER)RM) - UARPEARKM
BZ 2 ER) ISR ES £
BEBRTE))  TRABEEDIREHRE
ENREMMERERXBEEREE - X
“E-)N\F AEEVEETIRIRT(Z
Z—+F ) MAIEBAIEBEA
459 5H(=ZF—+t%F :2885H) - T15#E
RIERSEAFESR—RETHERK
BENRBEI ZTERBHERE - T
B BNETIRE TEURER B EESE
PUEHHAEEM - URIREEE TISENR
EONALRSHMERELZNEE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
2018 F R



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Development and Training

The Group is committed to providing ample opportunities for its
employees to grow. The Code of Conduct and the Handbook state
that the Group focuses on personal development of its employees and
encourages employees to achieve self-improvement through continuous
learning. As such, the Group provides relevant trainings regularly to
enable employees to enrich their career prospects.

The Group and its management oversee the design and delivery of
internal induction and refresher training courses on numerous topics.
These topics include customer service, sales technique, product
knowledge, employee supervision, financial risk management and
leadership, all of which are designed to support staff at various ranks
and functionality to facilitate their daily work and business operations.
An online training platform, “Channel T" is designed for staff to access
a variety of information for personal and professional development
through training softwares and videos. Occupational safety and health
training materials are also available on the platform.

In addition to utilizing internal training resources, the Group subsidizes
employees who require professional qualification or advanced studies
for specific roles and caters to their specific training needs by third-party
professional training. The Group and its management are dedicated to
the continuous development of our employees’ capabilities and we value
the personal and professional growth of our employees. By fostering a
culture of continuous learning, we seek to cultivate and retain our best
talents and maintain our competitive positioning in the market.

Environment

The Group has issued an internal environmental protection pledge
for environmental sustainability, where the Group fulfills its role as a
responsible corporate citizen. For example, the Group bans shark fins,
humphead wrasse and other endangered species from the menu at
corporate functions. To reduce the generation of plastic and paper
waste, wherever feasible purified tap water is provided for drinking and
reusable cups are provided. Furthermore, employees are encouraged
to follow suit in their private life. At the same time, the Group has
established Environmental Policy, Carbon Reduction Method for
Implementing Environmental Protection, which provides guidelines to
mitigate greenhouse gas emissions, promote efficient use of energy,
and handle non-hazardous waste. The commitment to the environment
is further communicated to the employees in the Group’s Code of
Conduct.

We operate in accordance with the local environmental laws and
regulations, and were not aware of any material environmental non-
compliance that would have a significant impact on the environment
or on our Group. We summarize our efforts in managing energy and
resource use, effluent, waste and emissions of air in the paragraphs
below.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Energy and Resources Management

We proactively adopt measures to minimize the environmental impacts
caused by our business operation. The management observes and seizes
opportunities for overall reduction in energy use across the Group.
We have standardized office, factory and even shop lighting (when
feasible) with energy saving lights and LED lights. Billboard and exterior
lighting at street level stores are controlled by timer. In addition, indoor
temperature is maintained at an optimal, comfortable level to conserve
energy.

We have signed up as participants to the Charter on External Lighting
organized by the Hong Kong Government, thereby committing to
switching off shop lightings by 11 p.m. To foster our employees’
awareness, tips and information on carbon reduction and energy
conservation are also disseminated on our intranet.

Where possible, such as at the purpose-built Shunde plant, savings on
air-conditioning are achieved by taking measures to mitigate the heating
effect of the afternoon sun, to reduce heat generation by eliminating
excess lighting, and to isolate furnaces and other heat and emission
dissipating equipment from room air.

Energy efficiency, water conservation, waste reduction and other
environmental impact mitigation have all been carefully considered by
the management as part of the design specifications in the erection
of the Shunde plant; they will be so considered for any building
construction in future.
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Intensity
(GJ or Tonnes /
HK$1m Turnover)
RE
Total Consumption* (FHEESM,
e il _ feradim e
Type of Resource Unit allekid ARBRERR)
ERER By 2018 2017 2018 2017
Megawatt Hour (MWh) _ _
N S EE 22,725 22,352
Electricity
E R Gigajoule (GJ)
nergy igajoule
acm FkER 81,811 80,468
4.9 5.7
Fuel’ Gigajoule (GJ)
IR THEE 1,862 1,684
Water Freshwater Tonnes
K gk I 103,905 96,786 6.1 6.7

* figures are rounded to the nearest whole number

Fuel used in the operations include natural gas, towngas and liquefied
petroleum gas.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Energy and Resources Management (continued)

Our total energy and water consumption increased between 2017
and 2018 as we scaled up our manufacturing operations and opened
Nevertheless, the total amount of greenhouse gas
emissions decreased during the year because of smaller emission
factors for purchased electricity in 2018 than those in 2017. We

more shops.
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DHEERN Z

will keep track of our energy and water consumption and regularly ZTE—tFL o BMSEERELIRK
review the effectiveness of our current initiatives to further improve KBRS WEBRABEBEEN®E
our performance in energy and water use as well as greenhouse gas DA}E SHERMESHOER - BAOMK
emissions. A RERBHMARR
Intensity
(Tonnes of

Carbon Dioxide
Equivalent (tCO,e) /
HK$1m Turnover)

BE
Scope of Greenhouse Total Emission* (RS {RER
Gas Emissions Unit RUHRE —HRBTERH)
BERBHEREE B 2018 2017 2018 2017
Scope 1 - Direct Greenhouse Tonnes of Carbon Dioxide
Gas Emissions Equivalent (tCO,e) 103 93
HE1-BERAEREBHNE NS ixEE
1.1 1.3
Scope 2 - Indirect Greenhouse Tonnes of Carbon Dioxide
Gas Emissions Equivalent (tCO,e) 18,201 18,345
#E2 - FEAEREHENE RE_fRES

* figures are rounded to the nearest whole number

- Direct greenhouse gas emissions are emissions from sources that -
are owned or controlled by us (Scope 1), including use of fuel for
stationary and mobile combustion.

- Indirect greenhouse gas emissions are emissions that are a -
consequence of the activities of our operations, but occur at
sources owned or controlled by another entity (Scope 2), including

purchased electricity.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Wastewater Management

The Group's major use of water occurs at its plants in the course of
manufacturing jewellery. The wastewater may contain acids, alkali,
various chemicals and heavy metals. At the major plant in Shunde, there
is an onsite facility for neutralization, deionization and sedimentation
of the wastewater. The treated water is certified safe to discharge into
the municipal network, and the slag is properly handled by licensed
operators. At the smaller plants, wastewater is put in safe storage
for removal by licensed operators at regular intervals. Our operation
complies with the Water Pollution Control Ordinance in Hong Kong, as
well as the Law of People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control
of Water Pollution.

B ()

BKEHE
AREETERREKRERLERMEANRK -
BKAgEEER B SELEmhED
B ERENTIEMERZAHYEKETT
R ERET RIURARIE o KRR
BRANREHRETAEBBE - BEHE
REFRREEZERE - £/EABRER -
RPEBEKZERT  RNRERKEREER
EHEE - RAWZEDETEROKSTE
B HRG) B R AR KORG8
B

Total Volume of Effluent Discharged*

Type of Emission Unit BEKBER A E *
BERE R By 2018 2017
Wastewater Tonnes 36,632 23,700
&K i

* figures are rounded to the nearest whole number

Compared with 2017, the Group discharged more wastewater due to
increased manufacturing and production activities during the year. To
further align with the reporting boundary, industrial effluent discharged
from jewellery manufacturing was measured separately from domestic
wastewater in 2018 with no restatement of 2017 figure. We will
continue to monitor the volume and quality of the effluent to ensure it
is discharged appropriately and responsibly.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Waste Management

Another area of focus in the Group’s environmental management
policies is waste reduction at source. The Group has placed much
emphasis on the reusability in the packaging of its products. Customers
will find our boxes useful for storing other items if not used for their
jewellery. It is ingrained into our culture to reuse suitable containers and
boxes for transportation. Compared to 2017, more packaging materials
were used and distributed in general due to increased number of online
sales and new stores this year. In view of the trend, the Group will
study possible ways to avoid undue and unnecessary use of packaging
materials and recycle whenever appropriate.
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Ko AEERFNENHE  BRAFRAE
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Amount of Material Used*

Type of Packaging Material Unit MBERE
BEYER By 2018 2017
Paper Box Tonnes 424 333
Hwa 7]

Jewellery Pouch Tonnes 12 7
NRER 1

Paper Bag Tonnes 177 187
RS 7

Others (e.g. plastic, leather, wood, and etc.) ~ Tonnes 29 27
Bkt (FIn2R - K& - AME) I

* figures are rounded to the nearest whole number * A FEREIRELCEEY

There are other measures for small savings but heightened awareness.
To cut down the use of paper cups, all staff members are encouraged to
use glass and cups for their tea and water; and wherever feasible guests
are served with those as well. To reduce the use of printing paper, the
Group and its management require departments to check out their own
paper and records total usage. There are guidelines to encourage the
use of email and e-chat for company business. Employees receive notices
to check online their salary statements in lieu of paper slips.

Recycling bins are generally available and employees are encouraged to
make use of them. We have participated in the Hong Kong Awards for
Environmental Excellence for several years and recycled resources used in
our operations. All recyclables are collected and handled by recognized
recycling organizations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Waste Management (continued)

Where options of recycling and reuse have been fully considered, the
Group engages authorized or licensed contractors in the disposal of
general waste and hazardous waste generated at our manufacturing
factories or at our offices. The waste handling and disposal comply
with Hong Kong's Waste Disposal Ordinance, Waste Disposal (Chemical
Waste) (General) Regulation and Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Environment Pollution Caused by Solid

Waste.

The following tables outline waste which is materially generated and
recycled in our operations. Common office materials such as paper and
toner cartridges are also included.

B ()

BEEWEHE(E)
ERDEREUNERNERK  A%HE
EREREXF I ABRRE BRELE
BEIRRAEMELN—REEVLEE
BRY - BENRBENETEENEE
i) - CEEERE (L 2B (—R)RBI)
R EARAMBEKEREY ARG R
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Amount of Waste Generated

Type of Hazardous Waste Unit BEYELE
BEEREN By 2018 2017
Highly Acidic Waste Tonnes 0.5 0.4
=RIEEY i
Others (e.g. waste with lead, inorganic Tonnes 3.0 2.6
cyanide, mercury, organic solvent)
HipEy (PlansiheEy) - BEE ey - W
KER - BHRIREER)
Amount of Waste*
BEYE *
Type of 2018 2017
Non-Hazardous Waste Unit Generated Recycled  Generated Recycled
BEREY B EXE =] 1K EE B4
Paper Tonnes 52 8 50 29
4ok 73
Toner Cartridge Pieces 3,960 1,101 3,392 484
R 1l
General Waste Tonnes 51 - 15 -
—REED W

* figures are rounded to the nearest whole number
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Waste Management (continued)

In comparison with last year, more waste was generated during the year
as a result of increase in jewellery production. On the other hand, we
expanded our scale of toner cartridge recycling in 2018, which resulted
in a rise of the number of toner cartridge handled. We will continue
to promote waste reduction measures, such as reuse and recycling, in
our operations to improve resource effectiveness. As an ongoing effort
to extensively reflect the environmental performance of our jewellery
manufacturing and retail operations, the reporting boundary of general
waste expanded from including factories only in 2017 to comprising
factories, factory offices and shops in 2018.

Air Emissions Management’

Jewellery manufacturing generates air emissions that may contain acids,
alkali, other chemicals or traces of metals and dust. Our workplaces are
equipped, depending on the scale of the operation and the nature of
the processes employed, with equipment ranging from fume cupboards
and filters, to full-scale scrubber networks to render the air clean
for discharge into the atmosphere as per the requirement of local
regulatory authorities. The Shunde plant has airflow control designed
so that cooled room air would not be drawn into the scrubber systems
along with noxious emissions. During the year, we complied with the Air
Pollution Control Ordinance in Hong Kong and Law of People’s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution.

Community Involvement

The Group believes that its involvement in the community can foster
social harmony and development, and is simply good corporate
citizenship.

Promotion of Arts and Cultural Development

The Group is keen to foster the growth and development of Hong
Kong's arts and cultural landscape, and we believe this encourages
positive societal values for the expression of thoughts and feelings
through design and innovation. For example, we have been a corporate
partner with Hong Kong Sinfonietta and Maestro Circle member of the
Hong Kong Philharmonic Orchestra for several years. The Hong Kong
Repertory Theatre has likewise been receiving programme sponsorship.

Air emissions are not material to the Group’s jewellery manufacturing and
retail businesses. The types of emissions and respective emissions data of
HKEx ESG Guide are therefore not reported.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Community Development

The Group has contributed to various charitable themes such as youth
education, social service, community care, child and elderly care, care
for special needs and groups on raising environmental awareness.
During the year, we have supported many charitable organizations
through monetary and in-kind donations and through participation in
their charitable events. The list of organizations included the Salvation
Army, The Boys' & Girls' Clubs Association of Hong Kong, the Hong
Kong Chinese Women's Club, St. James’ Settlement People’s Food Bank,
Yan Chai Hospital and Yan Qi Tong.

Recognizing the importance of quality education for young people,
the Group provides scholarship funds to the Hong Kong Academy for
Performing Arts and the City University of Hong Kong.

The Group not only supports Hong Kong community but also extends
the support to Mainland China, Macau and Taiwan. Our offices in all
regions are encouraged to initiate or participate in charitable events
targeted to serve local community associations, and organizations for
child, elderly and the disabled care. For example, we have organized
visits to elderly to show our love and care, fundraising and goods
donation events for underprivileged students and children to express
our support, and volunteering work with the disabled to understand
the difficulties they encounter at work. To encourage participation by
our staff, the Group sponsors the activities and encourages interested
employees to become volunteers. Employees are eligible to apply
for volunteer leave, which further encourages the participation of
meaningful charitable work.

Governance

The Group recognizes the importance of good governance above and
beyond compliance with regulatory requirements. The Group may from
time to time be subject to changes in applicable laws and regulations
in the jurisdictions where the Group conducts operations. Such matters
could have an adverse impact on our ease and freedom of operation,
financial well-being and the results of our business. Accordingly,
compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable
laws, rules and regulations, in particular those that have significant
impact on the Group. The management is responsible for ensuring that
the conduct of business is in conformity with all applicable laws and
regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group as a whole strives to adhere to the highest standards of
transparency, accountability and corporate governance, balancing and
protecting the interests of shareholders, customers and employees. The
Company has complied throughout the year 2018 with the applicable
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1
of the Code and which is explained in the relevant part of this report.

The Board

Board composition

The Board comprises nine Directors, of whom three Executive Directors
("ED"), two Non-executive Directors (“NED") and four Independent
Non-executive Directors (“INED"). In addition, a list containing the
names of the Directors and their roles and functions is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Chairman and Group General Manager

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing holds both positions of the Chairman
and the Group General Manager of the Company. The Board is of the
opinion that the present board structure provides the Group with strong
and consistent leadership and allows for effective and efficient planning
and implementation of business decisions and strategies.

Independence of Directors

Save for the relationships disclosed in the biographical details set out
on pages 4 to 7 of this annual report, the Directors do not have family,
material financial, business or other relationships with one another.

The Company has received from each INED written annual confirmation
of his independence as required under the Listing Rules and therefore
the Board considers all INEDs to be independent.

Re-election of Directors

All NEDs (including INEDs) are appointed for specific terms of not more
than three years. In addition, all Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and re-election in annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the Code and the
Company’s bye-laws.
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The Board (continued)

Securities transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. Directors are reminded on a regular
basis of their obligations under the Model Code.

All Directors have written to confirm that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

Employees who have access to inside information of the Group are also
subject to compliance with written internal guidelines (the “Written
Internal Guidelines”) that follow the Model Code.

Directors’ continuous professional development

Directors have continuously been updated on major developments of
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.

During the year, the Directors participated in continuous professional
development by attending briefings/seminars, and/or reading materials
on the following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided their records of training to the Company:
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Topics on training covered "

Name of Directors BEERZ SRE > 3| g
Executive Directors: BITES !
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing JEK B 7 (@), (b), (c) & (d)
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing R AR B (), (b) & (d)
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing Ak EsE (a), (b), (¢) & (d)
Non-executive Directors: FHITES
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TREBRE (@), (b), (c) & (d)
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam =Y birte (@), (b) & (d
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES !

Directors:
Mr. LEE Ka Lun FRBEE (@), (b), (c) & (d)
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun PRINENE £ (@), (b) & (d)
Dr. LO King Man ERNEL (@), (b) & (d)
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung I ERE (@), (b) & (d)

Notes:

(a) regulatory compliance and corporate governance

(b) finance, law and taxation

(c) global and local financial market, investment and business environment
(d) other information relevant to the Group or its business
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Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Group. It determines the overall strategic direction and management
objectives, oversees significant operational and financial matters and
ensures a framework of risk controls is in place.

The Company has provided to each Director a Directors’ Manual, which
includes the statutory obligations, duties and responsibilities for being a
director. The Directors’ Manual is updated from time to time to reflect
the latest developments in those areas.

Internal guidelines with continuing updates in areas on the Company’s
and the Directors’ obligations under the Listing Rules, and the latest
developments or material changes on ordinances, rules or regulations
are provided to Directors from time to time.

The Board has delegated day-to-day operations to management, who
is responsible for implementing the Group’s business strategies and
managing the daily business operations under the leadership of the
Chairman/Group General Manager and the Group Deputy General
Manager, both of whom are EDs.

Management support

All Directors were provided with monthly updates on the Group’s
business, operations, and financial matters as well as timely information
that may have affected the Group’s businesses. Comprehensive Board
papers are prepared and distributed quarterly to Directors to keep them
informed.

Directors have free access to management for additional information, as
and when required and may solicit independent professional advice at
the Company's expenses.
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Attendance Records of Directors

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the annual general meeting held in 2018, are

set out as follows:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

BRNERY/BIRY
Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
Name of Directors BENS 28 ERZEE HMZEEE REZEE RREFAE
Executive Directors: BTES:
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing BIKEK S 4
Chairman and Group General Manager IEEEFELE 4/4 - - - 17
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing BAmEL 34 - - 0/ o
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing RARBEE
Group Deputy General Manager £F5EnE 4/4 - - - 171
Non-executive Directors: FHUTES !
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRk 44 0 i - "
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam BEmEE 4/4 212 i 17 I
Independent Non-executive Directors:  BUFHTEE :
Mr. LEE Ka Lun FREEE
Chairman of the three Committees —HZEE2 1 4/4 22 11 11 1/1
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun oL 44 0 " " 1"
Dr. LO King Man EEEL 44 0 " " 1"
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung AEEEE 4/4 212 11 i 111
- The Director is not a member - EEpHIES

Directors who are considered having conflict of interests or material
interests in proposed transactions or contemplated issues are required to
abstain from voting on the relevant resolution.
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Board Committees

The Board is supported by three committees, namely Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, whose respective
terms of reference are available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

The principal duties are to monitor the integrity of the Group's
financial statements, oversee the Group's financial reporting systems,
internal control and risk management procedures and the relationship
with the external auditor. Members possess appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting or management expertise as required under
the Listing Rules.

In 2018, the Committee reviewed the Group’s accounting principles and
practices, development in accounting standards and associated impacts
on the Group, risk management issues, audit findings, compliance,
strategy summary and financial reporting matters, and the effectiveness
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems. The
Committee discussed the above matters, where appropriate, with
management and external auditor.

Remuneration Committee

The principal functions include reviewing and making recommendations
to the Board for approval on the remuneration policies and packages for
Directors and senior management.

The remuneration of Directors consists of a basic annual fee with
additional payments for serving on Committees. It is not set individually.
EDs receive additional pay packages by virtue of their positions in
management.

During the year, the Committee reviewed the remuneration package of
Directors and senior management and staff bonus scheme; and reviewed
and made recommendation to the Board on Directors’ fees.

Nomination Committee

The main duties include reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board, assessing the independence of INEDs, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and determining the policy for nomination of Directors.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”).
The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Group's corporate strategy. All Board appointments are based on
meritocracy, and candidates are considered against objective criteria,
having due regards for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

In assessing the Board composition, the Committee will consider a
number of aspects as set out in the Board Diversity Policy, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge, industry and regional
experience and other qualities.

In carrying out the responsibility for identifying suitably qualified
candidates to become members of the Board, the Committee gives
adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy. Its aim is to
ensure that the Board is appropriately constituted with a balance of
knowledge, skills and experience. The Committee will consider the
candidate’s character and integrity, qualifications and other relevant
criteria necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve
Board diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation to
the Board.

During the year, the Committee reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board. It also assessed and confirmed the
independence of the INEDs, and recommended to the Board the
nomination of Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Sing, Dr. CHAN Bing Fun and
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam for re-appointment as Directors by the shareholders
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 8 June 2018.
The Committee considered that an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives of the Board is maintained.

To comply with the amendments to the Code which were implemented
on 1 January 2019, the Board adopted a director nomination policy in
January 2019.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and keeping up to date with the latest
requirements of the Code and the Listing Rules.

In 2018, the Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’'s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and the Written Internal Guidelines, and
the Company’s compliance with the Code and the disclosure in this
report.

Financial Reporting

Directors’ responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the Group's state of
affairs, results and cash flows in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards.
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Financial Reporting (continued)

External auditor

The reporting responsibilities of the Group’s independent external
auditor, Ernst & Young, on the Group's financial statements are set out
in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 49 to 55 of this annual
report.

The Board is satisfied with the audit fees, process and effectiveness
of Ernst & Young and has recommended its re-appointment as the
Company's external auditor at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The services provided by Ernst & Young and the associated fees thereof
paid/ payable for 2018 were as follows:

Audit i
Taxation %
Others Hip

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring that adequate risk management
and internal controls are in place to safeguard the Group's assets
and manage risks. The Board reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis. Policies
and procedures are designed for providing reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss and managing risks of failure in
operational systems and achievement of the Group's objectives.

Risk Management

Management is delegated to identify, analyze, evaluate, respond,
monitor and communicate risks associated with any activity, function or
process within its scope of responsibility and authority. For risk control
and monitoring, it involves making decisions regarding which risks
are acceptable and how to address those that are not. Management
develops contingency plans for possible loss scenarios. Accidents and
other situations involving loss or near-loss will be investigated and
properly documented as part of the effort to manage risks.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

Risk Management (continued)
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Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are set out as follows:

AEFFE T B R T EERHE
wr

o Retail market suffers from the uncertainties in the global economic
and political environment and the weakened consumer demand.
We see opportunities to grow and increase customer loyalty via
product and brand differentiation

e The Group's operations will be affected by multiple risk factors
related to the manufacture and retail of jewellery, wholesale of
precious metals, and securities and futures broking. Policies and
procedures are designed to minimize the risks

e Adverse effects which may arise from changes in laws and
regulations affecting our businesses. Legal and regulatory
compliance policies are in place to mitigate against the risks

o Details of financial risk management objectives and policies are set
out in note 43 to the financial statements
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Internal Control

The purpose of internal control is to reasonably guarantee the
compliance of its operation and management with regulations and
laws, assets security, and authenticity and integrity of financial report
and related information, improve the efficiency and effectiveness of
operating activities and promote the realization of development strategy
of the Group.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

Internal Control (continued)
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Major internal controls currently in place within the Group included the
following:

PEEAREZTEANHBERLBEUT
BB

o An Internal Audit team conducts regular audits of different aspects
of the operations and reports any findings to the Audit Committee

o All inventory movements are properly recorded and reconciled, and
verification and cross-checking with source documents procedures
are in place

o Policies are set to cover the integrity of trading practices,
safekeeping of customer assets, and credit control for the
securities and futures broking business and wholesale of precious
metals

o Major or material connected transactions require pre-approval of
INEDs and all continuing connected transactions are reviewed on a
regular basis

o Business plans are prepared annually. Income and expenditure are
subject to regular budgetary review

o Information access is managed on a need-to-know basis.
Guidelines and procedures are in place to protect personal data
and to ensure the integrity of communication systems

o The Group strictly prohibits unauthorized use of confidential or
inside information. Disclosure of inside information guide has
been established and only the authorized staff are allowed to
communicate with parties outside the Group
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The Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2018, with reference to the risk management and internal
audit reports and the representations made by management and
concluded that adequate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are being maintained. The annual review
also considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes and budget. There
were no significant areas of concern identified during the year.

Constitutional Documents

During the year, there was no change in the Company’s memorandum
of association and bye-laws. A copy of the latest consolidated version
of the memorandum of association and bye-laws is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognizes that human capital is a key asset to sustainable
business growth. The objective of the Group’s human resources
management is to reward and recognize performing staff by providing
a competitive remuneration package and implementing a performance
appraisal system with appropriate incentives, and to promote career
development and progression by appropriate training and providing
opportunities within the Group for career advancement. We believe
these measures could further enhance employee involvement and
engagement as part of a team.

The Group is committed to providing high-quality products and services
to its customers. Apart from our professional sale representatives in
shops, we also have a dedicated team of customer relations personnel
for quick response to enquiries and complaints. We believe that
customer satisfaction is the key to our long-term success.

The Group values mutually beneficial long-term relationships with
its suppliers. Steady supply of high-quality raw materials is crucial
for us. The Group is committed to developing stable and sustainable
partnership among its suppliers.

Corporate Communication

Shareholder communication

The Board recognizes the importance of good communication with
the Company’s shareholders and other stakeholders. A shareholders’
communication policy with the objectives of ensuring a transparent
and timely communication with shareholders and other stakeholders
via various means has been established. The general meetings of the
Company provide a forum for communication between the Board and
the shareholders. The chairman of the Board as well as the chairman of
the three Committees and other members of the respective committees
are available to answer questions at the general meetings.

Investor communication

Aside from annual reports and interim reports, the Company
disseminates timely information on its website to investors and
consumers alike.

Management also attends meetings with financial analysts and fund
managers from time to time. These meetings allow management to
maintain close contact with investors which facilitate their understanding
of the Group's strategies and operations.

Internal communication

The Group's staff members are linked by the Group's intranet for
prompt sharing of information. Regular meetings of staff members from
Hong Kong, Mainland China and Taiwan are held to share and discuss
issues on achieving the Group's strategic objectives, actual operational
practices, local rules and regulations and compliance practices.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
special general meeting (“SGM") of the Company. Shareholders holding
in aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of
the Company may send a written request to the Board of the Company
to request for an SGM.

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholders concerned,
must state the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the
Company's registered office for the attention of the Company Secretary.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would be responsible for
the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the
“Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received. If within 21 days
of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
shareholders concerned or any of them representing more than one half
of the total voting rights of all of them may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the shareholders concerned as
a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company:

(@) any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the
requisition; or

(b)

not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited
at the Company's registered office for the attention of the Company
Secretary. The Company would take appropriate actions and make
necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would
be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act once valid documents are received.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director of the
Company, please refer to the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose
a Person for Election as a Director” available on the website of the
Company.

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in
writing through the Company Secretary at 27/F, 9 Wing Hong Street,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong (email: ir@chowsangsang.com).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

s
EY:

To the shareholders of
Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chow
Sang Sang Holdings International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to 180, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BE R &

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Key audit matters

HREEIER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ZEHREFTPROMESN

Net realizable value of inventories

FRZTE % FE

The Group manufactures and sells jewellery products,
which are subject to changing consumer demands and
fashion trends. Significant judgement was required to
assess the appropriate level 019 inventory provision for
these jewellery products which might be sold below cost.
This took into account factors that included but were
not limited to, economic outlook, sales forecasts and the
forecast market value for the jewellery products.

The write-down of inventories to net realizable value
during the current year and the carrying amount of
inventories (net of inventory provision) as at 31 December
2018 amounted to HK$706,000 and HK$7,451,326,000,
respectively.

Further details about the Group’s inventory provision
are included in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Valuation of investment properties

REYFGE

The Group owned a portfolio of investment properties
in Hong Kong and outside of Hong Kong, which were
valued at HK$331,317,000 as at 31 December 2018.

Significant estimation was required to determine the
fair value of the investment properties, which reflected
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.
Management engaged an independent professionally
qualified valuer to estimate the value of investment
properties at the end of the reporting period.

Further details about the Group’s investment properties
are included in notes 3 and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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We reviewed the bases adopted by the Group for its
inventory provision policy with reference to historical
inventory losses, and evaluated whether the inventory
provision was made in accordance with the policy. We
obtained an understanding of management’s processes
for the initial identification of slow moving or obsolete
jewellery products. We also assessed the inventory
provision by comparing the selling prices of the jewellery
products to their costs.

In addition to the above, an independent gemologist
was engaged by the Group to assess the net realizable
values of certain jewellery items held by the Group
as at 31 December 2018. We reviewed the sampling
approach adopted by the gemologist, which was based
on a mix of material and random items. For diamond
products assessed by the independent gemologist, we
also evaluated the net realizable value with reference to
independently published sales prices.
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We evaluated the objectivity, independence and
competency of the valuer. We also involved our internal
valuation specialists to assist us in reviewing the bases
and assumptions adopted in the valuation for estimating
the fair value of the investment properties and performed
the benchmarking of the value of investment properties
held by the Group to other comparable properties. We
also assessed the related disclosures in the notes to the
financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BE R &

Other information included in the Annual Report

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated financial
statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BE R &

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BE R &

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BE R &

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Leung Chi Ying.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended 31 December 2018

SIAN
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TURNOVER
Jewellery retail
Other businesses

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income, net

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Other losses, net

Gain on disposal of an associate

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Finance costs

Share of profit of an associate

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
Basic

Diluted
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2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT
17,130,414 14,516,326
1,675,928 2,117,055
18,806,342 16,633,381
(14,175,208) (12,642,506)
4,631,134 3,990,875
110,459 174,038
(2,775,215) (2,569,970)
(613,503) (544,357)
(20,092) (541)
26,614 =

- 113,948

(36,991) (31,044)
245 4,550
1,322,651 1,137,499
(310,394) (261,081)
1,012,257 876,418

149.4 cents

129.5 cents 1l

149.4 cents

129.3 cents 1l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FE2ERER

Year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_Z—\F+-_A=+—HIFE
2018 2017
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B sE FTHERT FHETT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERRA 1,012,257 876,418

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ Ht2mhs/ (FE)

(LOSS)
Items that may be reclassified AETRENIEZEER
subsequently to profit or loss: ZHER:
Available-for-sale investments: AHHERE :
Changes in fair value NEEEEY 20 = 224,830
Reclassification adjustment for BN EAR
gain on disposal included in the EiReBRakZ
consolidated statement of & e
profit or loss 20 - (113,948)
- 110,882
Exchange differences: PE N %R
Exchange differences on translation WMEEL VENEZ5 (314,059) 385,025
Net other comprehensive income/(loss)  RE&HRI T sEEFH D 1A
that may be reclassified to profit ETﬁmEEZE?@i@
or loss in subsequent periods b/ (B518)F 58 (314,059) 495,907
Items that will not be reclassified HETEEHIBEBRER
subsequently to profit or loss: | E :
Changes in fair value of financial BERBRRATERE
assets designated at fair value ATAEMEE
through other comprehensive KRB EEZ
income NEEER (48,263) -
Revaluation upon transfer of a HETH R
leasehold land and building to BFEBETRE
an investment property MRS 14 845 3,652
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) ~ REZHRITEEFHHERE
that will not be reclassified to profitor 18Rz Eit2EKE/
loss in subsequent periods (B18)%8 (47,418) 3,652
Other comprehensive income/(loss)  FREMEEKE (&HE)
for the year (361,477) 499,559
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR AR F#ZEZFH A
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY E{HFERZE
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY U i A ER 650,780 1,375,977
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2018

)

BN &
RN—E—-N\F+-_A=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Prepaid land lease payments

Intangible assets

Other assets

Investment in an associate

Financial assets designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Available-for-sale investments

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Accounts receivable

Receivables arising from securities and
futures broking

Prepayments, other receivables and
other assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Tax recoverable

Cash held on behalf of clients

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Payables arising from securities and
futures broking

Other payables and accruals

Derivative financial instruments

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Interest-bearing bank borrowings arising
from securities and futures broking

Bullion loans

Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
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2018 2017

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P& TER TAT
14 853,823 762,321
15 331,317 322,013
16 11,040 11,932
17 271 271
18 207,821 210,435
19 - 32,453
20 844,391 =
20 = 874,000
33 27,064 22,213
2,275,727 2,235,638

21 7,451,326 7,489,574
22 1,001,041 920,088
23 1,018,341 984,906
24 327,377 307,221
25 13,595 17,073
30 98399 =
28 41

26 442,519 515,659
26 1,302,527 1,199,915
11,562,309 11,434,477

27 146,017 122,071
28 457,010 574,048
29 491,875 464,034
30 12,405 4,394
31 507,988 488,547
31 200,000 60,000
32 970,140 1,069,873
125,812 93,905

2,911,247 2,876,872

8,651,062 8,557,605

10,926,789 10,793,243
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2018

REMBRRER
RZZE—N\FE+-A=+—H

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets
EQUITY
Issued capital

Reserves

Total equity

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing

Director

BKER
g%

2018 2017
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B sE FExT FET
*REEE
STRERITTER 31 257,734 453,656
RERIEEE 33 250,118 214,512
BIERBAE 507,852 668,168
EEFE 10,418,937 10,125,075
B
BETRA 34 169,359 169,230
& 36 10,249,578 9,955,845
R 10,418,937 10,125,075
Winston CHOW Wun Sing & fe Bk
Director B5E

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2018

Issued Share
capital premium
BRTRE R aE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iz TR TR
At 1 January 2017 RoT—+5-A-H 169,230 1,051,502
Profit for the year FEREA - -
Other comprehensive income for the year: FRAMZENS -
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments EHERE AT EEE 20 - -
Reclassification adjustment for gain on disposal of BMOEAEE
available-for-sale investments included in the FRBHERHE
consolidated statement of profit or loss A HERE 2 W 20 - -
Exchange differences on translation REEL7ENZES = -
Revaluation upon transfer of a leasehold land and building &+t R ETEEE
to an investment property RENERER 14 - -
Total comprehensive income for the year ENEZENHLHE = -
Equity-settled share option arrangements RaiE  BIRERH 35 - -
Transfer from retained profits BRREET - -
Dividends declared and paid during the year ENERRARNKRE 12 = =
At 31 December 2017 RZB—tF+-A=t+—H 169,230 1,051,502+
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+-F=1—H 169,230 1,051,502
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 RnEAMBEREENEITNTE 22 - -
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 15 RERRMBEREENE15KNTE 22 - -
At 1 January 2018 (restated) RZZ-\F—A—-R(E]) 169,230 1,051,502
Profit for the year FER A - -
Other comprehensive loss for the year: EREMEAEHE
Changes in fair value of financial assets designated at fair ~ #EEARATFEE AL 2 AN
value through other comprehensive income WA AE ¢ A FERE - -
Exchange differences on translation BEEE/ERER = =
Revaluation upon transfer of a leasehold land and building  HE L REFERHE
to an investment property RENERSRE 14 = =
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2ERRESE = =
Equity-settled share option arrangements EniE s BRETH 35 = =
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options RBRERRRRTRG 129 8,854
Transfer of share option reserve upon the forfeiture of RN B ERE
share options - -
Transfer from retained profits BaRE T - -
Dividends declared and paid during the year FRERRARKE 12 - -
At 31 December 2018 RZE—\&+-A=1—H 169,359 1,060,356*
& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$10,249,578,000 (2017: HK$9,955,845,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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BAREBDE
BE-Z—\F+-A=+—ALLEE

Fair value
reserve of
financial assets Difference
Leasehold designated  arising from
land and at fair value acquisition
Share buildings  Investment through other of non- Exchange
option  revaluation  revaluation comprehensive controlling  fluctuation Reserve Retained Total
reserve reserve reserve income interests reserve funds profits equity
BATEE
\ HARMRE  WHEER
HELHR REEf WHNUBEE RREREL SHE "
BRERE BTEARRE i ZATEERE ZEH SEGEE CLE RE&EA AER
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL THR TARL TR TARL THERT TRR TARL THER
(No;g 35) (Noy\e 36)
(Fit3E35) (K3t 36)
4,570 339,449 761,153 - 4,897 (284,269) 293,816 6,697,550 9,037,898
= = = = = = = 876,418 876,418
- - 224,830 - - - - - 224,830
- - (113,948) - - - - - (113,948)
= = = = = 385,025 = = 385,025
- 3,652 - - - - - - 3,652
= 3,652 110,882 = = 385,025 = 876,418 1,375,977
9,045 - - - - - - - 9,045
- - - = - - 59,674 (59,674) >
= = = = = = = (297,845) (297,845)
13,615* 343,101* 872,035* - 4,897* 100,756* 353,490* 7,216,449 10,125,075
13,615 343,101 872,035 - 4,897 100,756 353,490 7,216,449 10,125,075
- - (872,035) 890,689 - - - - 18,654
- - - - - - - (175) (175)
13,615 343,101 - 890,689 4,897 100,756 353,490 7,216,274 10,143,554
- - - - - - - 1,012,257 1,012,257
- = = (48,263) - - - - (48,263)
- - - - - (314,059) - - (314,059)
- 845 - - - - - - 845
- 845 - (48,263) - (314,059) - 1,012,257 650,780
3,086 = - - - = = = 3,086
(1,329) - - - - - - - 7,654
(121) - - - - - - 121 -
- - - = - - 56,703 (56,703) =
- - - - - - - (386,137) (386,137)
15,251* 343,946* - 842,426* 4,897* (213,303)* 410,193* 7,785,812* 10,418,937

2 I E R B ARG BN R 2B AR 10,249,578,0008 7T (ZFE—+4 : 9,955,845,000/87T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2018

FERERER
BE_Z-N\Ft-_A=t—HLHEE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations

Interest received

Interest paid

Hong Kong profits tax paid

Mainland China tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Deposits paid for purchases of items of
property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Decrease in other assets

Proceeds from disposal of an associate

Dividend received from an associate

Dividends received from listed investments

Dividends received from unlisted investments

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise
of share options

New bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

New bullion loans

Repayment of bullion loans

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR

BEXBBRERE

REMBRE
BUFIE
BEAFE
EREBNEH
BN EARERE

REXGHBLRERNEFH

REFBHZERERE

BEVE  HENRERE
HEME - B RREAE

PSR

BEYE BELRBEAZ

BEffEE
HERftHERE G

B BEE 2R
HE—RKEE R AIFAFR
B KB EQERE
B EMRERE
BEUGE ETRERS

A

]

RELRBMAZREREFH

BMETBH2RENE

REBRRETER TR 2

ISR
HERITE K
BRBPITER
MEETEES
BEETEBREE
ERFE
RANLE:)

BELBMRAZREREFRE

ReREAREZEM/
(WD) B8

WENZRSREARS

IEEELDYE  HE

RERZRERERARE

2018 2017

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P & THERT THET
37(a) 1,091,086 288,377
94,260 75,016

(5,641) (6,263)

(29,992) (17,798)

(218,573) (234,282)

931,140 105,050

(338,192) (210,289)

166 175
(4,297) (2,678)
- 114,010
6,911 27,202
19 59,312 -
= 485
23,597 19,565
1,101 1,258
(251,402) (50,272)
7,654

2,270,000 2,587,963
(2,305,561) (2,671,255)
1,525,003 1,482,079
(1,616,667) (1,272,009)
(30,534) (24,356)
(386,137) (297,845)

(536,242) (195,423)

143,496 (140,645)

1,199,915 1,282,809
(40,884) 57,751

1,302,527 1,199,915

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

AEESEBREREARAQA

52/

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
2018 F R



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS TEABRERER

Year ended 31 December 2018 HE_Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILEFE
2018 2017
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FHT FET

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND REREFAREHEFIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances B RIBITIER 26 1,123,687 1,117,886
Non-pledged time deposits with original FREIEHASR=M@EA

maturity of less than three months when 2R E BE R

acquired 26 178,840 82,029

1,302,527 1,199,915
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.1

Corporate Information

Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

o manufacture and retail of jewellery
o wholesale of precious metals
J securities and futures broking

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are detailed in note 46.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties, certain buildings classified as property, plant and equipment,
customer gold deposits, bullion loans, derivative financial instruments
and certain financial assets which have been measured at fair value as
further explained in note 2.4 to the financial statements. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$") and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)

rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
() the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

2.1

DEER

AEEEBBBRARARTINARELH
KIZBRAR - KRR ZEMEER
7 Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda °

FRAAGRENEZIREBOT

o  LRERARTE
o  EIEMEH
o EFNHEER

ARRIMB AR FEHNHTE46
WREE

AU BREDEREEGAMRG([FE
SEMAE )EM 2 BB REER
([BERBHRERER ) (BEAAE LM
BlwEEN  BRSEN(HBETE
BDRRE) BEEERAZETREA
FEBRRAGH 2 BEATEMAE - A
PEMEM T 24PTE—FRIE - URF
BEFEZRENE  DEANME  #
LERBZATET FPF:  BESEE
E TASRTARATHBEEN K
M ImE HIRE LKA B HIRE - RET
BEMBTL(BTLDER  BRBEAE
o BRESREBERELTT -

REEE

AEAMBREBEBE_T—/\F 1
A=1T—RILFEAEBUBERS - M
BRRL—RMARAERKREREHZ
ER(RRAEBILER) EAKEEAS
BRI A 77 AR BAIE B i A HE ] ) [ 3R
NERABEZTAAEBOE - WAFE
NERBRBRBETNEN(EEAKE
BAIARE N T EHIRNE T MARRIE B AR
BREN) T EZEEEBE - MEUSHEDIE

EARDAERXMEREDNERETKA
SHRZRIBLENE - AEEZEM
AHRBERZRERATEERE ER K
RETHES - B

@ BERRETEMEREESEEZA
OFS 7
(b) WEMANTHTRELZEMN: &

(0 AEEIEZENEERTE -

KB R R M & XA D B 2 RS
MR R ERRARE - BO G BHRR
8o WBARZXEAASERSE RG]

BZREGAFE  ERMEHRRLY
SNl
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.1

Basis of Preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the equity holders of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognizes (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained and
(iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognized in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.

2.1

RREE(H)

FREEE(E)
BaRkEM2AREER 2 SAKIED
BENARRRERA ARIHERBCRE
& A E S BRI RS AR
RERES MERBERARRRZEER
AE - #zm A FXREDRE 9
REFERRA N2 B -

WEE RIERBR XAz = RIZ 5
TRZ-RIZRHREY  AREEE
AR L RHREHR - WEARM
BEEREE MY WREEHE - AlE
BRI AERRE

WARBREHIBRR 2 EHE - AT
BREANZMNBRAA L EE(BERE)
FEE ()RR RS 2 RE
B Rt AESEZ R ELER I
MR ERREBZAFEE: (i) EME
RBRE 2 DFEER (i) BERHER
PItEL 2 BHIER - FACRAME
HREER L AREEGED - BRER
SEERLERREEXABEMARAL
HREE  BFEREM D RERREL
REEM o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.2

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year's consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28
2014-2016 Cycle

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 15, the adoption of the above new and revised standards has had
no significant financial effect on these financial statements.

(@  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all three
aspects of the accounting for financial instruments: classification
and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting.

The Group has recognized the transition adjustments against the
applicable opening balances in equity at 1 January 2018. Therefore,
the comparative information was not restated and continues to be
reported under HKAS 39.

2.2

B BERREZ2D

AEBERAFE 2 FAMBRE ERIK
AT HFET RRERT BB BT E R -

BEMIRELER By M0ZB2 08

FLIRETA Kit&
BAMBHREER RABEAMHEEER
FAFEIA FORTMIAR

BEMBRELER
F4FRBAK
BAMBREER $RHIA
F93%

BB SRS ER RERFANZNE
F15%

BAMBREER BEERMHEEER
ALY ACHEN FISHREEPEN
A6

EEGANS AT WARENE
174

&5 (BEHBRE INER 5 RBFN(E
REZE®) -
REFEHR

“E-MEE-TF EERBREEL
B EEEYR ZIRREBGHE
B 285BI A

BRI XE—FREEREEM SRR
FORLRBEMBRELENFE ISR Y
L0 BRI LT MR BRI BB A SR
HEAHAMBRELBEANBEE -

(a) BARAVBRESENFEIREHMIE
RZEB-NF—H-HBHNER
R Bt HRARUBREE SR
EANFIREBT A - R KA
B HEGSRIASHEREZR
H={E%E : PBRFE WE "
NREHest R -

AEEER-_ZT-N\F—A—H#t
B s B A AR TR R 1 5
oAt EREHATEY > I
BERBEREEERNERRE
1o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued)

(a)

22 EHBRRRKEZ28(HE)

Classification and measurement (@) PHERHE
The following information sets out the impacts of adopting HKFRS ATEMSINENE AT RE
9 on the consolidated statement of financial position, including the ERFIRHGEAMBMRAR 2
effect of replacing HKAS 39's incurred credit loss calculations with 2. ARENEAMEREENE9
HKFRS 9's expected credit losses (“ECLs"). FEHREHEEEENRE S E
AFE39REEXAEEBBHEL
e o
A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under HKAS 39 and R-ZE—N\F—A—H RERSE
the balances reported under HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 is as S ERIE 395 E 2 BRE(E &
follows: REEEVBRELNEIRER
B2 REINT
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
measurement measurement
BRETERE9E BANBREENEIR
iE i
Re-
Re- measure-
Category Amount  classification ment Amount Category
E<pil 8 B8 BifiE Ex E<pil
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThRL ThRL TR TR
Financial assets HBEE
Financial assets included B &HEMEE
in other assets N ABEE L&R' 204,419 - - 204,419 AC’
Financial assets designated 3£ ARATLE
at fair value through ERPNY FVOCP
other comprehensive 2EYEN N/A (equity)
income HBEE TR = 874,000 18,654 892,654 (#x)
From: Available-for-sale  gy; AI{EHE Note
investments HE fizE 874,000 = =
Available-for-sale A EERE N/A
investments AFs* 874,000 (874,000) - - TR
To: Financial assets 2 ERAR
designated at fair ATEE
value through other St AEA
comprehensive 2EME Note
income WEBEE M (874,000) S =
Accounts receivable JEIRER TR L&R 920,088 - - 920,088 AC
Receivables arising from &% Kk HIEE 4
securities and futures EEZEK
broking R L&R 984,906 - - 984,906 AC
Financial assets included B &7
in prepayments, other 1 - E el
receivables and other RRREME
assets EZUBEE L&R 68,427 - - 68,427 AC
Financial assets at fair AL EEFA
value through profit BENES
or loss BE FVPL® 17,073 - - 17,073 FVPL
Cash held on behalf of ~ REFHA
clients B L&R 515,659 - - 515,659 AC
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RERARE &R 1,199,915 - - 1,199,915 AC
Total financial assets BEHEE 4,784,487 - 18,654 4,803,141
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.2

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued)

(a)

Classification and measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities g 3=N
Accounts payable JERTBRR
Payables arising from ER

securities and futures EEER
broking R
Financial liabilities included /2147 2 4t fE ff

in other payablesand ~ ERF R EFHA
accruals EZHBERE
Derivative financial TESBTA
instruments
Interest-bearing bank FTERTER
borrowings
Bullion loans ELBREE
Total financial liabilities 81 % & &

L&R: Loans and receivables

AFS: Available-for-sale investments

Note:

22 EHBRRRKEZ28(HE)

@) PERHE(E)
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
measurement measurement
BRETERE95 ERUBRERMEIR
bt ih
Re-
Re- measure-
Category Amount dlassification ment Amount Category
o)l &8 EXDR EifirR &8 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEn TEn ThR ThR
AC 122,071 - - 122,071 AC
AC 574,048 - - 574,048 AC
AC 264,895 = = 264,895 AC
FVPL 4,394 - - 4,394 FVPL
AC 1,002,203 - - 1,002,203 AC
FVPL 1,069,873 = = 1,069,873 FVPL
3,037,484 = = 3,037,484

AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at amortized cost

FVOCI: Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income

FVPL: Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

The Group has elected the option to irrevocably designate its previous available-
for-sale equity investments as financial assets designated at fair value through

other comprehensive income.

' L8R BERREMAER

> OAC: BB AR SIS A E AT
BafE

’ RVOCI: IBEAKRATEEFAEM
2HEBENMBEEE

fOAFS : AIfHERE

* FVPL: BRAFEEFABENHEE
EXMBARE

B

A WD BT BT E B 2T
HIERGREAREBRATFEENA
Hp 2 ERGHBHEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued) 2.2
(@)  Impairment (a)

The Group has determined that there is no significant financial
impact on the opening impairment allowances under HKAS 39 to
the ECL allowances under HKFRS 9.

Hedge accounting
The adoption of the hedge accounting requirements of HKFRS 9 has
had no impact on the Group's financial statements.

Impact on reserves
The impact of transition to HKFRS 9 on reserves is as follows:

Fair value reserve under HKFRS 9 (Investment
revaluation reserve under HKAS 39)
Balance as at 31 December 2017 under HKAS 39
#8395 2 ek
Remeasurement of financial assets designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income previously
measured at cost under HKAS 39 ZENENTBEE
Balance as at 1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9
ERE 95 2 5

(b)  HKFRS 15 and its amendments replaces HKAS 11 Construction (b)
Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations and
it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-
step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognizing revenue. The standard
also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset and
liability account balances between periods and key judgements
and estimates. The disclosures are included in notes 3 and 5 to the
financial statements. As a result of the application of HKFRS 15, the
Group has changed the accounting policy with respect to revenue
recognition in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

B BERRE228 (H)

J1E

AEERABRERESENS
BB ERBEERREE
HBRERAFEIFZRBEES
BREEREELEAYBTE -

Hrei B E
RABERBRELERFE IR Y
HETREREHAEE ZHBR

H By 48
ERIE:S

L=
Bk 4

BREEREMBRELENEIRY
T EMT -

Reserves
f&1E
HK$'000
FET

RAERIMBRSLNE IR 2 AT RERRE
(REEERIENE R 2 RABEHE)
R-E—tE+-A=t-BREESE:

872,035

B ERARBEREGHEE39%EK
AR ZHETE BN FEEF AR

18,654

R-Z—\F—H-HREEBEVBRS

890,689

EAMHRELNEISHERAE
BEHERENRELEAY T
BB F 185 WA KRR
B BRAOEpIsMERSIN - EERR
FERERFANEEZIN - &
B IS RE &R FE 155 T A A
SEMFIRER - UERRERF
BRIz - REBEBBHMISREE
AIZE155%  WMARERZ & HEEE

MERBEHRARFPEZERRRS
mAERRZRE - FEMBEHRE
EAFISHZRAREEALRE
MR E RERWARN X - 2
ARl AREEURTEREE
Ko B RALE  BEHEEY
BEAZER  ANBENREERR
EHNSBE 2 UREXYH
BfhE - ZERBECBEENE
WEMFIRKES - ARKEAS
B BREERE15%  AKE
BRI RE N T 2.4 AR
AERZEFBUR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.2

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued)

(b)

The Group adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified retrospective
method of adoption. Under this method, the standard can be
applied either to all contracts at the date of initial application or
only to contracts that are not completed at this date. The Group
has elected to apply the standard to all contracts that are not
completed as at 1 January 2018.

The cumulative effect of initially application of HKFRS 15 was
recognized as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits as at 1 January 2018. Therefore, the comparative information
was not restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 11,
HKAS 18 and related interpretations.

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial statement
line item was affected as at 1 January 2018 as a result of the
adoption of HKFRS 15:

BE

Assets
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets

B

Liabilities
Other payables and accruals

Ei
REEN

Equity
Retained profits

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial statement
line item was affected as at 31 December 2018 and for the year
ended 31 December 2018 as a result of the adoption of HKFRS
15. The adoption of HKFRS 15 has had no impact on other
comprehensive income or the Group’s operating, investing and
financing cash flows. The first column shows what the amounts
recorded under HKFRS 15 and the second column shows the
amounts would have been had HKFRS 15 not been adopted:
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.

TXEI BRAT RN S ER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MR E M

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued) 22 EHHERBEZ#E(H)

(b)  Consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 (b)
December 2018:

BE_Z-N\Ft_A=t+—HIF
FEZGAEEE

Amounts prepared under

BEATENGHRNEE
Previous Increase/
HKFRS 15 HKFRS (decrease)
BRMBRE BETENE #,
ZRIZE 155 REER] (R2)
No;e HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
B s TEx FTEx FER
Turnover e (i) 18,806,342 18,806,770 (428)
Cost of sales SHERA (i) (14,175,208)  (14,175,503) (295)
Gross profit =S 4,631,134 4,631,267 (133)
Profit before tax BREL AR A 1,322,651 1,322,784 (133)
Income tax PSR (iii) (310,394) (310,427) (33)
Profit for the year attributable to AR GEZREE A
equity holders of the Company JEAh F P 1,012,257 1,012,357 (100)
Earnings per share attributable to AR TERFEE A
equity holders of the Company e B2
Basic HR 149.4 centsfll  149.4 centsill -

Diluted 3 149.4 cents{ll

149.4 cents{l =

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December

RZZE-NF+ZRA=1+—HZ#&

2018: EHMBRAE
Amounts prepared under
REATERFERNEE
Previous Increase/
HKFRS 15 HKFRS (decrease)
BRMBEE BESTEME i,/
RS 155 HEEA (R2)
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bz FHT FEx FExT
Prepayments, other receivables FARFRIE - AR
and other assets ERREMEE (i) 327,377 327,014 363
Total assets BEE 13,838,036 13,837,673 363
Other payables and accruals H A AT BR AR e
FEFTIE A (i), (i) 491,875 491,379 496
Tax payable FEF IR (iii) 125,812 125,845 (33)
Total liabilities BAEE 3,419,099 3,418,636 463
Net assets EEFE 10,418,937 10,419,037 (100)
Retained profits RE AT (i) 7,785,812 7,785,912 (100)
Total equity B 10,418,937 10,419,037 (100)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.2

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued)

(b)

The nature of the adjustments as at 1 January 2018 and the reasons
for the changes in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2018 and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 are described below:

Sale of jewellery with variable consideration

Some contracts for the sale of jewellery through e-shops
provide customers with a right of return. Before adopting
of HKFRS 15, the Group recognized revenue from the sale
of goods measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of returns and trade discounts. If
revenue could not be reliably measured, the Group deferred
revenue recognition until the uncertainty was resolved. Under
HKFRS 15, rights of return gives rise to variable consideration
which is determined using the expected value method or the
most likely amount method.

Rights of return

Upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group recognized a right-
of-return asset which is included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets and is measured at the former
carrying amount of the goods to be returned less any
expected costs to recover the goods, including any potential
decreases in the value of the returned goods. In addition,
a refund liability was recognized based on the amount that
the Group expects to return to the customers using the
expected value method. Accordingly, the remeasurement of
refund liabilities resulted in additional refund liabilities of
HK$501,000 and right-of-return assets of HK$326,000 as
at 1 January 2018, which resulted in a decrease in retained
profits of HK$175,000.

As at 31 December 2018, the adoption of HKFRS 15 resulted
in an increase in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets by HK$363,000. Besides, other payables and accruals
were increased by HK$496,000, and there was a decrease
in retained profits of HK$100,000. Turnover and cost of
sales were decreased by HK$428,000 and HK$295,000,
respectively, for the year ended 31 December 2018.

22 ENBRRRKEZ28(HE)
b) RZFE-NF-—H-—HZHE
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I
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RNE A B REERZE 15
SRRl AEBIEE YR
REZATEEFERER
BRRZFNERHEEE N
A o YR ATBE AT SE
e AEEREERERR
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ZALE - REFBTBRE
KR 155 EE#SIHK
EEAERE  HAHEAE
HEBEARBAUELEHE
ERTE ©

REE
REB BV BHREERSE 15
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AE 2 REREER =T
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EEREH WIE)
TE - BHh R AELJHE
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B%iTE o Bt EFEE
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%4> 175,000 7T °

RZE-NEF+=A=+—
B KAEBUBHREE
AEISHESBEMNRE £
fib JE U BR R R EAth B B
71363,0008 7T > B4 H
ftb J& 1 BR 3K &Fﬁﬁaﬁ
71496,0007 7T » 1% & % Fl
8155 4> 100,000 7T © 1k
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.2

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued)

(b)

0)

(ii)

(iff)

Sale of jewellery with variable consideration (continued)

Customer loyalty program

The Group's retail of jewellery segment operates a customer
loyalty program, which allows customers to accumulate
award credits when they purchase products in the Group's
retail stores. The award credits can be redeemed for
discounts on products in a limited period. Prior to adoption
of HKFRS 15, the customer loyalty program offered by
the Group resulted in the allocation of a portion of the
transaction price to the customer loyalty program using the
fair value of award credits granted for which they could be
redeemed and recognition of deferred revenue in relation to
award credits granted but not yet redeemed or expired. The
Group concluded that under HKFRS 15, the customer loyalty
program gives rise to a separate performance obligation
because they provide a material right to the customer and
allocated a portion of the transaction price to the loyalty
credits awarded to customers based on the relative stand-
alone selling price. The Group determined that, considering
the relative stand-alone selling prices, the amount allocated
to the loyalty program compared with that before adoption
of HKFRS 15 was not significant and thus, no adjustment
was made to the opening balance of retained profits as at 1
January 2018.

Consideration received from customers in advance

Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group recognized
consideration received from customers in advance as other
payables. Under HKFRS 15, the amount is classified as
contract liabilities which is included in other payables and
accruals.

Therefore, upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group reclassified
HK$48,633,000 from other payables to contract liabilities as
at 1 January 2018 in relation to the consideration received
from customers in advance as at 1 January 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, under HKFRS 15, HK$38,175,000
was reclassified from other payables to contract liabilities
in relation to the consideration received from customers in
advance for the sale of jewellery.

Other adjustments

In addition to the adjustments described above, other items
of the primary financial statements such as tax was adjusted
as necessary. Retained profits were adjusted accordingly.

2.2
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(if)

(iii)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.3

Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that

have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Definition of a Business”

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between

an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Leases'

Insurance Contracts®

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement'

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
HKAS 12 and HKAS 23'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
* No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

2.3
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.3

Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable
to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on the
definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an integrated set
of activities and assets to be considered a business, it must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs. The
amendments remove the assessment of whether market participants
are capable of acquiring the business and continue to produce outputs.
Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive
processes together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
The amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus
on goods or services provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide
guidance to assess whether an acquired process is substantive and
introduce an optional fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2020.

2.3
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.3

Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases —
Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to recognize assets and liabilities for most leases.
The standard includes two elective recognition exemptions for lessees —
leases of low-value assets and short-term leases. At the commencement
date of a lease, a lessee will recognize a liability to make lease payments
(i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The
right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset
meets the definition of investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a
class of property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation model is
applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest
on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be
required to separately recognize the interest expense on the lease liability
and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also
be required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain
events, such as change in the lease term and change in future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments. Lessees will generally recognize the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use
asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from
the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
using the same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish
between operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees
and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under HKAS 17.
Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either a full retrospective
or a modified retrospective approach. The Group will adopt HKFRS 16
from 1 January 2019. The Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions
in HKFRS 16 to recognize the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits at 1 January 2019
and will not restate the comparatives. In addition, the Group plans to
apply the new requirements to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and measure the lease liability at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group's
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The right-of-
use asset will be measured at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted
by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the lease recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position
immediately before the date of initial application. The Group plans to use
the exemptions allowed by the standard on lease contracts whose lease
terms end within 12 months as of the date of initial application.

2.3
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.3

Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

As disclosed in note 38(b) to the financial statements, at 31
December 2018, the Group had future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate of approximately
HK$1,240,545,000. Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, certain amounts included
therein may need to be recognized as new right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities. Further analysis, however, will be needed to determine the
amount of new rights of use assets and lease liabilities to be recognized,
including, but not limited to, any amounts relating to leases of low-value
assets and short-term leases, other practical expedients and reliefs chosen,
and new leases entered into before the date of adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of material.
The new definition states that information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. The amendments clarify
that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information.
A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions made by the primary users. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes (current
and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”).
The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope
of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to
interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an entity considers
uncertain tax treatments separately; (i) the assumptions an entity makes
about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how
an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers
changes in facts and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the use of hindsight or
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of application as an adjustment
to the opening equity at the date of initial application, without the
restatement of comparative information. The Group expects to adopt the
interpretation from 1 January 2019. The interpretation is not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

2.3

CRBEMERERZEBMFREER (H)

N BE RS SR A KT 38T E B
—E-N\F+-_A=+—0  KEERE
TGRSRz ARZERETBEE
$£491,240,545,000 78 7T - NIRAE B
B|MEERZE 16571 - “¢Z”Fé%
T%K w%ﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁmﬁ1

C REBBEE—S AW M%m%
EWZﬁﬁ%%QF&ﬁ%EL BEE
TENMEAEREEEEERY M EHA
WHSE  DEDZHMATESERER
B% - ARRERMNZER B EIRTRT A 2 31
L o

BREEFREAE 1R REBEGTEAES
SRIERIAFTREANE ZHER © FERT
B AR EREHEER SRR
FRATAEFE-RAEHBERENT
EEREENZSTVBRSHELORE

AIEFBERREERER - ZFEATE
B BERMESIVRRERMHEEZIAN o
hTA@ﬁﬂﬂéﬂmﬁﬁﬁkawai
EEMEMENRE - AIRAERERR
o ARBERPHE T _FF—A—H
RERFERERRZFER] - ZFEF]

BT HAREM B REENERY
.,

55 (BRVBEREREZES) - 2E
F23RMiE mﬁﬁﬁﬁ&%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ
BEERE 2R TEEE(—RTEA
[HEERIBAR T ) B (BNER B ) 15
BMzeRERE ZRBETNEAR
EEGTENF12RBEIN ZFH BRI
E S HUEARARABETEEHER
BIABREFRZAE - 2R BARHY
(WVEBELEEEBEETERE (i)
?nﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%gﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm?
(I ERETERRR arlHEESE &
= %@%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%&
MEZAN: R(vVVEREEZTEMER
BE AN c ZRBETEYER  UE
BB EAERNZEBYERIN ISR
EREBIEASES ZAE L5728
%ML%%% ﬁ%ﬁiﬂmféﬂ VN
SEEHE - NF—A—BREB%
R - ZRE EH&@H#T\EQKEIZEM‘%
BEEEANEATE -

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESEERAERRA

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
2018 F R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net assets under
the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group's
share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of
associate is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognized directly in the equity
of the associate, the Group recognizes its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealized
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group's investment in
the associate, except where unrealized losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture
or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method. In
all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the
Group measures and recognizes any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss
of significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognized in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognized for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognized in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated retained profits

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement of Standard Accounting
Practice 30 Business Combinations in 2001, goodwill arising on
acquisition was eliminated against consolidated retained profits in the
year of acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3, such goodwill remains
eliminated against consolidated retained profits and is not recognized
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when all or part of the
business to which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-
generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, customer gold deposits,
bullion loans, derivative financial instruments and certain financial assets
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax
assets, financial assets, investment properties and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortization) had
no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and

that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other

entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third

party,

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the

Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or

to the parent of the Group.

24 FESTBEBE@E

BEAL

EToE

38

(a)
E ,
(i)
(i)
(iii)

5

(b) #&A
A :
(i)
(i)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)

AT — KR RERREE

BHR—RAALTHZALZEERR

AL

HARERAZHERAR
PR

HAKBHREAEEATEN
B

AARESAREEATY
TBERERE

RER MEMNRTGEE

—ERASER(ES—
ERZBLRF WEBAR®
REMBAR) ZHE AT
HAEDH
ZERNAEERR—F=
EZRERTA
—ERBRE=EZAREAR
Al ME—ERRZE=%
ZHERT
ZERATEESAAEE
BRENEROER MR
Rk ENEE

ZEBX(FERALE
T SR R -

(@) TRz AT HZEE
BEAVESN XARER
(RZEBZHRF])ZEE
EEENE : &
ERNHEMBERE 2 EM
BRAMAEENAER
BARREEEEEABR

WS

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

BELESEHEBEAERAA

@

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

2018 F R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalized in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognizes
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
or valuation of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Freehold land
Leasehold land and buildings

Not depreciated

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 2.5%

Plant and machinery 10% to 30%

Leasehold improvements, furniture,
fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles

20% to 33%
30%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognized in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognized is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalized borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

The transitional provisions set out in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment have been adopted for property, plant and
equipment stated at valuation. As a result, those assets stated at revalued
amounts based on revaluations which were reflected in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 1993 have not been revalued
by class at the end of the reporting period. On disposal of a revalued
asset, the relevant portion of the leasehold land and buildings revaluation
reserve realized in respect of the previous valuations is transferred to
retained profits as a movement in reserves.

For a transfer from owner-occupied properties to investment properties,
the related revaluation surplus is retained in the leasehold land and
buildings revaluation reserve and remains there until the subsequent
disposal or retirement of the property, where by that time the revaluation
surplus is transferred to retained profits.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in leasehold land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property)
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the year of
the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties,
the deemed cost of a property for subsequent accounting is its fair
value at the date of change in use. If a property occupied by the Group
as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the
date of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a
revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortized
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

The Group's intangible assets, representing eligibility rights to trade
on or through The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited (the “Futures
Exchange”), have indefinite useful lives and are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortized. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change
in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from the derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset and are recognized in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the
Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are
charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at
cost and subsequently recognized on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in the
cost of the leasehold land and buildings as a finance lease in property,
plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortized cost, fair value designated through other
comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s
business model for managing them. With the exception of accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts receivable
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)" below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized
cost or fair value designated through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (“SPPI"”) on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets at amortized cost if both of the
following conditions are met:

J The financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows.

J The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified

dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses
are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its
equity investments as financial assets designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of equity
under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognized as other
income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits
from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income are not subject to impairment assessment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets
held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at
fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required
to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortized cost or
at fair value through other comprehensive income, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at fair value through profit or loss
on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments which
the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also recognized
as other income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available-for-
sale financial assets, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognized
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

(a)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial
position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognized
in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes
do not include any dividends on these financial assets, which are
recognized in accordance with the policy set out for “Revenue
recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)" below.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortization is included in other income
in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are neither classified
as held for trading nor designated as at fair value through profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKAS 39

applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

(@

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealized gains or
losses recognized as other comprehensive income in the investment
revaluation reserve until the available-for-sale financial assets
are derecognized, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss, or until the available-
for-sale financial assets are determined to be impaired, when
the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the investment
revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or loss. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
assets are reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as
other income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)" below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (i) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (ii) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating the fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has the
ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification
becomes its new amortized cost and any previous gain or loss on
that asset that has been recognized in equity is amortized to profit
or loss over the remaining life of the assets using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortized cost and
the maturity amount is also amortized over the remaining life of the
asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018 and policies under HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed
from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognizes
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognizes an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments not
held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing
of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018) (continued)

General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortized cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for accounts receivable which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal

to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization
and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and
for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognized in the statement profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or
has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss
increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on
an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because its
fair value cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets
are not reversed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, the Group assesses at the end of
each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that an asset or
a group of assets is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortization) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognized in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognized in the statement for profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, objective
evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against
the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the period
in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there
is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the statement
of profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed through the
statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment
are recognized directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an investment is
less than its cost.

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1
January 2018 and policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings or payables, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1
January 2018 and policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

(a)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on
liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit
or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognized in the statement
of profit or loss does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains
or losses on liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss are recognized in the statement of profit or loss, except for
the gains or losses arising from the Group’s own credit risk which
are presented in other comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognized in the statement of profit or loss does not
include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1
January 2018 and policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

(a)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by
the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
The net fair value gain or loss recognized in the statement of profit
or loss does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss, including bullion loans, are designated
at the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39
are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognized as well as through the effective interest rate
amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortization
is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1
January 2018 and policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
(c)  Financial guarantee contracts (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognized initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in
accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment of financial
assets (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)";
and (i) the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognized.

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018)

A financial guarantee contract is recognized initially as a liability
at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period; and (i) the amount initially recognized less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortization.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognized
in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018 and policies under HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as bullion contracts,
cross currency swaps and foreign currency forward contracts, to hedge
its bullion price risk and foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and
as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are
taken directly to the statement of profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost
is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of work in
progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of production overheads. Net realizable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognized for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized,
except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are
only recognized to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realize the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognized under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods represents the net invoiced value of
goods sold, after allowances for returns, trade discounts and value
added tax and is recognized at the point in time when control of
the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the

goods.

Some contracts for the sale of jewellery through e-shops provide
customers with a right of return. The right of return gives rise to
variable consideration.

(i)

(ii)

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to
return the goods within a specified period, the expected
value method is used to estimate the goods that will not be
returned because this method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled.
The requirements in HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates of
variable consideration are applied in order to determine the
amount of variable consideration that can be included in the
transaction price. For goods that are expected to be returned,
instead of revenue, a refund liability is recognized. A right-
of-return asset (and the corresponding adjustment to cost
of sales) is also recognized for the right to recover products
from a customer.

Customer loyalty program

The Group's retail of jewellery segment operates a customer
loyalty program, which allows customers to accumulate
award credits when they purchase products in the Group’s
retail stores. The award credits can be redeemed for
discounts on products in a limited period. Under HKFRS
15, the customer loyalty program gives rise to a separate
performance obligation because they provide a material right
to the customer and allocated a portion of the transaction
price to the loyalty credits awarded to customers based on
the relative stand-alone selling price.

Commission on securities and futures broking

Revenue from the commission on securities and futures broking is
recognized at the point in time when the relevant contract notes
are executed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Revenue from other sources
Rental income is recognized on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.

Other income
Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Dividend income is recognized when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

Income from the sale of investments at fair value through profit or loss are
recognized on the transaction dates when the relevant contract notes are
executed.

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the
following bases:

(@)  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

sales of goods that result in award credits for customers, under the
Group's customer loyalty program, are accounted for as multiple
element revenue transactions and the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable is allocated between the goods supplied
and the award credits granted. The consideration allocated to the
award credits is measured by reference to the fair value of the
awards for which they could be redeemed. Such consideration is
not recognized as revenue at the time of the initial sale transaction
- but is deferred and recognized as revenue when the award credits
are redeemed or expired upon the Group's obligations have been
fulfilled;

from the rendering of services, in the period in which such services
are provided;

commission on securities and futures broking, on the transaction
dates when the relevant contract notes are executed;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

(e)

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;

(f) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset;

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive payment
has been established; and

income from the sale of investments at fair value through profit
or loss and available-for-sale investments, on the transaction dates
when the relevant contract notes are executed.

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 January 2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received a consideration (or an amount
of consideration that is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
the consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the
customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

Right-of-return assets (applicable from 1 January 2018)

A right-of-return asset represents the Group’s right to recover the goods
expected to be returned by customers. The asset is measured at the
former carrying amount of the goods to be returned, less any expected
costs to recover the goods, including any potential decreases in the value
of the returned goods. The Group updates the measurement of the asset
recorded for any revisions to its expected level of returns, as well as any
additional decreases in the value of the returned goods.

Refund liabilities (applicable from 1 January 2018)

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the
consideration received (or receivable) from the customer and is measured
at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to return to
the customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and
the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each
reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group's operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after 7
November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer
using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized in employee benefit
expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and
end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an
award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are
also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met, no expense is recognized.
When awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken at the end of the
reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilized by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made at the end
of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid leave
earned during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes and other retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ relevant income and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund.

The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China and Taiwan are required to participate in central pension schemes
operated by the respective local municipal governments. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute certain percentages of their payroll costs to the
central pension schemes. The contributions are charged to the statement
of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the respective central pension schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds, and they are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognized as liabilities when they are approved by the
shareholders in general meetings. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association and bye-laws grant
the Directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognized immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is the
Company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its
own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognized in the statement of profit
or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or
loss is recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date
of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognizes
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries operating outside Hong
Kong are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are translated into
Hong Kong dollar at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognized in the statement
of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the cash flows of
subsidiaries operating outside Hong Kong are translated into Hong
Kong dollar at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of subsidiaries operating outside Hong
Kong which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollar at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements:

(@) Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group applied the following judgements that significantly
affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from
contracts with customers:

Determining the method to estimate variable consideration and
assessing the constraint for the retail of jewellery

Certain contracts for the retail of jewellery through e-shops
include a right of return that give rise to variable consideration.
In estimating the variable consideration, the Group is required to
exercise judgement to determine the use of either the expected
value method or the most likely amount method based on which
method better predicts the amount of consideration to which it will
be entitled.

The Group determined that the expected value method is the
appropriate method to use in estimating the variable consideration
for the sale of jewellery with rights of return, given the large
number of customer contracts that have similar characteristics.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the
transaction price, the Group considers whether the amount of
variable consideration is constrained. The Group determined that
the estimates of variable consideration are not constrained based on
its historical experience, business forecast and the current economic
conditions. In addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration
will be resolved within a short time frame.

(b)  Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor
The Group has entered into property leases on its investment
property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it
retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

&

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)
Judgements (continued)

(c)  Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion
that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property only
if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

(@)  Variable consideration for returns
The Group estimates variable consideration to be included in the
transaction price for the sale of jewellery with rights of return.

The Group developed a statistical model for forecasting sales
returns. The model used the historical return data of each product
to come up with expected return percentages. These percentages
are applied to determine the expected value of the variable
consideration. Any significant changes in experience as compared to
historical return pattern will impact the expected return percentages
estimated by the Group.

The Group updates its assessment of expected returns half yearly
and the refund liabilities are adjusted accordingly. Estimates
of expected returns are sensitive to changes in circumstances
and the Group’s past experience regarding returns may not be
representative of customers’ actual returns in the future. As at 31
December 2018, the amount recognized as refund liabilities was
HK$496,000 for the expected returns.

(b)  Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The Group’s unlisted equity investments have been valued using the
income capitalization method and net realizable value method. This
valuation requires the Group to make estimates about capitalization
rates, and hence they are subject to uncertainty. The fair value
of the unlisted equity investments as at 31 December 2018 was
HK$37,287,000 (2017: HK$19,620,000). Further details are
included in note 20 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

&

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(©

(d)

(e)

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts receivable

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for accounts
receivable. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geography, product type and customer type and
rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the next
year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the retail
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes
in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions
may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s accounts
receivable is disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further
details are contained in note 33 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment annually
and at other times when such an indicator exists. Other non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
estimates the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and chooses a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

3. EEEGAERMGT(E)

fib &t 7 B BA R 3 (4
© [BUREAEGEEERRERE

(@)

(e)

A& B AR B H YRR
ZEREEEE o BELRDER
AERUBREAZZERF D
mRlzafRgEE(RE - E
IR B P RRIARFER) o

BRBEEETNRENAKEZELE
RENE - REBEERIEREREE
BAIEMEENAREL EREERL
o fln - 8 TEH B R F (A
WAEERE)SERK—FBI
BHRTEXBNHAEN MR
BELEOR -NEHRERH F
EBEMBMENXKTER I
AR MR L -

HESBRAFHENE Bl
REARR BB EREERZFEN
MBEMRHE A —BE A - B
EEBRSBEHRERACER
NZBILBRAERE - KRB 2 FESE
EEBRER KGR
TABRKRAREP 2 BERENIE
neo ARAASERKEXEASRE
EBBRZBHEBERP RGN T
22 ¢

CRPERE
ABBEEE - 0 R E IR
AR R 2 BRI - HHER
RELHRBEE - BEAERZE
LERBEELHE  EEEERE
RO FEER i M) 2 A BE s ] Bk
R AR B R A L EAH
BT o E—FHBRNUBREME
33°

HHBEERERE(BEEI)
AEBERNEEHRE HRFEE2HIF
WHEBERESFEEAAETR
BERERFH BV EESFAN
BRETREETRERH - 2
FUBEERNBRRBREKAEER]
BN RE B R ETTRERIE o &
EFRCELEN 2 REEBAHE
AfEeE(BERNFEERLE
RAREGEREEIREE) A
BERE - R FEERBEKNAT
RERUBREZ A TRAZ 550 AL
RNHEXZABEBLTERT
BHRHEEE JRIBKAE -
REAEREENER  EEER
MAMH KA EESREEL BN
ZARBERE  MEREERR
RUFEZSREREZRE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

&

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(")

(@)

Measurement of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the statement of financial
position at their fair value. The fair value was based on valuation on
these properties conducted by an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers using property valuation techniques which involve
making assumptions on certain market conditions. Favorable or
unfavorable changes to these assumptions would result in changes
in the fair value of the Group's investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the gain or loss recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimation costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal. These estimates, based on the current market condition
and the historical experience in selling goods of a similar nature,
include economic outlook, sales forecasts and the forecast market
value for the jewellery products, etc. It could change significantly as
a result of changes in market conditions. The Group reassesses the
estimation at the end of each reporting period.

Operating Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units
based on their products and services and has four reportable operating
segments as follows:

(a)

the manufacture and retail of jewellery segment produces jewellery
products for the Group's retail business and operates retail stores
mainly in Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China and Taiwan;

the wholesale of precious metals segment trades precious metals to
wholesale customers;

the securities and futures broking segment provides brokering and
dealing services for securities and futures; and

the other businesses segment comprises, principally, the investment
in properties for their rental income and capital appreciation
potential, and other jewellery related businesses.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit before
tax. The adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax except that certain dividend income, gain on
disposal of available-for-sale investments, gain on disposal of an associate
and share of profit of an associate are excluded from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.

4.

FTESTHBR A ()
flb &t T B BA R 3 (4

) KEYRZLFEEE
REMEZREDFEERTBRR
RINE - RAFEBEDREBLEE
ABRGEMITRAMERGETE
OF REETHEMRREHRR)E
REPEETZEEMNE - %ZF
BRZBFLINEBHEHAE
ERENEZATEEHREGR
HESRER RSB RELR
EHRE -

(9) FRZAZHEFE

FEZAERFEDRIEMAEE
WE TR SRR EE 2 Effh
ATCARTE © e E AT T AR B
ARBUEEE R BEHELR
REE(BRGENS  HERE
RERREEmLMES) - A&
RFEATERTRAZHMHREX
28 - AEENSERSHREHR
BRCEAERI

REDHEN

HEEME - ARENRAERRRES
DEBEA - EERATEER2HEED

%

(6 HELERTEIBAALET
EEBBEHEER - YLENE
% AP FEAERESEET
5
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RAEGBANGN 25t H - ERERBANS
MzatEHABAEERH AT NFTE T
AEB—B HEETRSWA - HEAH
HERE W  HEBERR 2GR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

4.  Operating Segment Information (continued)

Year ended
31 December 2018

Segment revenue
Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales

Reconciliation:
Elimination of
intersegment sales

Segment results

Reconciliation:

Dividend income

Gain on disposal of an
associate

Share of profit of an
associate

Profit before tax

4. REIDER(E)

Manufacture Wholesale Securities
and retail  of precious and futures Other
of jewellery metals broking  businesses Total
RERE ESE EHFR Hith
REE #a HEgR % ait
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i TR TET THT TET TET
B2-2-)N\%
+=A=+-H
LEE
2k 5
HETINREP 17,130,414 1,602,531 34,513 38,884 18,806,342
NEfEE - 1,177,438 - 3,105 1,180,543
17,130,414 2,779,969 34,513 41,989 19,986,885
e
N EE
(1,180,543)
18,806,342
DHEE 1,205,170 14,088 42,815 9,502 1,271,575
e
BREMA 24,217
HERE AT
pdl/ i 26,614
i3 =N
i 245
BR A AT 1,322,651
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

4,

Operating Segment Information (continued)

Year ended
31 December 2018

Other segment
information

Interest income

Dividend income

Net fair value gain on
investment properties

Net fair value loss on
bullion loans designated
as at fair value through
profit or loss

Net fair value loss/
(gain) on derivative
financial instruments
- transactions not
qualifying as hedges

Net fair value loss on
financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss

Net gain on bullion loans
designated as at fair
value through profit or
loss

Net loss on disposal of
derivative financial
instruments

Net loss on disposal of
items of property, plant
and equipment

Depreciation

Amortization of prepaid
land lease payments

Impairment of accounts
receivable

Write-down of inventories
to net realizable value

Finance costs

Capital expenditure

Manufacture
and retail
of jewellery
RERE
REE
HK$'000
THET
BE-_Z-N\&§
+=A=+-H
LEE
Hit A HEH
FIEWA (26,525)
% B =
KEMEZ ATEE
Fl -
EEARATEER]
TREBCELE
EENATEE
FEE 29,353
TESRIAZ AT
EBEFER/ (K
&) - THEER
EBELRD
3,522
BATEEAES
RBEEZ AT
EBEFEBE
EEAEAFER
AERECESE
fEE e
(11,811)
HEMESRTA
FEE
5,309
HEME - HB R
BEEFEE
2,302
nE 209,745
TR T
HEHE 281
RN RSB E
8,459
WHEGTERZH
FE 706
HBER 31,201
EAERAS 336,931

Wholesale
of precious
metals
BEtE
Filgy
HK$'000
TERT

(12)

(512)

448

4., REFIWER(E)
Securities

and futures Other
broking businesses
BHEK Hith
HERL £
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TERT
(68,119) (6)
(481) -
- (10,647)
3,478 -
88 -
2,395 384
5,790 -
1,261 -

Total
i
HK$'000
TERT

(94,662)
(481)

(10,647)

29,353

3,010

3,478

(11,811)
5,757
2,390

212,524

281
8,459
706

36,991
338,192
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MR E M

4.  Operating Segment Information (continued) 4, RBEFBEHNE)
Manufacture Wholesale Securities
and retail of precious and futures Other
of jewellery metals broking businesses Total
HERE EeE EFHR Hot
RTE # 3 LIS %% Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THAT FAT TAT TAT
Year ended BE-T—t&
31 December 2017 +=A=+—-8H
LEE
Segment revenue a6
Sales to external customers $5& FINKE P 14,516,326 2,032,818 34,353 49,884 16,633,381
Intersegment sales NEBHE = 705,541 = 3,084 708,625
14,516,326 2,738,359 34,353 52,968 17,342,006
Reconciliation: ZEAT -
Elimination of HEHNIEE
intersegment sales (708,625)
16,633,381
Segment results PHEE 901,990 14,732 48,013 34,364 999,099
Reconciliation: HED
Dividend income fREWA 19,902
Gain on disposal of HEAHEEREZ
available-for-sale Wz
investments 113,948
Share of profit of an (=N
associate St Al 4,550
Profit before tax B Tt Al s A 1,137,499
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

Operating Segment Information (continued)

Year ended
31 December 2017

Other segment
information

Interest income

Dividend income

Net fair value gain on
investment properties

Net fair value loss on
bullion loans designated
as at fair value through
profit or loss

Net fair value loss on
derivative financial
instruments —
transactions not
qualifying as hedges

Net fair value gain on
financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss

Net loss on bullion loans
designated as at fair
value through profit or
loss

Net loss/(gain) on disposal
of derivative financial
instruments

Net gain on disposal of
financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss

Net loss/(gain) on disposal
of items of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation

Amortization of prepaid
land lease payments

Write-down of inventories
to net realizable value

Finance costs

Capital expenditure

BE-B—tf
t=A=+-H
LEE

Hitvn BEH

MEHA

EHA

REME 2 AFHEE
e

HERRRFEER
TREZETE
RENATEE
FER

MTEEMIAZAT
BERER - 179
AHNERLRS

BAYEEARR
MM BEEZ DT
BTG

HERBRRFER
AERECETR
fEEFER

HEMESRIA
FERE/ (k)

HERRFEEA
BEmNMBEE

e

HENE - #ERR
BIEBFER/
(Yezs)

e

- EEhE Nt
MEFE

MEFEETEH
FE

MBER

BARMRAY

Manufacture
and retail

of jewellery
KERE
RTE
HK$'000
TAT

(15,782)

30,412

3,181

44,485

(2,930)

2,746
189,781

273
3,653

24,837
212,500

Wholesale
of precious
metals
EEB
#rE
HK$'000
TAT

542

647

4., REFIWER(E)

Securities

and futures Other

broking businesses

EHR Hith

LI H S *7%

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT FAT

(59,552) (6)

(921) -

- (20,910)

(3,175) -

(3,814) -

(48) -

1,849 379

6,207 -

3,253 -

Total
At
HK$'000
TAT

(75,341)
(921)

(20,910)

30,412

3,723

44,485

(2,283)

(3,814)
2,698
192,009
273
3,653

31,044
215,753
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

4.  Operating Segment Information (continued)

(@) Geographical information
Revenue from external customers
Hong Kong and Macau B KR
Mainland China A B KRE
Taiwan 28
The revenue information above is based on the locations of the
customers.
Non-current assets
Hong Kong and Macau B KR
Mainland China B K BE
Taiwan =8
The non-current asset information above is based on the locations
of the assets and excludes financial assets designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income, available-for-sale investments
and deferred tax assets.
(b) Information about major customers

The turnover from the Group's largest customer amounted to less
than 10% of the Group’s total turnover for the current and prior
years.

5. Turnover

Revenue from the following activities has been included in turnover:

Revenue from contracts with customers FKEEF G W
Sale of goods EmiHE

Commission on securities and futures

BEREPELLABERA

broking
Revenue from other sources FER M W
Gross rental income ae A

4. REIBERE)

(a) HEEH
HETFIKELZ W
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
9,363,640 8,508,410
9,328,580 8,031,837
114,122 93,134
18,806,342 16,633,381
i B R TR R B
o
HRBEE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
692,549 727,071
684,081 586,209
27,642 26,145
1,404,272 1,339,425
FHEREEEEMTIREEME
WwEES YAeEREETARA
FEEFAEBEZERSENETEE
E THHEREREEHREE
E o
(b) BBEFTEEFzEHR
RAREER EFEREXAEBZA
RF B A EREERY
LR10% °
5 EER
BEBEEATER 2 Wk
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
18,760,039 16,587,627
34,513 34,353
11,790 11,401
18,806,342 16,633,381
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

5.

Turnover (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information

Segments

For the year ended
31 December 2018

Types of goods or services
Sale of goods
Securities and futures broking

Total revenue from contracts with
customers

Geographical markets
Hong Kong and Macau
Mainland China

Taiwan

Total revenue from contracts with
customers

Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point in
time

Set out below the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts with

customers with the amounts disclosed in the segment information:

Segments

For the year ended
31 December 2018

Revenue from contracts with
customers

External customers

Intersegment sales

Intersegment adjustments and
eliminations

Total revenue from contracts with
customers

5. EEHE(E
REEFEHzRE
() DB EH
Manufacture Wholesale Securities
and retail  of precious and futures Other
2 of jewellery metals broking  businesses Total
RERE ESE EHER Hity
REE #a HERK % ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TER TET TERT
BEZ-_Z-)\%
+=A=1-A
LEEE
ERREER
EmiHE 17,130,414 1,602,531 - 27,094 18,760,039
HErRBEER - - 34,513 - 34,513
REEPEH
Fllogs 17,130,414 1,602,531 34,513 27,094 18,794,552
B S
B RRF 7,688,991 1,602,531 34,513 27,094 9,353,129
B A 9,327,301 - - - 9,327,301
28 114,122 - - - 114,122
REEPEH
Az 17,130,414 1,602,531 34,513 27,094 18,794,552
BsRREN
T8 mEER
17,130,414 1,602,531 34,513 27,094 18,794,552
REEPENZWEEDPBER
iR e HRNT
Manufacture Wholesale Securities
and retail  of precious  and futures Other
Vak: of jewellery metals broking  businesses Total
KRS ELB @5 R Hity
RZE 3 HELL %% it
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Tz TET THT TET THT
BE-Z-N\%
+=A=+-H
LEE
REEFEHN
ol
IREP 17,130,414 1,602,531 34,513 27,094 18,794,552
WEbHE - 1,177,438 - - 1,177,438
WER TR R 88
- (1,177,438) - - (1,177,438)
REBEFEHZ
Az 17,130,414 1,602,531 34,513 27,094 18,794,552
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

5. Turnover (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i)

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognized in
the current reporting period that were included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognized
from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

Revenue recognized that was included in contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

Sale of goods EmiHE

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is

summarized below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods
and payment is mainly on cash and credit card settlement, except
for corporate clients and wholesale customers, where payment is
due within 60 days from delivery. Some contracts provide customers
with a right of return which give rise to variable consideration
subject to constraint.

Securities and futures broking

The performance obligation is satisfied on the transaction dates
when the relevant contract notes are executed and the payment
is generally due two days after the transaction date or at specific
terms agreed with clearing houses, brokers and dealers.

5. ExHE(E

REBTFAERNZ YW (&)
(i)  DEUBEHE)

RBEHBIIAGNRE
< B RER RS -

(i7)

TRERNAHEBRAERER
REDNRIIAGHABEZRES
B UGB ERRERZBOR

PR ISR -
2018
HK$'000
TET
67,439
BHET

AEEBAE 2 BEE R
N

N
\)

M E

\

BORERRARSIEN B
EEFRBERP HRRME 60
AMZIM - ERAEZENRS
REMFEE - BHADARFE
PR - L E TR A
BRI -

ErRAERE

BRORERZIHEBERAXEZR
ZBEHEK - HEZCRREAEXR
5 BB MARRIREAEE R - K1
RZ BB E 25 TE R B -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

Profit before Tax

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold
Write-down of inventories to net
realizable value”
Depreciation
Amortization of prepaid land lease
payments
Auditor’s remuneration
Operating lease payments in respect of
leasehold land and buildings:
Minimum lease payments
Contingent rents

Employee benefit expense* (excluding
Directors’ emoluments (note 8)):
Wages and salaries
Equity-settled share option expense

Pension scheme contributions
Less: Forfeited contributions

Net pension scheme contributions

W
W EETRRFE

e
BTEN DA ERIE

LB £
BERHEL W REFY
RETRDNR
RIEHEE R

HAHE

EEEHFAX (T EREEHS

(FE8)) :
TERFE

RamEE 2 BB

RREF IR
B BRI

RAREFEIHFFE

BRBL AT A
AEEZBRHANENE M GEA) :

Note 2018 2017
Bt s HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHT

14,180,556 12,596,651

706 3,653

14 212,524 192,009

16 281 273

3,872 3,693

768,105 814,844

18,697 15,911

786,802 830,755

1,316,105 1,126,702

35 3,086 9,045

197,592 175,640

(301) (55)

197,291 175,585

1,516,482 1,311,332
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

Profit before Tax (continued)

Impairment of accounts receivable”

Direct operating expenses (including
repairs and maintenance) arising on
rental-earning investment properties

Net fair value gain on investment
properties’

Net fair value loss on bullion loans
designated as at fair value through
profit or loss”

Net fair value loss on derivative financial
instruments — transactions not
qualifying as hedges’

Net fair value loss/(gain) on financial
assets at fair value through profit
or loss’

Net loss/(gain) on bullion loans designated
as at fair value through profit or loss™

Net loss/(gain) on disposal of derivative
financial instruments™

Net gain on disposal of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss*

Net loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Interest income

Dividend income from listed investments

Dividend income from unlisted
investments

Design fee paid to a related party**

Foreign exchange differences, net

This balance is included in
statement of profit or loss.

“Cost of sales”

FEWERFAE"
WISz REMFERKEEH
X (BREEERFR)

RENE 2 N FEESRE"

EEREATEEIERE AR
BREENATEERFHR

FESRTAY AFREHSE -
FHAHEEEZRS'

T*“ FEEFABSNMBEEZ
AVEEFER/ (M)’

EEREAFEEEREBIES
BREEFER (k&)™
HEMESMTAFEHE, (has)"™

HERQFEEF ARSNHBE
EFgas"
HEME  BERR

MBHA
LHREZBREKRA
FEMREZBBERA

58 B R EE

MEEA L HREE *
EHER  FE

on the face of the consolidated

© The employee benefit expense included an amount of HK$3,969,000 (2017:
HK$3,591,000) paid to a Director’s family members as employee emoluments.

statement of profit or loss.

AA

These balances are included in “Other losses, net” on the face of the consolidated

These balances are included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated

statement of profit or loss. The purpose of the above bullion transactions entered
into by the Group is to manage the Group’s bullion price risk. Such loans and
contracts did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting.

&3 This balance is included in

“Cost of sales”

on the face of the consolidated

statement of profit or loss. The design fee was determined in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group paid to a related party.

6.  BRBLATEF (H)

Note
f&E

22

15

* %

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT TET

8,459 =

3,064 1,194

(10,647) (20,910)

29,353 30,412

3,010 3,723

3,478 (3.175)

(11,811) 44,485

5,757 (2,283)

= (3,814)

2,390 2,698

(94,662) (75,341)

(23,597) (19,565)

(1,101) (1,258)

169 =

37,993 (48,996)

WHEGHBEEGARAR E[HERA]
o

BERAAIOEIN T —EEEZRE
Pk B 1EAEE < 2 £ %8 3,969,000 % 1T
(ZZ—+% :3,591,00087T) °

WEEHE
B FE]T -

EHEGARER EIAME

WEERDEERABREELIHERAE]
Fo AKBI U LNESEBRHEEER
¢%Zaﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬂ,ﬁ§§%f EkE
AW AFE LRI 2 1 -

EEHESERAR
EP mMEEATNZR
R—REBBREPEE o

bR b HE A ]
AENEELER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MR E M

7. Finance Costs 7. BEER
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and RTEH - BIREMER
other loans ZHIE 36,991 31,044
8.  Directors’ Emoluments 8. EZMe
Directors’ emoluments for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, REETRA - HFQAEHIZE383(1)
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance @ b (ORMHERRA(EEESH
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of mERBRBE 2 AFEZESHE
Directors) Regulation, are as follows: WENT :
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Fees we 3,119 3,159
Other emoluments: Hitni < :
Salaries and allowances e K2R 5,951 5,917
Discretionary bonuses paid and payable B RERBIEEL 1,426 824
Pension scheme contributions RS AR 99 95
7,476 6,836
10,595 9,995
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MR E M

8.  Directors’ Emoluments (continued) 8. EEML(&)
An analysis of the emoluments paid and payable to the Directors during FRERNKENTES M2 HTAOT

the year is as follows:

Discretionary

bonuses Pension
Salaries and paid and scheme
Fees allowances payable  contributions Total
‘ $4F  CHRER CEH#e )
ik =323 BETEA HE S At
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TR TR THET TR TR
2018 —2-N\§
Executive Directors: HITES
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing KBk 5 A 407 3,128 744 = 4,279
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing Bk B A 338 291 49 14 692
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing BARmEE 277 2,532 633 85 3,527
1,022 5,951 1,426 99 8,498
Non-executive Directors: EHITES
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRIB% - 338 - - - 338
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam BEIMEE 338 - - - 338
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun* REIRE S A * 338 _ _ _ 338
Mr. LEE Ka Lun* ARG A 407 - - - 407
Dr. LO King Man* EE it 338 - - - 338
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung* BB s it * 338 - - - 338
2,097 - - - 2,097
3,119 5,951 1,426 99 10,595
2017 —B—+5
Executive Directors: HITES:
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing sk % 4 400 3,035 433 - 3,868
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing R B A 330 291 24 15 660
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing - @5 4 270 2,448 367 80 3,165
1,000 5,774 824 95 7,693
Non-executive Directors: EHTES
Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling" BESGE" 109 143 - - 252
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRIB% - 330 - - - 330
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam BEIMEE 330 = - - 330
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun* REIRE S A * 330 _ _ _ 330
Mr. LEE Ka Lun* AR A 400 - - - 400
Dr. LO King Man* ESViEt 330 _ _ _ 330
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung* BB it * 330 - - - 330
2,159 143 = = 2,302
3,159 5,917 824 95 9,995
*  Independent Non-executive Directors & BUFNTES
" Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling passed away on 27 May 2017 ! BESAER_T—+tFRA-TLHE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

8. Directors’ Emoluments (continued)

There were no other emoluments payable to the Independent Non-

executive Directors during the year (2017: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or agreed to

waive any emoluments during the year (2017: Nil).

OF Senior Management’s Emoluments

The emoluments paid to the members of senior management by band are

as follows:

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000

10. Five Highest Paid Employees

1,500,001 7T % 2,000,000 % 7T
3,000,001 7T E 3,500,000 87T
3,500,001 7T % 4,000,000 5 7T
4,000,001 /& 7L £ 4,500,000 7T

10.

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included
two (2017: two) Directors, details of whose emoluments are set out in
note 8 above. Details of the emoluments for the year of the remaining
three (2017: three) non-Director highest paid employees are as follows:

Salaries and allowances

Discretionary bonuses paid and payable
Equity-settled share option expense
Pension scheme contributions

o2

2 REMNBIEIEA
Bt E 2 BRERX
RIKEE I

The number of non-Director highest paid employees whose emoluments

fell within the following bands is as follows:

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000

3,000,001 7T Z 3,500,000 7T
3,500,001 7T E 4,000,000 57T
4,000,001 /& 7L £ 4,500,000 7T

ESHE(8)

FRATEEMHMERNTEUFNTES
(ZF—t5:F)-

FREZWETVEMREIREREL
AMEHEH(ZT—+F: F) -

RARRNSRERAEINZMEMT :

Number of individuals

AE

2018 2017
1 1
1 1
- 1
2 1
4 4

hEREHHMES

FRAAKERERRFHEREERS
(Z2—t5 WB)EZ HFAM
BRER LRE8  REEREB=F
(ZF—tF: ZR)RRFHFESERR
ZHAAHEERMT -

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
7,955 7,580
3,182 3,005
219 605

398 379
11,754 11,569

WENTFUTER 2 ZEHHEESES
N ¢ NE

Number of individuals

AH

2018 2017
1 1
- 1
2 1
3 3
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

1.

Income Tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2017:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year. Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Corporate
Income Tax (the “CIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the CIT
Law, the tax rate of the Mainland China subsidiaries is 25% (2017: 25%).
Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of
tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Current — Hong Kong
Charge for the year
Overprovision in prior years
Current — Mainland China and elsewhere
Charge for the year
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years
Deferred (note 33)

Total tax charge for the year

AR - &R
FARE
BEFEBEERE
ARH - B RRE R H A
FARE

BAFERBET R (BEEE)

ERE(HFE33)

FABIREE

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which major operating subsidiaries of
the Group are domiciled to the tax charge at the effective tax rate is as

follows:

Profit before tax

Tax charge at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate of
16.5% (2017: 16.5%)

Difference in tax rates applied for specific
provinces or enacted by local authorities

Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous
periods

Profit attributable to an associate

Estimated income not subject to tax

Estimated expenses not deductible for tax

Effect of withholding tax at 5% or 10%
(2017: 5% or 10%) on the distributable profits
of the Group's subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China

Tax losses utilized from previous periods

Estimated tax losses not recognized

Tax charge at the Group's effective rate

BRBL AT A

REBEBEERE 16.5%

(ZZ—+F :16.5%)

a7

FERANGEENHELBE

ZHERER
BT IR 2 HIALE

ARG 2
)N YN Pl
BABMZ HEHRA
ORI YA 3

RASERPEARAMBELL

11.

HEBE

Fri8®H
EBEFNCHDEFAREBELE 2
JERRRFIAT R 16.5% (ZT—+4F :
16.5%)BfE - REFEAREIMBECE
FTERUA(T EMBHE]) REEMER
FERAR  FEAENBARIZHES
25% (ZF—+F :25%) - EtipEfE
REa 2 HBIEAEBR S EERE
EER AR ETE -

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
61,412 37,401
(11) (699)
218,864 215,847
220 (340)
29,909 8,872
310,394 261,081

TREAEETZLENB R RMKL
FERNEERR AR EFELEAR
BRBAGE R 2 IR A RIRBEREFE
ZIRBETTHIER -

ZHB AR Z A DIEEF 5% 2% 10%
(ZB—+%F:5%510%): &

B2 IE
(AR 2 BRI
AT Z fiE SRS

18
2|

BARERER X E KA

The Group's share of tax charge attributable to the associate amounting
to HK$15,000 (2017: HK$94,000) is included in “Share of profit of an
associate” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$°'000
TER TAET
1,322,651 1,137,499
218,237 187,687
64,141 59,425
209 (1,039)
(40) (751)
(17,556) (15,013)
5,814 5,519
37,113 24,376
(1,402) (2,083)
3,878 2,960
310,394 261,081

ANEE FE(H 2 A A FiIE A 15,0008 T
(ZZE—+F:9400087T) EBSHE
RABEER EEEBE D BDER P o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

12.

13.

Dividends

Dividends recognized as distribution during
the year:

Final dividend for 2017: HK42.0 cents
(2016: HK35.0 cents) per ordinary share

Interim dividend for 2018: HK15.0 cents
(2017: HK9.0 cents) per ordinary share

Dividends proposed after the end of the
reporting period:

Final dividend for 2018: HK44.0 cents
(2017: HK42.0 cents) per ordinary share

12. REB
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
RERBDIRE
ZRE
T EREKRE
FE@AL42.0 AL
(ZZ—7"% : 35.0 B1l) 284,522 236,922
“E-\FRERS
FE@AL15.0 AL
(ZZ—t%F:9.08) 101,615 60,923
386,137 297,845
IR IR B B B
ZRE :
“E-N\FEREKS
FE@AL44.0 AL
(ZZ—t5F :42.0 BL) 298,071 284,522

The proposed final dividend for 2018 was recommended after the end of
the reporting period and has not been recognized as a liability at the end
of the reporting period, and it is subject to the approval of the Company's
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Earnings per Share Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on the
profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 677,402,822 (2017:
676,920,000) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts for the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 is based on the profit for the year
attributable to equity holders of the Company. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise
of all share options into ordinary shares.

T \FRIRE 2 ARHR B NRE LR
KEFKE  LANGEHRERSE
& REFSARARRNERERRBEA
G EHER - HAER -

13. ALAERREEARGERER

FREABFSENRFALDEER
BEAEABEZANEERNEBITMETF
15 B 19 677,402,822/ (= & — + &£ :
676,920,000 A% ) E@ARETE o

HE_Z—N\FR-_ZE—tF+_H
=+ HALFESRESRFSENIEF
RARRIEREE ARMEEFFE - 518
I 5L R B0 X3 AR N 1 B n B E N E B
TERREE - EFESREARFEA
AEER @ SRR PEBERIE AET
FimEEETHTBRMNET ARG
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

13.

Earnings per Share Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

(continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

Earnings

Profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company, used in the basic and diluted
earnings per share calculation

Shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year used in the basic earnings
per share calculation

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
effect of share options dilution

27

ARmEEREARERZN -

ARG ESRER

R EF AT
g
Rt B AR RN
ZERNEHITERAR
il RS <)
BEEE TR METS
et 2 BB R

13. FLAFRREEARGESRER (H)

BREAREERNTRATHE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
1,012,257 876,418

Number of shares

BRHHA
2018 2017

677,402,822 676,920,000

5,563 1,019,857

677,408,385 677,939,857
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

14.

Property, Plant and Equipment 14, W BERRE
Leasehold
improvements,
Leasehold furniture,
Freehold land and Plantand  fixtures and Motor  Construction
land buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HENE
XA RELH B B B
EELH k&7 ks RERRE RE HRIR fit
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fits TEn Ti#n Tin TiEn THR TR T#En
As at 31 December RZE-N%
2018 tZA=t-H
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—t%
1 January 2018: T-A=1-A
R=Z-\%
-A-B:
Cost or valuation AR GE 20,274 528,830 144,711 1,106,367 12,664 - 1,812,846
Accumulated depreciation ZitE - (209,850) (84,538) (746,641) (9,496) - (1,050,525)
Net carrying amount FEFE 20,274 318,980 60,173 359,726 3,168 - 762,321
At 1 January 2018, net of RZE-N\E
accumulated depreciation -A-R"
NBREHTE 20,274 318,980 60,173 359,726 3,168 - 762,321
Surplus on revaluation EfhER - 845 - - - - 845
Additions RE - - 18,392 246,820 3,149 69,831 338,192
Transfer from investment ERRENF
properties 15 - 1,200 - - - - 1,200
Transfer to investment properties #/ 5 &9% 15 - (1,000) - - - - (1,000)
Disposals HE - - (51) (2,505) - - (2,556)
Depreciation provided during ~ £RHERE
the year - (22,057) (16,068) (172,708) (1,691) - (212,524)
Exchange realignment i3k (562) (8,350) (2,637) (18,154) (126) (2,826) (32,655)
At 31 December 2018, netof  R=E—)\&
accumulated depreciation +-R=+-8"
NhREsE 19,712 289,618 59,809 413,179 4,500 67,005 853,823
At 31 December 2018; RZE-N\E
t-h=t+-R:
Cost or valuation HASfE 19,712 517,574 155,742 1,226,486 13,153 67,005 1,999,672
Accumulated depreciation  EfHE - (227,956) (95933)  (813307) (8,653) - (1,145,809)
Net carrying amount FEYE 19,712 289,618 59,809 413,179 4,500 67,005 853,823
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

As at 31 December
2017

At 1 January 2017;

Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2017,
net of accumulated
depreciation

Surplus on revaluation

Additions

Transfer to investment
properties

Disposals

Depreciation provided
during the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2017,
net of accumulated
depreciation

At 31 December 2017:

Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciation Z3H#7E

Net carrying amount

14. W% HERFEGE)

Leasehold
improvements,
Leasehold furniture,
Freehold land and Plantand  fixtures and Motor
land buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total
MEME
KA HELTi s £E - R
£iELi LEF % EERGE 58 At
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt TET TET TEL TET TAT TET
R-E-+&
+=B=t+-H
R-E—+%
-A—-8:
A E 18,388 513,121 121,407 966,270 12,834 1,632,020
SiiTE = (184,420) (70,293) (664,361) (8,755) (927,829)
BRFE 18,388 328,701 51,114 301,909 4,079 704,191
R-T—+F
—A—8"
MR 25HE 18,388 328,701 51,114 301,909 4,079 704,191
ARy = 3,652 - = = 3,652
RE = = 21,522 193,723 508 215,753
HBERENE
15 = (4,000) = = = (4,000)
HE - - (120) (2,749) () (2,873)
FERFTERE
= (21,768) (15,443) (153,207) (1,591) (192,009)
B X A% 1,886 12,395 3,100 20,050 176 37,607
RIB—tF
+=RA=t+-8"
MR 25T E 20,274 318,980 60,173 359,726 3,168 762,321
RZZ—t4F+=A
=+-A:
AR AE 20,274 528,830 144,711 1,106,367 12,664 1,812,846
= (209,850) (84,538) (746,641) (9,496)  (1,050,525)
REFE 20,274 318,980 60,173 359,726 3,168 762,321
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

14.

15.

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Certain of the Group’s leasehold land and buildings were revalued on
31 December 1993 by Knight Frank & Kan, independent professionally
qualified valuers. The leasehold land and buildings were revalued on an
open market, existing use basis. Since 1995, no further revaluations of the
Group's leasehold land and buildings have been carried out, as the Group
has relied upon the exemption, provided under the transitional provisions
of HKAS 16, from the requirement to carry out future revaluations of its
property, plant and equipment which were stated at valuation at that
time.

Had these leasehold land and buildings been carried at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation, their carrying amount would have been

approximately HK$15,094,000 (2017: HK$16,530,000).

Investment Properties

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HZRHEAE

Transfer from leasehold land and #BEHEL I RIEF
buildings

Transfer to leasehold land and buildings ~ EZHE L RET

Net gain from a fair value adjustment REBEBEFHE 2 F W

Exchange realignment BE SR

Rt A=+—RzKEE

Carrying amount at 31 December

Management has determined that the investment properties consist of
two classes of asset, i.e., properties held in Hong Kong and properties
held outside Hong Kong, based on the nature, characteristics and risks
of each property. The Group's investment properties were revalued at
HK$331,317,000 on 31 December 2018 based on valuations performed
by Cushman & Wakefield Limited, independent professionally qualified
valuers.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further details of which are included in note 38(a) to the financial
statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are included on
pages 181 to 184.

14.

15.

ME - #RRRE(R)

AEEETHELHEETR-AN=F
T A=+ REBYRXAERMAERD
BRAIBTER ZFHELHRET
RERGREEARAMEEEER - ~&
BE-NWNAFRANTEETEAE 16
ROBEGTE T2 8% BAYHNER
HEFIRZME BB MREBETRAE
i MY EREEETHRETHEE
fib o

%5 It S RE -3 RAE T IAFE £ A AR 2
ST ESER - HEREEL 515,094,000
B(=ZZ—+4F :16,530,000/87T) °

REME
2018 2017
Note HK$"000 HK$'000
= FExT FET
322,013 295,573
14 1,000 4,000
14 (1,200) =
6 10,647 20,910
(1,143) 1,530
331,317 322,013
EEECRESEMECME  HHEER

BETREVERBEMBLE  HRNER
REZNERRBERBEIMNTB2ME -
RZZE—-\F+ZRA=1+—H ' A5E
ZRENERBHBUEESERME
MBERTERADETZHEERLR
331,317,00087T °

ZEREMENREHOETE =% £
—HHBERAEREME38() A -

BREARBRENE ZE—FHBIRS
181 £ 1848 °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

15.

Investment Properties (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

All investment properties were classified under Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy. During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, there
were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level
2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group has assessed that the
highest and best use of its properties did not differ from their existing use.

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorized within Level 3 of

the fair value hierarchy:

Carrying amount at 1 January 2017

Transfer from leasehold land and
buildings

Net gain from a fair value adjustment
recognized in profit or loss

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December 2017
and 1 January 2018

Transfer from leasehold land and
buildings

Transfer to leasehold land and buildings

Net gain from a fair value adjustment
recognized in profit or loss

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December 2018

R-E—+tF—F—BZEAEE
ARSI RET

RERDKEFERNAFEEFR
ZFEY R
ERTIECES

RZE—tF+-A=+—HR
“E-\F-A-HZEKHE
BEEMEE T RET

BEEEETIHRET

REBRDKEFERNAFEEFR
ZFE R

B 5 R

RZEBE-NF+A=t—HZ
fREE

15. REWE(E)
DATEESER
EREBNFEADBRALNTEESRZR
A= BEZT-\FR-FT—tFT-A
=t BIEFEARA—ERFI = HL
ERNTEEASEY  TEEANEHR
A= - AEBENTENEZ &R ARE
RGEREBERETED R o
DERAFEBEZERZBAI=AZ A FE
B2 8K
Properties Properties
held in  held outside
Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
REBRE REBEN
A7 ES BEZW* &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET THERT
275,370 20,203 295,573
4,000 - 4,000
20,910 - 20,910
- 1,530 1,530
300,280 21,733 322,013
1,000 - 1,000
(1,200) = (1,200)
10,410 237 10,647
- (1,143) (1,143)
310,490 20,827 331,317
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

15.

Investment Properties (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key inputs
to the valuation of investment properties:

15. REWEGE)

As at 31 December 2018
R=-ZE-N\F+=-A=+—H

Properties held in Hong Kong
REBRAIYE

Properties held outside Hong Kong
REBRINGE 2%

As at 31 December 2017
R-Z—tF+=A=+—H

Properties held in Hong Kong
REBRALZYE

Properties held outside Hong Kong
REBREIMTEZMF

Valuation techniques

Bl

Market comparison method
HiE L EE

Market comparison method

S LB

Market comparison method
s BUE

Market comparison method
BRI AV

ATEESR(E)
AT REEYFE ML ERERGERNRE
EHBIHE
Significant
unobservable Range
inputs (weighted average)
EREUBRUE EE (hHEFT)
HK$
BT

Price per square foot

7,000 to £58,000

BYLARER (11,000)
Price per square foot 200

BYHRER

Price per square foot
SEHREE

Price per square foot

Y RER

7,000 to & 54,000
(10,000)

200

A significant increase/decrease in the price per square foot would result
in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment
properties.

The investment properties are valued by the market comparison method
having regard to comparable sales transactions as available in the relevant
market. The valuations take into account the characteristics of the
properties which included the location, size, floor level, year of completion
and other factors collectively.

BERRERKAE LT TRESHRE
ME 2z NFHEEREEM R o

REMETIZZEEMS L2 ALRHE
RP% - AT B EAETHE - HER
B RME I - BEmE - K &
CEIFEHREMRAE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

16.

17.

Prepaid Land Lease Payments

Carrying amount at 1 January
Amortization (note 6)
Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December

Current portion included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets

Non-current portion

Intangible Assets

Trading rights

Cost at 1 January and 31 December, net of

accumulated amortization

At 31 December:
Cost (gross carrying amount)
Accumulated amortization

Net carrying amount

16. FEMLHAEFE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
R—A—BZiEEE 12,216 11,620
B (ffaEe) (281) (273)
M 3 (626) 869
R+—A=+—HBZEHE 11,309 12,216
STATERFRE « E AR
REMEEZREBD (269) (284)
FEREIL D 11,040 11,932
17. EFEE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEL
REE
R—B—BE+=-A=+—H
R kR REHE 271 271
m+-A=+—H:
A (BRI E) 524 524
BT (253) (253)
BREFE 271 271

Upon the adoption of HKAS 38, trading rights are considered to have
indefinite lives because they are expected to contribute to the net cash
flows of the Group indefinitely, which are not amortized.

BB B G EREIRE AR S
RESRRAEEERMTRASREF
B BREARAERE M SN
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MR E M

18. Other Assets 18. HtEE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET THT
Cost of membership for a seat at The Chinese SREEFHH([SREEH%H])
Gold and Silver Exchange Society (“CGSE") SEMAN 1,500 1,500
Statutory deposits in respect of securities and EBREFIPELE
futures broking ZEERE 3,035 3,118
Rental deposits* HEZS 192,973 199,801
Deposits paid for purchases of items of property, FEEH « #R MEREHEE
plant and equipment ZEfRE 10,313 6,016
207,821 210,435
& The rental deposits are related to office properties and retail shops leased by the * UHAEBzHAERTEERLO(ME
Group (note 38(b)) and the majority of the terms of the lease arrangements are 38(b)) 2 lHET &S « RHHHAAH
over one year. Included in this total is an aggregate amount of approximately BB —F - Hd & $£4991,000,0008 T
HK$91 million (2017: approximately HK$85 million) relating to operating leases (ZZ—+4 : 485,000,000%87T) 8 —4F
expiring within one year. The Directors are of the opinion that such deposits are NEBZEEHE - EFZRA - REBH
of a long-term nature on the basis that the related leases are expected to be NEARSEIBREN B HER
renewed upon their respective expiry dates. Accordingly, the Directors consider it CRBRAME - Al EFRR/ERIL
appropriate to classify such deposits as non-current assets. SREVBRIRDEE -
19. Investment in an Associate 19. REERARZRE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET
Share of net assets EIEFEE - 32,453
Particulars of the associate are as follows: BN T EENT ¢

Percentage of
Place of ownership interest

Particulars of incorporation attributable
Name issued shares held and business to the Group Principal activity
TR i BIR KEB G
8 RAFE = $:uk BEEAL TEXH
2018 2017
Foo Sang Enterprises Company Ordinary shares Hong Kong Property
Limited investment
EEEXFRAA Rl BB - 36.63 MERE
The above associate was indirectly held by the Company and had been A AT RAATIEEREE HEH
accounted for using the equity method in these financial statements up to ERH - EAMBHRE AR ZESH R
the date of disposal. o

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED @ ANNUAL REPORT 2018
BEEESEERARRDA 2018 F R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

19.

20.

Investment in an Associate (continued) 19.

The following table illustrates the financial information of the Group’s

associate:

Share of the associate’s profit for the year FEAG B & N R AR A

Share of the associate’s total comprehensive income [E(hEEZ A 7 2 E s 2%

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's REEREE AR 2 RE
investment in the associate ZIREAAE

In prior year, the Group held a 36.63% interest in Foo Sang Enterprises

Company Limited (“Foo Sang”). In the current year, the Group disposed

of its entire interest in Foo Sang to a third party for consideration of

HK$59,312,000. This transaction had resulted in the recognition of a gain

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, calculated as follows:

Proceeds of disposal HE T3 5IE

Less: carrying amount of the investment W REZREE

Gain recognized B RN

Total consideration received in cash BAGR e BRE

Financial Assets designated at Fair Value through Other 20.

Comprehensive Income/Available-For-Sale Investments

Financial assets designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Listed equity investments, at fair value
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited*

Unlisted equity investment, at fair value
Sure Success Holdings Limited
Golden Twin (Un Long) Catering Company
Limited
Hong Kong Precious Metals Exchange Limited

EERZEATEERA
Hit 2 EKRENMEEE
kiR E  ZAFEE
BERRGRIEBMBRRA*
FLETROIRE  RATEE
Sure Success Holdings Limited

U RREBER AT

ERECEBXHMEBRAA

REBE QR 2 RE ()
TREFIREEBE RRZHBER -

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET
245 4,550
245 4,550

- 32,453

RBEEE  AEEREEEEEEGRA
B[4 1) 236.63% s - FA - K&
BRE=FHEEREE 225 - R
859,312,000 70 - ZIBER 5 Wz R
ITEBEERPER  STEMT :

2018
HK$’000
TER

59,312
(32,698)

26,614

59,312

EERRAPEEF AL bEE RS
BEE MHHERE

2018
HK$'000
TERT

2017
HK$'000
THET

807,104 -

20,110 =

16,849 =
328 =

37,287 =

844,391 =
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

20.

Financial Assets designated at Fair Value through Other

Comprehensive Income/Available-For-Sale Investments
(continued)

20. EEABRAVEEFAHMGEZEHYKZENHM
BEE/THHERE(H)

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT

Available-for-sale investments AREERE
Listed equity investments, at market value* ETRHIRE  ZEWmE = 854,120
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value FETRMIZE - B ATER - 19,620
Unlisted equity investments, at cost FLEMRMDITE - KA - 260
- 19,880
- 874,000

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the gross gain in respect of the
Group's available-for-sale investments recognized in other comprehensive
income amounted to HK$224,830,000, of which HK$113,948,000
was reclassified from other comprehensive income to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, certain unlisted equity investments with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$260,000 were stated at cost because
there was a wide range of possible fair value measurements so that the
Directors were of the opinion that their fair value could not be measured
reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of them in the near future.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's listed equity investments with a
carrying value of HK$634,480,000 (2017: HK$719,400,000) were pledged
to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 31).

The market value of the Group's listed equity investments as at the date
of approval of these financial statements was HK$952,425,000.

& On 6 March 2000, under the Schemes of Arrangements of the Stock Exchange and
the Futures Exchange and pursuant to the Exchanges and Clearing Houses (Merger)
Ordinance, the Group received 6,223,500 shares of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (“HKEC"), six exchange trading rights in the Stock Exchange and
one exchange trading right in the Futures Exchange as a consideration for the
cancellation of its 6 shares held in the Stock Exchange and 1 share held in the
Futures Exchange. As at 31 December 2018, the Group held 3,561,800 (2017:
3,561,800) shares of HKEC, five (2017: five) exchange trading rights in the Stock
Exchange and one (2017: one) exchange trading right in the Futures Exchange.

FBHRER AR RE S E AR AT
BEFARMEZENRE  DASERRZ
EREBRBILE -

BE_T—+tF+-_A=+—HLFE"
REMEEABEHRZAEE T HEE
RE BN 5 224,830,00078 7T © HUE
113,948,000 tEEME2E M =EHH
BEBE_T—+tF+-A=1+—HLHF
EHABEEER -

RZZE—+F+_A=1+—H ' ARAKE
Bz AFREMENEEERSZ B3R
REZF SN EEATEE  WREE
18260,000 8T ETH EMBRNDKRET)
BEAGIR - REBESRAEAKLE

HERE -

RZE-—NE+-A=+—0 X&£H
LA £ i % 9 4% & BR T (B 634,480,000 78
T(ZZ—+45 : 719,400,000/ ) K
B BAEEME—REBITEEEER
(Mt5E31) o

RABHREELEER  AEEZ LT
P % & m{E & 952,425,000 78 7T

& RZZZTF=A-H  BREXZARE
HR(EH)ERIZRNDEHTE - A5E
REEBRGREEMERAABR
F1) 6,223,500 BB 5 N EHE R AR 5
BER—ASRARFE - URRRERR
a2 6 RN REBRAHE 21K
Bfp e R=F—A\F+=A=+—H K
EEEAERZF3,561,800 (=T —+
% :3,561,800/%) fxfn - AfE(ZZT—+
FRAEBRARFER—E(ZE—+
F o —EA) AR °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

21.

22,

Inventories

Goods held for sale

Accounts Receivable

Trade and credit card receivables

Impairment

Accounts receivable

FEWE 5 K= A RIR
mIE

FEMARR

21. BE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
7,451,326 7,489,574

22, EUERR
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
1,009,157 920,088
(8,116) =
1,001,041 920,088

AEBEETERPAIUNR A RALE

The Group's trading terms with its retail customers are mainly on cash
and credit card settlement while trading terms with corporate clients and
wholesale customers are on credit with credit period generally up to 60
days. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

MRERERTEE  MECERP R
BEPIUNR SIS - BRI —KREZ
AEATR - BHEHEREEEARE
HER - BREZERARE -

RS - BYSRFRBEER AR
PREBERRERDOMAT :

Within 1 month 1{E8A A

1 to 2 months 122184
2 to 3 months 2Z=31EA
Over 3 months BiBE3EA

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of accounts

receivable are as follows:

As 1 January R—H—H

Impairment losses, net (note 6) FEEE FFE (MEe)
Amount written off as uncollectable WA E 25
Exchange realignment BE 5 SR

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8H

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR THET

798,652 776,534

73,704 113,824

70,764 18,680

57,921 11,050

1,001,041 920,088
FEWERS 2 BB IREE T -

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR THET

- 1,100

8,459 -

- (1,137)

(343) 37

8,116 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

22.

Accounts Receivable (continued) 22. FERERF(E)
Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31 December 2018 BE—FT—)\F+=-A=1+—HIFER
BE B BHEERE 9.2 R E
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a REERERE B HAERBERREETR
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates BEAN - U EBHEESE - BHXD
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments EREBHEUBLRBER(PImRmE - &
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type and mEMUNEPER MR ZEARP
customer type and rating. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted DEERBBREET - B ERM
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable AREEMMEER EEZEREEARR
information that is available at the reporting date about past events, BERHAESERRTSEH 2B KA
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, TIEER B AR DA R R SR A E AR R TR
accounts receivable are written off if past due for more than one year and Ao —Kims  ARBRB—FREAZR
are not subject to enforcement activity. A58 HIEA1TE B 0 FE UL BR RS T A S o
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure as at 31 TRV -—ZE—NE+-_A=+—AK
December 2018 on the Group's accounts receivable using a provision EEFEREGEREEAENEREROEE
matrix: R EH
Past due
et
Less than 1to3 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
HE LR1EA  1ZE38 BB3EA &t
Expected credit loss rate HEHEEERE 0.29% 0.31% 0.33% 12.75% 0.80%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BRI 42{E (F7&7T) 795,186 109,823 63,176 40,972 1,009,157
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) FEHAEEEE(FHET) 2,345 335 21 5,225 8,116

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31 December 2017

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable as at 31 December 2017
that were not impaired under HKAS 39, based on the due date, is as
follows:

Neither past due nor impaired I B SOR B
Less than 1 month past due BEDREA
1 to 3 months past due BE1E3EA

Over 3 months past due BEREA3EA

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to a large
number of diversified customers/debtors for whom there was no recent
history of default. Receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers/debtors that had a good
track record with the Group. Based on experience, the Directors of the
Company were of the opinion that no provision for impairment under
HKAS 39 was necessary in respect of these balances as there had not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances were still considered
fully recoverable.

BE-F—+F+-A=+—HIFER
BEEEERFE 39K 2 B1E
RZZE—tHF+-A=+—H BREEH
SEEERIFE 39 EARE 2 BUR TR
BEHAZBREATIAT

2017
HK$'000
TET

763,256
115,143
34,108
7,581

920,088

ABHREREZ EYIRFEAEL B K
ERRICEZDHER EBARRE - B
BHKERRE  BRR RS B R A EE
BERIFEERHIBURF EBAR
o RIBEER ARREERRANEE
HEXUEEAEE  BEKDARRAA
2EUE - BREEB S ERE 395
BANZSHRELRERME -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

23.

Receivables arising from Securities and Futures Broking

Receivables arising from securities and futures
broking conducted in the ordinary course of

business:
Cash clients

Clearing houses, brokers and dealers
Clients for subscription of initial public
offering (“IPO") shares

Loans to margin clients’

Receivables arising from securities and futures

broking

EEEEBRES
e ES
Z FEATRRSR

ReEP

FREFER'

ARMERLEL
Z AR

The receivables are settled two days after the trade date or at specific
terms agreed with clearing houses, brokers and dealers. Futures deals are
normally settled on a cash basis. Receivables from margin and cash clients
arising from the business of dealing in securities and futures broking are
repayable on demand subsequent to settlement date.

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31 December 2018

Analysis of the gross carrying amount as at 31 December 2018 by the
Group's internal credit rating and year end classification:

Internal rating grade

Excellent
Good
Fair

BEN BERR 5
RBERRRBRERP

BERHERLELE 2 BLURR

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
41,665 76,890
20,806 47,934

- 10,221
955,870 849,861
1,018,341 984,906

EUWRRER S B BEAMRAIIREZE
T RERXDEWE B EGTETH
B -HERGRUNRSHEE - REES
FHEEEXBNAREASEPHNEK
RN EEHRRIREREE -

B2 T\ FF-A=1—HIFER

BEER BHEERE 9K 2 HE
RZZE-N\F+ZRA=1+—H ' Z4X&HE
NEEEFRRFERDBE D 2 RHAE
DWMT

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E1PREER FE2MRER B3R &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT FTERT FTET

NEMEERTR
ukes) 610,817 - - 610,817
R - 407,524 = 407,524
_ _ _ _ _
610,817 407,524 - 1,018,341
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

23.

Receivables arising from Securities and Futures Broking (continued)

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31 December 2017

An ageing analysis of the receivables arising from securities and futures
broking as at 31 December 2017, based on the due date and net of loss

allowance, is as follows:

Not yet due

Within 1 month past due
1 to 2 months past due
2 to 3 months past due
Over 3 months past due

Loans to margin clients’

Clients for subscription of IPO shares*

R

W1 EAN
@E =2 @A

EHE 2

Z=3EA

BEREA3 @A

FREFER

The loans to margin clients were secured by the underlying pledged securities,

repayable on demand and bore interest at commercial rates. No ageing analysis
was disclosed as, in the opinion of the Directors, an ageing analysis was not
relevant in view of the nature of the business of securities margin financing.
As at 31 December 2018, the total market value of securities pledged as
collateral in respect of the loans to margin clients was HK$1,359,514,000 (2017:

HK$1,417,070,000).

As at 31 December 2017, receivables from clients for subscription of IPO shares of

HK$10,221,000 were due when the corresponding allotment results of the related
IPO shares had been publicly announced and bore interest at commercial rates.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default. Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers that had a good track record with the
Group. Based on experience, the Directors of the Company were of the
opinion that no provision for impairment under HKAS 39 was necessary
in respect of these balances as there had not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances were still considered fully recoverable.

23.

wu%%/’ﬂ’&ﬁ'ﬂ%ﬂﬁ@ﬁ *

BERAERREE 2 BURR (8)

BE_F—+tF+_A=1T—HILFER
BEES #ﬁﬁf%ﬁﬁZﬁE
R=ZF—tF+=-A=t—R  EFEH
EREEL IR TIRIEE 'JEJ%EUSHZDI%é
BEBRZERRONMT -

2017
HK$'000
THET

72,260
42,787
1,710
1,625
6,442

124,824
849,861
10,221

984,906

# FREFEFNBHEEERESERE

BARERREEREBERKGTLE &

$ RAERBEFTEEEEBHE R
AL T HERBELDON - KB
—E— )\$+ A=+—-H BBHFE
EFEFNBHFBAERARZATE
/*—31,359,514,000/% (=T — £ F:

1,417,070,000 J87T) °

3 R-Z—tE+-A=1+—0 nRABEE
ROFRBRHEREF &84 10,221,000
BT DB E R AR AR R
HERAMEEH - IR EIERETE -

AEHALERERREREARY BE&

ARELEDBEF AR - CABEE
REZEIEREZ BN AEEER R

EELBRZBIUEFP AR - RELR - K
RAEZERRENERERYEEAE
2 BESRDAREAT2HKE - iR
BEEGHENEIORERARZZHEAR
R E R -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

24.

25.

Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other Assets 24.
Prepayments FERTRRIE

Deposits e

Right-of-return assets REREE

Other receivables Hofh UL BR 3R

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there
was no recent history of default.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 25.

Listed equity investments, at fair value kiR E  ZATFEE

The above equity investments were classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss as they were held for trading.

ANRE  AttEEERRREMEE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
275,866 238,794
45,201 39,353
363 -
5,947 29,074
327,377 307,221

T EERERNACRE - 23E Ll
RBBMBEERIRYBETENLCER
FEMRS -

RAFPEEFABRBNMBEE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET
13,595 17,073

Hilil R B TIHEEERE - MO BB
BRAFEEABRNUBEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

26.

Cash and Cash Equivalents/Cash held on behalf of Clients

An analysis of cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

Cash and bank balances B e RFITHER
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity ~ FHEEIHE PR =(E
of less than three months when acquired ZEERERTR

Cash and cash equivalents RekEREE

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of
the Group’s subsidiaries operating in Mainland China denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted to RMB708,419,000 (approximately
HK$806,252,000) (2017: RMB677,350,000 (approximately
HK$813,294,000)). The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorized to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Short term time deposits are made for periods of 7 days to 2
months, and earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with licensed banks to
hold securities and futures clients’ monies arising from its normal course
of business. The Group has classified the clients’ monies as “Cash held
on behalf of clients” under the current assets section of the consolidated
statement of financial position and recognized the corresponding accounts
payable to the respective clients on the grounds that the Group is liable
for any loss or misappropriation of the clients’ monies. The Group is not
allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its own obligations.

A

REeRSERE REFEERS
ReRFERRE MM :

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
1,123,687 1,117,886
178,840 82,029
1,302,527 1,199,915

RBERR - AEBEH B AREZE 2K
BRRAAREBEMN 2R E RBTER
#£708,419,0007T A K ¥ (4806,252,000
BIT)(ZZE—+4F : 677,350,000 T AR
¥ (49813,294,0008 7)) - ARBETEE
BERiABEHMER - R BREFEX
BE 2 SNEE BIHEDI R AR - EERMNEE
BRT  AEBELSBEREEITINE
EBIRITBAREIBRAHME -

ROTRSRES B RITERNERZSH
LROFIE - ERERERZERAART
AE2ANSE @ WIRAEZTERFHRN
LERERM B - ROTFEFREFNEBRFMEI
MY BB BT -

AEERFRBTRRBULETERS - K
FREFIEEPRAREBEL K
B ARBEERBLERPHEANEREGA
BBEMRRARAR/RBDEERT Z[KEP
FARAS ] YREBEAKEA LRPHA
ZEMBRIBA B EMERDENT
HARPERN - AEB A ERRPRE
EEEB AT -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

27.

28.

Accounts Payable

An ageing analysis of the accounts payable at the end of the reporting

period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Within 1 month 1B A A
1 to 2 months 122184
Over 2 months B2 @A

Payables arising from Securities and Futures Broking

Payables arising from securities and futures EREEBHES
broking conducted in the ordinary course of REERLEE
business: ZIERERA

Cash clients’ Bewp*
Margin clients* FRER*

Payables arising from securities and futures EERPABREES

broking ZFERBRR

No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the Directors, an
ageing analysis is not meaningful in view of the nature of such business.

#

Included in the cash client accounts payable arising from dealing in securities
conducted in the ordinary course of business is an amount of approximately
HK$389,684,000 (2017: HK$445,272,000) representing those clients’ undrawn
monies/excess deposits placed with the Group. As at 31 December 2018, the cash
client accounts payable included an amount of HK$866,000 (2017: HK$2,927,000)
in respect of securities transactions undertaken for the accounts of certain
Directors. The cash client accounts payable are repayable on demand and bear
interest at commercial rates.

The margin client accounts payable are repayable on demand and bear interest at
commercial rates.

27. EREX
RBEHR  BNERRERZEAHZE
RO
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
146,002 121,520
14 551
1 —
146,017 122,071
28. BHERHELLELEZEMRR
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHEL
412,621 502,668
44,389 71,380
457,010 574,048

EXZRRENERBUESHREITER
AR PEREREDT

#

BREEAFEBTENEFEEELL
FER I £ & P BR 547 389,684,000 78 T
(ZZF— 4 : 445,272,000 T) A%E
EEBRASEZ RRIGIE/BINE S
Be MZT—\F+-A=+—-H0 E
MR EFERREAETESER ST
BHZH 257 IA866,0008 TL(ZF—+
4 :2,927,000/7T) - BRHREBTLER
BN ERESEE RIRFE GG S -

I 77 IR & P BR AR B oREHEIE RIZA

RIERGS -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

29.

Other Payables and Accruals

Accruals fEZtIRE
Contract liabilities BHEE
Refund liabilities BHAE
Other payables Ho A e R BR R
Customer gold deposits BEFES

Notes:

Details of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018 are as
follows:

Short-term advances received from customers RERF ZEHBEKRHK
Sale of goods HEEM
Customer loyalty program BEEABEE

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver jewellery and
precious metals, and amount allocated to customer loyalty program of the Group's
retail of jewellery business.

Other payables are non-interest-bearing.

The Group provides gold deposit services to its customers. Under this arrangement,
customers deposit physical gold with the Group and can withdraw the same units
of gold together with a fixed amount of fee on the maturity date. The customer
gold deposits are estimated based on the fair value of gold deposits outstanding
at the end of the reporting period. The basis of estimation is reviewed on an
ongoing basis and revised where appropriate. As at 31 December 2018, gold
deposits from customers also included approximately 2,800 (2017: 2,800) taels of
gold from certain management personnel of the Group.

A

29. HftEMNRMREEE

Note
i3

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
75,918 101,806
53,730 =
496 =
321,886 321,897
39,845 40,331
491,875 464,034

RZZE-N\F+_A=+—BE=Z—N
F-A—HZAMARHBNT :

31 December 1 January
2018 2018
—E-N\F —E-)\F
TF=HEr=F —A—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

38,175 48,633

15,555 18,806

53,730 67,439

ANARBREINRERES BRI
RHBRHE  URAREFAEERES
EEBZEPEHEA B2 &

EAENRITE S

AEBRERPREFESRE - BELE
B RERAAEEGEAES  REHAR
ROEREN ZSETHEER - BFF
SHERBREHRHBTFEZATFEEE
HEt o AT EESRHERT  WEEE
BiELET R \FE+=-_A=1+—
B BEFE2NEEAEBETEEA
B2F£42,800M(=ZF—+4F :2,800
i) o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

30.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Assets BE

Foreign currency forward contracts BHINES A
Cross currency swaps RX &M a 5
Liabilities &

Bullion contracts EeBEW
Cross currency swaps RX G2 H

The bullion contracts, foreign currency forward contracts and cross
currency swaps are stated at their fair values. The above transactions
involving derivative financial instruments are conducted with reputable
financial institutions or top bullion trading companies. As at 31 December
2018, the aggregate contractual amount of the bullion contracts was
HK$465,719,000 (2017: HK$378,487,000).

In addition, the Group has entered into foreign currency forward contracts
and cross currency swaps to manage its foreign currency risk. The foreign
currency forward contracts and cross currency swaps were measured
at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the fair value thereof
amounting to HK$6,400,000 (2017: HK$845,000) were credited (2017:
charged) to the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year.

The purpose of the above contracts and swaps entered into by the Group
is to manage the Group's commodity price risk and foreign currency risk.
Such contracts and swaps did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting.

fTEE®MIA
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
105 =
5,450 =
5,555 =
12,405 3,549
- 845
12,405 4,394

ELBEY  REIINESGHRRIX Eis
HREATEBIIER - ElSRITES R
TAZRSGTREER T Z S BEIENIE
RECBEHRRET  RZT—N\F
T-A=1+—H E2BAHZENEE
%18 5465,719,0008 T(Z T —+F:
378,487,000/ 1) o

AN AEBFT T RENESHREXE
Eie TR EINERR - ZREINES
HRZ NGBS HR A FEME AR
HE - FARNGAERERR(ZT—+
FEHREATEAEZHNEGHEA
6,400,000 7T (= —+4F : 845,000%
Jo) o

AEERIY LA e EEERE
EzEmERRRIINERR - ZFRH
R AT & SR & AT R IR 2 kAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

31. Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings/Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings 31. HERTENR BHERUEELELZH
arising from Securities and Futures Broking ERITENR
2018 2017
Contractual Contractual
interest interest
rate Maturity HK$'000 rate Maturity HK$'000
ELEES ZIEA TR BHIHE Ejile THT
% %
Current nE
Portion of term loans from  RERITER—FER
banks due for repayment HERZHDE
within one year HER
- unsecured - EEA 1.6-43 2019 132,256 16-17 2018 33,176
- secured B Eiiwii 2.3 2019 100,000 2.3 2018 60,000
232,256 93,176
Current portion of bank loans ZAR—FRZHEE
due for repayment within ZBEOTERZRE
one year b
— unsecured - IR 28-3.8 2019 475,732 25-33 2018 455,371
707,988 548,547
Non-current FRE
Non-current portion of bank AR AT HARIAZIH
loans due for repayment BEZRITERZ
within a period of: FEREHL -
More than one year but —EN R
less than two years DRME
— unsecured - B 33-38 2020 209,865 25-33 2019 360,386
More than two years but GE ]
less than five years PRRE
~ unsecured - B 3.7-38 2021 47,869 26-33 2020 93,270
257,734 453,656
965,722 1,002,203

The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the term loans repayable
on demand, are carried at amortized cost. None of the portion of the term
loans due for repayment after one year which contain a repayment on
demand clause and that are classified as current liabilities is expected to
be settled within one year.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s banking facilities amounted to
HK$2,784,036,000 (2017: HK$2,932,397,000), of which HK$965,722,000
(2017: HK$1,002,203,000) had been utilized at the end of the reporting
period. Certain of the banking facilities amounting to HK$470,000,000
(2017: HK$470,000,000) are secured by certain assets of the Group as
disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

ARBRTER(BREERBELENE
) TR BRI - BEBER —F
REMEE LB EREFEEGER DA
RRBEEZHAERERHN —FRBF

f& -

RZZE—N\F+=-A=+—H8" £4%H
ZRTTIEE 4 52,784,036,00078 T(=
T —+4:2,932,397,0008 ) * NIk
4 HAR 2 8 3 H 71 965,722,00078 T( =
=T — 44 :1,002,203,000/87T) - & T
RITIEEE 470,000,000 BL(ZE—+
£ 1 470,000,000 70 ) A A E B R B %
BEMFT 20 KB ETEEERER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

31.

Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings/Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings
arising from Securities and Futures Broking (continued)

All of the banking facilities, including bank borrowings and bullion
loans (note 32), are subject to the fulfillment of covenants relating to
certain of the Group's financial ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group was to breach the
covenants, the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.
In addition, certain of the Group’s term loan agreements contain clauses
which give the lender the right at its sole discretion to demand immediate
repayment at any time, irrespective of whether the Group has complied
with the covenants and met the scheduled repayment obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants for
all the outstanding bank borrowings and bullion loans. Accordingly, the
Group does not consider it is probable that the bank will exercise its
discretion to demand repayment so long as the Group continues to meet
these requirements. Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in note 43(a). As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, none of
the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been breached.

The carrying amounts of the bank loans at the end of the reporting period
are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar BT
New Taiwan dollar HEE

31.

FERTER BERPELLELZH
BRITEXR(E)

FAERTEE(RRRTERRESEBRE
BE(MiE32) AXEENAE THHL
o ERANESREBEIIZEER
B MARERRGS  FIRREESEA
REREE - WO ARBZETENE
iR B 24 TR AR 2 2R B
BFRKAER G ThAKEZE
BETHHERETREENEE

AEBRAAEREERTENNESEE
EEHERHETZEHALER - At
AEERRRBEBETRERT » |/1T
HASTEARBERKERER - BH
AEEEERBES AR 2 E—FFER
P43 e RZBE-N\FRZT—+
FH-A=t—R AEELEERER
BREEZ W -

RTEFNRERRZRAEATIEE
REAL

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET
933,466 969,027
32,256 33,176
965,722 1,002,203

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESEERAERRA

149

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
2018 F R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

32. Bullion Loans

Bullion loans — unsecured

Bullion trading facilities

Contractual interest rate
Original maturity

BESREE - BER

ECBRHEE

BHFIR
RE|EA

The amounts represented borrowings from banks or top bullion trading
companies and the amounts payable are pegged with bullion prices.

Certain of the bullion loan facilities are subject to fulfillment of covenants
under the Group’s banking facilities. Details of which are disclosed in note

31 to the financial statements.

Bullion loans were borrowed to reduce the impact of fluctuation of
bullion prices on bullion inventories. However, the criteria for hedge
accounting were not fully met. Bullion loans were designated as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as they are managed and their
performance are evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management and investment strategy, and information
about the bullion loans is provided on that basis to the Group's key

management personnel.

The carrying amounts of the bullion loans at the end of the reporting
period are denominated in the following currencies:

Renminbi
United States dollar

ARE
X

32. ELBfEE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
970,140 1,069,873
3,305,879 3,352,947

1.0% - 4.9%
1-6 months A

1.0% - 4.9%
1 - 6 months A

ZRBIERLRTRERECEE S ARG
B MENFREESBERESE -

ETEEBEEREBRNAARERITE
Bz FRRMBERENEIRE -

EAECBEEENAREESBERK

NeHhastRE Gt - ENESRWE
ENRERTERRERERIRERBRAT
BEEETENFERR  WEEERR
NFEEFABRZCMBRE  MARZ
FELBRERZENDEABEERAE

EzIEERABRM-

HESRTBEENBREHRZREENT
SERREA -

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TAT

463,108 499,923

507,032 569,950

970,140 1,069,873
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

33. Deferred Tax

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as

follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 January 2017

Deferred tax charged/(credited)
to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss
during the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2017 and
1 January 2018

Deferred tax charged/(credited)
to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss
during the year

Gross deferred tax liabilities
recognized in the consolidated
statement of financial position
at 31 December 2018

EEBEAE

RZZ—+F
TZA=t-Bk
—Z-)N\F¥—H—H

FARGERERER
I YAG N
ZIERERIR

RZZ—N\F+=A
=t+—BRGERHK
R RFER 2 EEH
B ERE

= o

33. EEBE
FRELEHIESEREEZSNT -
Depreciation
allowance
in excess
of related  Withholding
depreciation taxes Others Total
HERBE
BEBEETE HERB Hit &t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FTET TET TERT
37,991 158,923 552 197,466
(989) 17,266 770 17,047*
8 = 9) (1)
37,010 176,189 1,313 214,512
(756) 36,756 (394) 35,606
36,254 212,945 919 250,118
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

Deferred Tax (continued)

BEHREE

Deferred tax assets

Decelerated

33.

DR ()

Impairment

tax of accounts
depreciation receivable Others Total
HEBERE ERRERE Hith &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT TER THER THER
At 1 January 2017 R=—Z—tF—HF—H 11,845 = 1,536 13,381
Deferred tax credited/(charged) — FRRN4RA BHEE
to the consolidated statement A GokR)
of profit or loss ZIRIERIE
during the year (1,080) - 9,255 8,175*
Exchange realignment BE 5 A 3 - 654 657
At 31 December 2017 and NZT—+F
1 January 2018 +-A=+—8k
—2-\¥—F—H 10,768 - 11,445 BEEE
Deferred tax credited/(charged) — ERN4RABHEE
to the consolidated statement A (k)
of profit or loss ZIEERIE
during the year (2,696) 1,787 6,606 5,697*
Exchange realignment B i A= (49) = (797) (846)
Gross deferred tax assets RZZE—N\F+=H
recognized in the consolidated ~ =+—BREGREH
statement of financial position R R TR BT
at 31 December 2018 HEAERE 8,023 1,787 17,254 27,064

* Net deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the

year amounted to HK$29,909,000 (2017: HK$8,872,000) (note 11).

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$7,201,000
(2017: HK$6,621,000), Mainland China of HK$19,473,000 (2017:
HK$10,801,000) and Taiwan and Macau of HK$39,841,000 (2017:
HK$44,298,000). The tax losses arising in Hong Kong are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the tax losses arose, whilst those arising in Macau and Mainland
China will expire in three years and five years, respectively, for offsetting
against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognized in respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and it is uncertain whether
taxable profit will be available against which the tax losses can be utilized.

L FRRGEBERNGZECHBFEA
29,909,000 75 (=Z —+4 : 8,872,000
) (M) o

AEBREAELE CHEEFEE A
7,201,000 7L( =T —+ 4 : 6,621,000
BIL) RPBEAEELEZHEER
/19,473,000 (= T — £ F:
10,801,000 L) kN E & KRFIEEZ
i 78 /&5 18 539,841,000 (=T —+
F 1 44,298,000/87L) - REBELEZH
EEEERBAEREZSEENRIES
BRRAZARRERBRF - AR KR
BAEEE HEBEBIIN=FRE
FRER - BTG AERERRERT
WA o L EEETIREEBEE —BE
MZKHBAR  ARITKEBREREEE
AR A E B AR - R ER
WEEERERELHBEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

33.

34,

Deferred Tax (continued) 33. EEBIE(E)
Pursuant to the PRC CIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends BERECERSHE RBEARL
declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises MBS 2 INERECERINEEREE
established in the People’s Republic of China. The requirement is effective EIR B AR 10% BURTBIRTE o LL R E M
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A R NF-A—BHRBEX WEAR
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between “EELFF_A=+—HEZEH -/
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the REAEEIINEIREMEREEBRRA
Group's subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China, the Bt - BIFTaEE BV B0 T 1R R X
applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding Ko GAKE R EARMBIBL T 2 K
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in the BARIME  BARER5%H10% °
People’s Republic of China in respect of earnings generated from 1 It AEEEEARZERTFEARLM
January 2008. B2 HBARIR =SS NF—HA—H
REE A 2 E T DR 2 RSB TERRE o
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of RARRERFIRE 2 R B EL RAE
dividends by the Company to its shareholders. o
Share Capital 34, BA
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER TET
Authorized: ETE
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,000,000,000 [ & EE
HK$0.25 each 0.25 8Lz @ik 250,000 250,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
677,434,000 (2017: 676,920,000) 677,434,000 (= —t&F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each 676,920,000 f%)
FHkEE0.25 Bz L@R 169,359 169,230
A summary of movements in the Company'’s share capital is as follows: AAFIRAZ BEMEMT ¢
Number of
shares Share
in issue capital
[=%:¢6)
RHEE &S
HK$'000
THER
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZZ—tF+ZA=+—HK
—Z-N\F—H—H 676,920,000 169,230
Share options exercised (Note) BATE RS A (Pt r) 514,000 129
At 31 December 2018 RZB-\F+-A=+—H 677,434,000 169,359

Note:

The subscription rights attaching to 514,000 share options were exercised at the
subscription price of HK$14.89 per share (note 35), resulting in the issue of 514,000
shares for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$7,654,000. Amounts of
HK$129,000 and HK$8,854,000 were transferred from the share option reserve to share
capital and share premium upon the exercise of the share options, respectively.

FiEE

514,000 {7 8 AR AEFT B 2 BRI LA G AR 14.89 T
ZRBEEEITE(ME35) - BEE1T514,0008%
f&fp - BERERECKNRERFR)R7,654,000
e R AT E B R R 129,000 T R
8,854,000 B L E B IR ERED DI BRERAK
fRIDEE o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

35.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible participants for their
contribution to the Group and enabling the Group to recruit and retain
valuable employees.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may, at
its discretion, invite any employees, Executive or Non-executive Directors
(including Independent Non-executive Directors), advisers, consultants,
shareholders of any member of the Group or such other persons from
time to time to be an eligible person to whom share options will be
granted as an incentive to attract and retain them for their contributions
to the business development of the Group. The Scheme was approved and
adopted by the shareholders of the Company on 7 December 2010 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the Scheme must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares in issue on the date of approval of the Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted under the Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company to each participant in any 12-month period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of total number of shares of the Company
in issue.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time during a period commencing on such date on or after the
date on which the option is granted as the Directors may determine in
granting the option and expiring at the close of business on such date as
the Directors may determine in granting the option but in any event shall
not exceed 10 years from the date of grant (which is the date of offer of
grant if the offer for the grant of the option is accepted).

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable
on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Directors
provided always that it shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of offer; (ii) the average closing price of
the Company's shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and
(iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company.

33

B8

ARARA-BEERES SR
gl RTRAER2EREHASEIES
ZEBGRTREREE  URSAEERE
REYBRENASEAREEZES -

BREZ AT  ARRAESSATE
HEBFTMES MTESAFNTE
E(ERBUFNTES)  BH - #H
A REBEMKE AR Z BREZFH
MALTRAEERAL  EBAEREBEK
& FRRARSHASEEBERELE
BAT R 5| X e B 1% % 2 2B - &ATEIR
“E-2F+ - ACHEARRRREAE
R BRIFZEEIRATIORIERT
B BEZE PR TFRNEK -

TREBREZERE 2 2HBBRET T T
BIZRINBE - ARATBRBRZ 2
BAERHZEREITERNDZ210% °

BE2AEFEEN T _EAREERL
BREZERL)  REZFAERAREIE
TR BB A A B I 2 BB AR T A 1T
B - BTTREETZROEAE LRAE
BBARREBITRONBE 1% °

BRI REZTEGRZRATE - NES
REBRER  AERDZBREZAR
HEATRIETE  EEESRHBRE
BEREZ B REREREREER 1
REFERT @ R HEBREE B (R
HRLBREROER - MZBREEN
BEX)EF BB TF -

BREERARIBZLBREZRY &
ARREENZ BR=TBR(BFRLE
ENER)BRRABZEN - REXRH
RElHE 2 RA0KS - ZABIS1.0087T

BREZOTRENHESEE  KETE
BAZLRUTERE : () ARARMDR
EHRREY AT RRERMA BT
B (N ADABRNREERELD B MRS @
R 5 AEHRAEERERMAIZFHR
WiE R (i) A AR SRED 2 HE

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESEERAERRA

®

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
2018 F R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

35.

Share Option Scheme (continued)

During the year, the movements in the share options to subscribe for the

Company'’s shares under the Scheme were as follows:

2018
—E-N\E

Eligible person

RERAL

Continuous contract ~ HEAH
employees’ 8"

2017

—E—t&

Eligible person

AERAL

<t
B
>
=¥

Continuous contract ~ #%&
employees’

Fld
o

Date of
grant

Re A

22(712016

22112016

Date of
grant

RIEAH

221712016

22(712016

Exercise
price
per share

Bk
TR
HKS
B

14.89

14.89

Exercise
price
per share

B
1/
HKS
BT

14.89

14.89

35. HERRAERHEI(H)

EEHT

Number of share option

FA - % TREARRBRID 2 BAE

BREXA
Cancelled/

Balance Granted  Exercised lapsed Balance
as at during during during as at Exercisable
1/1/2018 the year the year the year  31/12/2018 period

RZB-N\F

R=B-N\F FhiE#/ T=H
-A-B&s  FRRE  EROE %% =t-R&H ATRH
3,403,000 - (514,000)* (47,0000 2,842,000 31/12/2017 -
30/12/2020
3,460,000 - - (122,000) 3,338,000 31/12/2018 -
30/12/2020

6,863,000 - (514,000)  (169,000) 6,180,000

Number of share option
BREsA
Cancelled/

Balance Granted Exercised lapsed Balance
as at during during during as at Exercisable
1112017 the year the year the year ~ 31/12/2017 period

R-B—+%

RZZ—tF . MR/ +=A
—A-R&% L FAOR X¥ =t—B&#H A7
3,700,000 - - (297,0000 3,403,000 311212017 -
30/12/2020
3,765,000 - - (305,0000 3,460,000 311212018 -
30/12/2020

7,465,000 - - (602,000 6,863,000

Continuous contract employees include an associate of a director, Ms. Genevieve

CHOW Karwing, who held 105,000 share options as at 31 December 2017. During
the year, Ms. CHOW exercised 52,000 share options, with a weighted average
closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the date on which
the share options were exercised was HK$18.52. As at 31 December 2018, she

held 53,000 share options.

The weighted average closing price of the shares of the Company immediately

before the date on which the share options were exercised was HK$18.57 (2017:
No share options were exercised).

# BHEANEEREESY —BHBAL

AESELt BR-_Z—+F+=8
=+—H#%51050000BRE 47
A 17£52,0001 AR - AR A
AR A BB 1T 155 2% 55 8 AR A B EA A 0 h 4
TR HEA1852ET - R-T—\&E
;:ﬂ =+—B " %#A53,0001% &R
E o

ARABO N REITHEZFRAE B HA

BB TR T ER1857RIL(ZE—+
F o BEREETE) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

35.

36.

Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes:

M

The Group recognized a share option expense of HK$3,086,000 (2017:
HK$9,045,000) (note 6) during the year ended 31 December 2018.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 6,180,000 (2017:
6,863,000) share options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full of
the outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 6,180,000 (2017: 6,863,000) additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share capital of HK$1,545,000 (2017:
HK$1,716,000) and share premium of HK$90,475,000 (2017: HK$100,474,000)
(before share issue expenses).

The total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme is
6,060,000, representing approximately 0.9% of the Company’s shares in
issue as at the date of approval of these financial statements.

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 60 and 61 of the financial statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for wholly-foreign-invested
enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group’s subsidiaries which
are established in the People’s Republic of China has been transferred to
reserve funds which are restricted as to use.

I3

36.

e e )
PifeE

(1) BT )\F+-_A=1+—HLEE"
REBRER 2 ERER X A 3,086,000
JE(=Z — £ 5 : 9,045,000 7t ) (Kf =
6)°

2 RBEHK AAREZSAETES
6,180,00013 (ZZ—t4F : 6,863,00017)
MAITEZBRE - BEARABER
AR BEITEERITE 2 BRE - K
DA F£176,180,000 % (= B — L4
6,863,000 % ) AN L AR + A FTIE R A
1,545,000 L(= 2 — £ 4 : 1,716,000
7B70) R4 B 590,475,000 B0 (=%
—+ 4 : 100,474,000 7T ) (KR B B 15
BITRX) ©

PR BEREEIER R - ARFRZE
£)78 T A] 217 2 IR (D #8805 6,060,000
B (EARARIBBTRRD40.9% °

it

AEE Y ERERE R R 2 S
BB B 5 % 60 K61 B 2R A
BBER -

REBERAREIERECE 2 BRERR
ER - AEERNPEARKMBRL 2
BRRAZBENEEREREIRHZ
B -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

37.

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 37. ZEHLRERME
(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from (a)
operations

Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Share of profit of an associate
Interest income
Dividend income from listed investments
Dividend income from unlisted investments
Net loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of derivative
financial instruments
Net loss/(gain) on bullion loans designated
as at fair value through profit or loss

Net fair value gain on investment properties

Net fair value loss on bullion loans
designated as at fair value through
profit or loss

Net fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Net fair value loss on derivative financial
instruments — transactions not qualifying
as hedges

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Net gain on disposal of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Gain on disposal of an associate

Depreciation

Amortization of prepaid land lease payments

Impairment of accounts receivable

Equity-settled share option expense

Write-down of inventories to net realizable
value

Increase in inventories

Increase in accounts receivable

Increase in receivables arising from securities
and futures broking

Increase in prepayments, other receivables
and other assets

Decrease in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Decrease/(increase) in cash held on behalf of
clients

Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable

Increase/(decrease) in payables arising from
securities and futures broking

Changes in derivative financial instruments

Increase/(decrease) in other payables and
accruals

Cash generated from operations

REBFREEMBREZHIR

2018 2017

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

BiE FEx FHL

B AR A 1,322,651 1,137,499

&M 7 36,991 31,044

JE (B R AL ) 19 (245) (4,550)

ISV ON 6 (94,662) (75,341)

EmEEZBREBA 6 (23,597) (19,565)

FEETIRE 2 REWA 6 (1,101) (1,258)

HEME - #aE REHEE

B #EE 6 2,390 2,698

HEMESRTIAFEER

/(Wzf) 6 5,757 (2,283)
EEBBAFEETER
Bz E¢BIEEFER
/(ezs) 6 (11,811) 44,485
REYE 2 N HEEFES 6 (10,647) (20,910)
EERBZATEEITR
BZELBEENAT
BEFEE 6 29,353 30,412
BATEBEFABENY
BEEZ NI BEZE
18,/ (k) 6 3,478 (3,175)
TESMTAZAFEE
FEE - TRHAYTRE
BELR G 6 3,010 3,723
HEENERE 7 e
= (113,948)
HERAFEEABR
WA TS & B R e 6 = (3,814)

HEH & AR 2 e 19 (26,614) =

e 6 212,524 192,009

BiETEN LA ERUA 6 281 273

JE R SR (E 22 8,459 =

BatEEr BRERY 35 3,086 9,045

W FEZ 2R FE

6 706 3,653

1,460,009 1,209,997

TEZEm (123,711) (725,432)

JFEURBR SR 2 350 (122,870) (105,002)
BEERNEECEEZER

BRFRZ 5 m (33,435) (158,574)
TE 0B - b EUERR K

HM&E 23EM (34,513) (66,019)
BRAFEEFABRENTS

BEZRDY — 22,994
REFREREZRD/

(3mm) 73,140 (89,657)
FERFBRIR 2 8800,/ (R ) 9,575 (129,027)
BERE R EE ZERM

2y WA ) (117,038) 154,331
TSR A 88 (5,757) 2,283
HipEABRR R EIBE 2

2,/ Crd) (14,314) 172,483
KEMBRSE 1,091,086 288,377
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

37. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued) 37. SEELSRERMI(HE)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities: (b) BMETBELZEEE2E :
2018
—E-N\FE
Interest-
bearing bank
borrowings
arising from
securities
Interest- and
bearing bank futures
borrowings broking  Bullion loans
BER
Zate
FFEBITER RITEM BESEBREE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx THER THER
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\F—HF—H 942,203 60,000 1,069,873
Changes from financing cash flow MERERELY (175,561) 140,000 (91,664)
Foreign exchange movement NG (920) - (25,611)
Net gain on bullion loans designated as 1§E AR AT EEEREZ
at fair value through profit or loss EeBEEFRE - - (11,811)
Net fair value loss on bullion loans EERRATEEIEREZ
designated as at fair value through EeBEENATER
profit or loss FEE = = 29,353
At 31 December 2018 RZZ—-N\E+=A=+—H 765,722 200,000 970,140
2017
—E2—tF
Interest-
bearing bank
borrowings
arising from
securities
Interest- and
bearing bank futures
borrowings broking Bullion loans
FHK
ZE B
FEBITER RITER REeRBEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2017 RZT—tF—F—H 856,422 230,000 756,390
Changes from financing cash flows BEREREL 86,708 (170,000) 210,070
Foreign exchange movement HNE S E) (927) - 28,516
Net loss on bullion loans designated as 1§ A AT EE EREZ
at fair value through profit or loss EcBEETER = = 44,485
Net fair value loss on bullion loans BERBRATEEEREZ
designated as at fair value through EEBIEENATER
profit or loss FEE = = 30,412
At 31 December 2017 R-—ZE—tF+=-A=+—H 942,203 60,000 1,069,873
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MRS AR

38.

Operating Lease Arrangements

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms
ranging from one to three years. The terms of the leases generally
also require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its
tenants falling due as follows:

—FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties and retail shops
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for these properties
and shops are negotiated for terms ranging from one to ten years.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due
as follows:

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth years, inclusive
After five years

AR

In addition to the minimum future rental payments disclosed above,
the Group has commitments to pay contingent rents based on a
proportion of turnover for certain leased retail shops. Contingent
rents are not included in the above commitments as it is not
possible to estimate the amounts which may be payable.

Certain of these leases have escalation clauses and renewal rights.

38.

“ERF EREMEERER

REBHRH

(a)

(b)

HAEA

AEBNGEROTHEHERE
MEEE5)  LREHATEHRS
R—EZF - ORI —REFRE
BExftrERe RRBEEHETSR
RETHESHE -

R=B—\E+=A=+—R 4
£ BRI SAE T SE
BOZAREERERKREEL
BERIT

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$°000
TR THET
8,822 9,265
4,708 3,556
13,530 12,821

EBA

AEBARERORIAME TH
AEMERTEREH - WEWE
ERERERCEEIEAN -2t
F o

R=ZF-—N\F+=-A=+—H0 &
SERBETARHBECERL 2 AR
SERERMREE BB RN
N

“ERF ERMEERER

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET
629,272 632,464
601,631 494,326
9,642 15,578
1,240,545 1,142,368

bR £ X E 2 RIEARRAEE R
o REBBETAENTER
MAREREERA D LN
KB - AR AT BT FTRE Y
MR KRB AP AN L&

¥ o

e

e

=+

ZEETHOMABIRRLED
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MRS AR

39.

40.

Commitments 39. RiE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 38(b) B b a B 3 38(b) 5F 8 2 45 & 1 A AR I
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end of N REBRHKERRGIUT 2B RNE
the reporting period: &3

Contracted, but not provided for
Property, plant and equipment
Capital contributions payable to a joint venture

Connected and Related Party Transactions 40.

(a)

BRA] - EARE
WmE - BERRE
EEE-—HKEEAH

3

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere in (a)
these financial statements, the Group had the following material

transactions with connected and/or related parties during the year

at mutually agreed terms:

Nature of transactions Relationship
RE5ME B&

Certain Directors of the Company
who have beneficial interests
in the property

ARAETEERZYE

BAEERER

Rental expenses for the lease of a retail shop

HETEEHZEERAX

Related companies in which certain
Directors of the Company have
beneficial interests

AN T%?%%%ﬁa il
e

Rental expenses for the lease of quarters of
the Company's Directors

HEARREEER LHEMAX

A related company in which family
members of a Director of the
Company have beneficial interests

ARE— %§$ﬂxﬁz/%ﬁ BEanE
w2

Consultancy expenses for the provision of
image consultancy services to the Group

) 8 5% IR ST ) B 1 AR 75 2 BE R Bl 2

Commission fee for sale of consignment stock A Director of the Company who
has beneficial interest in the
consignment stock

ARR-REERFEFE
BERERER

FEFEZHERSE

All of the above related party transactions also constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The above transactions are exempted from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules.

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$°000
TR TET
68,728 16,857
460,931 486,284
529,659 503,141

BEALRS

B%EBAZKEM%#%,J@*B“?%EZ

BRI ARENFARRE
E)\iﬁ#&lﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬂ%ﬂ AT
BARS :

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL Fi7t
3,780 3,825
840 890
2,026 851
371 =

LRAEREALR S THEX L
TRAETOARHREZHER
ERG - LR FRELTHRA
FUABKGEBLRR  FEF
% RERBIBRAEZ T -
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40. Connected and Related Party Transactions (continued)

(b)

Emoluments of key management personnel of the Group

The aggregate amount of emoluments paid and payable to key
management personnel during the year, including the amounts paid
and payable to the Company’s Executive Directors, is as follows:

Fees e

Salaries and allowances e KR
Discretionary bonuses paid and payable B RERBIEIEL
Equity-settled share option expense i E 7 BIRER
Pension scheme contributions RS EMHER

Further details of Directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to
the financial statements.

40. BEALIRBZ(E)
(b) FEEXEEBEAEHMS

FRENRENEIEEEARZMH
SRE BRECNRENARRH
TERZEE  #MT -

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
1,022 1,000
34,644 33,535
10,572 8,994
690 2,566
1,187 1,197
48,115 47,292

EEMeE —SHEIRYBRS
BiEs -
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41.

Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2018
Financial assets

Financial assets included in other
assets

Financial assets designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Accounts receivable

Receivables arising from securities
and futures broking

Financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables
and other assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Cash held on behalf of clients

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Accounts payable

Payables arising from securities
and futures broking

Financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals

Derivative financial instruments

Interest-bearing bank
borrowings

Bullion loans

—Z-\F
HMREE

BERAMEEIMBEE

HERRATEES ALY
EHRENHEEE

JEWERR

ErREEREL 2R
B

BEERMNTUE  AtER
gi&ﬁﬁﬁ%%%%

[
BRYEEABRSNIE
AE
ITASRTA
REFBESRS
BeREREE

MBEE

B RRR

B RPERLEL L
FEfF RN
BEEAMRNERRL
[EETEA ZMBAE

ITEERMTA

ATRRITER

BEeBEE

Financial assets

4. RENIEZSWMIA

REE

T

Financial assets
designated
at fair value

BR - BRbzeR T ARTEN

at fair value through other
through profit  Financial assets  comprehensive
or loss - held at amortized income - equity
for trading cost investments Total
RAVEE  EERRAYVEE
i AR BEERA AR ENE
BBEE SN WHMBEE .
- BHERE HREE - RARE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TR TR
- 197,508 - 197,508
- - 844,391 844,391
- 1,001,041 - 1,001,041
- 1,018,341 - 1,018,341
- 51,148 - 51,148
13,595 - - 13,595
5,555 - - 5,555
- 442,519 - 442,519
- 1,302,527 = 1,302,527
19,150 4,013,084 844,391 4,876,625
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss
ROVEEFABSENHBEE
Designated Financial
as such liabilities at
upon initial Held for amortized
recognition trading cost Total
R B BB AN .
EERILER KIFEE KReUKEE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THET THET THET
- = 146,017 146,017
- - 457,010 457,010
- - 287,788 287,788
- 12,405 - 12,405
- - 965,722 965,722
970,140 - - 970,140
970,140 12,405 1,856,537 2,839,082
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41. Financial Instruments by Category (continued) 41. RERNSEZzERMIAE)
2017 —T—+tF
Financial assets MBEE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or loss for-sale
- held for Loans and financial
trading receivables assets Total
mAFEE
ST ABZA
MBEE =504 A&
- BHEEE JE U BR 3R s EE =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET THET THET
Financial assets included in BETHMEELZ
other assets B EE = 204,419 = 204,419
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE - = 874,000 874,000
Accounts receivable R AR 3K - 920,088 = 920,088
Receivables arising from BRRERGLEEZ
securities and futures broking JE s BR 2R = 984,906 = 984,906
Financial assets included BETEEMNHKE - Ei
in prepayments, other JE YT B 0 K EL 4t B
receivables and other assets R EE = 68,427 = 68,427
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEEFANBRN
through profit or loss M EE 17,073 - - 17,073
Cash held on behalf of clients ~ KEFHARE - 515,659 = 515,659
Cash and cash equivalents RekZFREE = 1,199,915 = 1,199,915
17,073 3,893,414 874,000 4,784,487
Financial liabilities p =R
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss
RAFEBEFABRNTEEE
Designated Financial
as such liabilities at
upon initial Held for amortized
recognition trading cost Total
RYIR R TR AN
1B AU AR HIEEE BRZUVBAR =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FET
Accounts payable FERTBE R = = 122,071 122,071
Payables arising from securities ~ EHREELLELZ
and futures broking AN - - 574,048 574,048
Financial liabilities included in BEEEMEMNERR
other payables and accruals [EETIRE 2 MBS A R - - 264,895 264,895
Derivative financial instruments  #T4£ &g T & = 4,394 = 4,394
Interest-bearing bank HEBITER
borrowings - - 1,002,203 1,002,203
Bullion loans EeBEE 1,069,873 = = 1,069,873
1,069,873 4,394 1,963,217 3,037,484
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MRS AR

42.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the Group’s
financial assets and liabilities approximated to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of accounts receivable,
receivables arising from securities and futures broking, financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, cash held on
behalf of clients, cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable, payables
arising from securities and futures broking, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals and bank borrowings due for repayment
within one year approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
fair values:

The fair values of other assets and bank borrowings due for repayment
after one year approximate to their carrying amounts, which have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-
bearing bank borrowings, bullion loans and other borrowings as at 31
December 2018 was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted market
prices. The fair value of the unlisted equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income, which were previously
classified as available-for-sale investments, have been estimated using
the income capitalization method and net realizable value method.
The valuation requires the management to make estimate about the
capitalization rates. Management believes that the estimated fair
value resulting from the valuation technique, which is recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the related change in fair
value, which is recorded in other comprehensive income, are reasonable,
and that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the
reporting period.

The fair value of bullion loans and customer gold deposits is based on
open market prices of bullion.

As at 31 December 2017, certain unlisted equity investments with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$260,000 were stated at cost because
there was a wide range of possible fair value measurements so that the
Directors are of the opinion that their fair values could not be measured
reliably.

42.

TRIAZAPEERAVEESER

RBEHR  AREZHBFEERARZ
REEEEATEERS

ERECHEREER  EFMRELL
EEZEBEN - B EBNIA - A
BURERREMCEEZMBEE - KEP
RERT  RERFRARE  BAKK
ERMEELEL RNER B2 E
Hn A RF R EIRR 2SR EREA
R—FRNIBMEE 2 RTERZ A TFEE
HEAREEEES  TREHRZETASR
e e

BEERABCATFEE  RTRAK
FREE - DURTERNE N ST %
TAEARBZ SEAR At A FEER
ERTATIAERRB :

HEERBR —FRIMEEZRITE
FZ A HEEEEERERS  ARKE
ENRBABELGR  FERRRAT
MR TAZ AR ERMNKRFRAER
HMARRERE - ARER_T—N\F
TZAZt— AR BRITER BB
&6 R EL At B R 2 R KR R et
RYTERX o

LRBRHREZ X FEEDHRETSRE
AE - EEARAFEEFAREGRZEAR
@2k EMBHREA D BRI
ERE)ZDFEEDRABRABRE
RATBRFEAER AR - ZABERK
EEBHANCL LG - ERER
ARGERNEL 2 G A TEEERE
AMBMARCHRIABATEEEZHE
REMmZARELCER  TBAE - kAR
RERARSEE 2EE -

BEeBEENEPEEATEENRE
B2 AATEE

R-TE—+&E+-A=1+—8 AR
B2z AT EENENFEERS  EER
BREXNSHAEENTEE  WEERA
{E260,0008 L2 5 TIELEMBRHEBET
R AR
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42.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

(continued)

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with reputable
financial institutions or top bullion trading companies. As at 31 December
2018, derivative financial instruments represented bullion contracts,
foreign currency forward contracts and cross currency swaps which are
measured based on bullion market prices, forward pricing and swap
pricing respectively. The carrying amounts of the bullion contracts, foreign
currency forward contracts and cross currency swaps are the same as their

fair values.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable input to the valuation of
financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis:

As at 31 December 2018
R=2-\E+=A=+-H
Unlisted equity investments

designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income

EERARAFEES ARME2ERES
HEEmRINIRE

As at 31 December 2017
R-Z—tF+=-A=+—-AH

Unlisted available-for-sale equity
investment

FEMAfHERNRE

Valuation
technique

B

Income
capitalization
method

WABERALE

Net realizable
value method

AR FEE

Income
capitalization
method

L ON-Z.N|#73

Significant
unobservable input

ERN DLt

Capitalization rate

ER{ctex

N/A

TEA

Capitalization rate

B &

42, @MIAZAVEERAFEESHR(E)

AKBRCERFZEHBERRRE

PEESRATUTESMIA - 10

T N\FTA=1t—R TEERT
AR HRECETHERFEZESE
AR BRERFEZERINER ORI
HERFEZRXNER Y - E2BA
) BHSNER R RN ER R RE
EERENFEERR -

ATRASRTAMBEZERBNEREE
MEERELHREN -

Range
il

3.8% to
4.8%

3.8% £
4.8%

N/A

NER

4.1% to
5.0%

41% &2

5.0%

Sensitivity of the
input to fair value

BEHAVEEZRRE

1% increase/decrease

in capitalization rate
would result in decrease/
increase in fair value by
HK$201,000
BAR(LLbRE M, WD 1% 1§
HYAFEERD G
201,0003& T

N/A

TER

1% increase/decrease

in capitalization rate

would result in decrease/
increase in fair value by
HK$196,000
BEA(CERE M, B 1% ¥
BYHRFEERD LN
196,000 /&7
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42.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the

Group's financial instruments.

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2018

Financial assets designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments

As at 31 December 2017

Available-for-sale investments:
Equity investments

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

R=-B-N\E+=A
Sr=[F
EE AR AT EE
AH 2 AR ER
B EE
BATEBEFABE
ME B EE
TEEMITE
R=ZE—tF+=A
=+—H
AEHERE
K% E
BATEEFAEE
MBI EE

42, 2@MIAZAVEERAFEESHR(E)

AFEESER

TRENAKEEMTIAZ AFEEAE

24 -
RATBENE AR

Fair value measurement using

RAUTHE 2 AP EETE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SEB™ S BEATEHE EBEAEUEBR
RE g g
(&% 51—) (& B1=) (#|BI=) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT THERT FERx FET
807,104 - 37,287 844,391
13,595 - - 13,595
- 5,555 - 5,555
820,699 5,555 37,287 863,541
854,120 - 19,620 873,740
17,073 - - 17,073
871,193 - 19,620 890,813
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42.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during the year are

as follows:

Financial assets designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income/available-for-sale

investments — unlisted:
At 1 January
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9

At 1 January (restated)

Total gain recognized in other comprehensive

income

At 31 December

Liabilities measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2018

Bullion loans
Derivative financial instruments
Customer gold deposits

As at 31 December 2017

Bullion loans
Derivative financial instruments
Customer gold deposits

R-ZB-N\F
+=A=+—H

EeEEE
TEEMTA
¥FRE2

R=B—+F
+=A=+-A

ESEEE
THEERmIA
T

42, 2@MIAZAVEERAFEESHR(E)

AFEESR(E)
FRERI=

ZATREHELHNT -

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FHT
ERBRATEES ARMEE RGN
%ﬁﬁF/Tﬁﬁ%&ﬁ FEETT -
R—HA—H 19,620 18,798
FNE B BREERF IR 2R 18,914 =
A—B(&31) 38,534 18,798
HAth 2 T e P RERR 2 W 458
(1,247) 822
R+=ZA=+—8H 37,287 19,620
BATEEFEZAR
Fair value measurement using
RAUTERE ZAFEENE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
E BT 5 BEATEE EBEABUBR
HE - -
(8 B1—) (#&B1=) (/A=) &t
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
TERT FTER FERx FExT
970,140 - - 970,140
- 12,405 - 12,405
39,845 - - 39,845
1,009,985 12,405 - 1,022,390
1,069,873 - - 1,069,873
- 4,394 - 4,394
40,331 - - 40,331
1,110,204 4,394 - 1,114,598

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
both financial assets and financial liabilities.

FR - MBEERMBREZRH—RE

Rl—zBHEATFEEFEES

AZELRR= -

T EE
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43.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
borrowings, and cash and bank deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
accounts receivable and accounts payable, which arise directly from
its operations.

The Group’s overall risk management policies focus on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. Risk
management is carried out by management under the policies
approved by the Board and it identifies, evaluates and monitors
financial risks in close co-operation with the Group's operating
units.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk,
equity price risk and commodity price risk. The Board reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarized below.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk due to potential changes
in interest rates of interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities.
Interest-bearing financial assets are mainly loans to margin clients
whereas interest-bearing financial liabilities are primarily bank
borrowings with primarily floating interest rates which expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

For Hong Kong dollar floating-rate borrowings, assuming that
the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year, a 50-basis point
increase/decrease in interest rates at 31 December 2018 and 2017
would have decreased/increased the Group's profit before tax by
HK$3,659,000 and HK$3,667,000, respectively. The sensitivity
to the interest rate used is considered reasonable, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax.

The Group's interest rate risk exposure also arises from margin
financing and other lending activities. The Group has the legal
capacity to quickly recall such loans or re-price its loans to an
appropriate level. A 50 basis-point increase/decrease in interest
rates at 31 December 2018 and 2017 would have increased/
decreased the Group's profit before tax by HK$4,988,000 and
HK$4,634,000 respectively. The analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of assets carried at the end of the reporting period was
carried for the whole year. The sensitivity to the interest rate used
is considered reasonable, with all other variables held constant and
before any impact on tax.

43, BHREREEBEERBE

(a)

MEEREER

AEEIESRTABRERTE
FARERRITER  HLESR
TAZTERZDRAEE X
E88% - AEEBE THEMUTE
BENBBRBELLEEBERE
A ISR TR FE AT BR AR

AEEZEREMREERKHES
BTG HATEAME - B S FORE
HASEMBRBBKEETT
TE - -ARERDHERERES
EEMRCBRRET MERER
AREEEENETAE - Ul
Bl FHERERMBERR

AEESRTAMELZTEZRR
ANERR IERR  FERE
B RBESAR - ROERER
LEmERRER - EESFMIAF
BT XAt B IR % bk e 2
R -

Tz 5
AEERFEBHEEEREE LT
REEEHMAIHERAR © 578
NREETEAFREFER M
HAEPBABIEARTER =
BRZEF RS BRAEE &
SEeREFE@E o
RATEBFERERMS @ BERR
BERRERZABEEIINE
BAFEERER  FIZRR_ZT—N\FR
—E—tE+-A=+—H%N/
MASOEER - BHRImD 1
AL E B AR 3,659,000 78
JT K% 3,667,000 7T ° AT A H Al
FEBRFIE R AT BT E
RIZBRT  REERALHAT
Ry HREDHBAE -

REEZFERRBRITREFREE
REMERES  REBHEHFE
TR B RANK B R E ek
EFEEREZEBEKRTF - FIXR
“E-NEER_E—tF+=A
=+—A%m/ B0 EEL
12 BISE b0,/ 8 D AN B R B AT
7 4,988,0007% JT K 4,634,000 %
TC o WA IR R IR S RSB
ZEESBEDNRNEEFEIEmE
B o BB EMEHBERTE KT
ANEAREFERZBERT » A%
BRAEHMAFE 2 GURETNBA
.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

43. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued) 43. HEEREEAERBE(E)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) () HERBRER(E)
Interest rate risk (continued) FIEm g (&)
The Group's policy is to obtain the most favorable interest rates REE 7 B THHE N 0 E AN E &
available without increasing its foreign currency exposures. In RZBERTFRHEN2FE -
addition, the Group monitors the level of interest rate exposure and BESN - AR B B 5 | o e A HE UK
considers utilizing hedging instruments should the need arise. T RREREREZRFERAYHI
H o
Foreign currency risk SNE [l
The Group has transactional currency exposures mainly arising REBZRHGEREREBEREE
from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other than EEMNEINREEE Iz B
the units’ functional currency. Management conducted periodical IZEE - EEERTEEENE
review of exposures and requirements of various currencies, and B RFEEITE R  WHAR
used foreign currency forward contracts and cross currency swaps HINEEH R RN EM R HERE
to manage certain of its foreign currency exposures on significant éﬁ&i@ BRRBERGZAT
and recurring future commercial transactions. Hedging is only GNESELR o AE B R ETAEE
considered for firm commitments. fT;TFF
The Group's assets and liabilities are mainly denominated in Hong AEE7EERBEEFENET
Kong dollar, Renminbi and United States dollar. Currency risk is /\Eﬁg&%fﬁ%ﬁﬁ o BIZSNER
managed by partly financing non-Hong Kong dollar assets with S ERUINEER AT LREE
loans denominated in the relevant currencies. F IEDRE -
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of TRETRIE Lt E S g H T2
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB ZERT  AEBRBFERR KR
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s HAEM(EAESREERBERT
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair values of monetary F@E’] ''''''' A8 ) ARKERIEAR
assets and liabilities) and the Group's equity. B BE) L HRAE o
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease)
RMB rate before tax in equity
ARMBER RR B Al EE T fE=
®m, CED) B, Gh) #, i)
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
2018 —ZE-N\F
If the Hong Kong dollar fisi 78 7T 5 A R B 55
weakens against the RMB 5 3,303 265,468
If the Hong Kong dollar BT AR o
strengthens against the RMB (5) (3,303) (265,468)
2017 —E—
If the Hong Kong dollar fisi 78 7T 5 A R HE 8 55
weakens against the RMB 5 2,948 251,782
If the Hong Kong dollar B 7T 5 A R o
strengthens against the RMB (5) (2,948) (251,782)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

43.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

The accounts receivable and receivables arising from securities
and futures broking represent the Group’s major exposure to
the credit risk arising from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these financial
assets in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group's retail sales of jewellery are usually transacted on a cash
basis, via popular credit cards or through reputable and dispersed
department stores. The Group's credit sales to corporate clients
and wholesale customers are generally on credit terms within 60
days. The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk
with respect to its jewellery retail business as it has a large number
of diversified customers. For accounts receivable arising from the
wholesale of diamonds and precious metals, the Group trades
only with recognized and creditworthy third parties and bullion
banks. The Group’s receivables from margin clients arising from
the ordinary course of business of dealing in securities are secured
by the underlying pledged securities. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has its credit
control policy to minimize the credit risk. In addition, all receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and overdue balances
are followed up by senior management. Accordingly, the Group’s

exposure to bad debts is not significant.

43. HHEREERBERBEE)

(a)

MEEBEE ()

ERER
BURIRFNESRRERLEEZ
BYRERA T ARBEARZ HEHF T
BHOMELEZTEEERR &5
RSN GREMBARRRT U F
MBEEZREE AEEZKE
TEHEREURE  BBERE
BREBEREBRERAMZAER
RAETRS - ARERLEEP
M BERFETZEEHE KR
ANTHAZRERET - ARARE
TEXBERREDHES L
BEAGPZEERR - BL#EAR
BESBUBELZRKERN A%
BERERANRBEEZE=ER
SHETRS  AREREAEE
BHREFEBEELCRRARER
BRABBCERESEER - K
5 B 4 i 0 B M R R A 4 B AR 42
Bl WREEEEHBRARESE
EmEfg o w5 - A BIRAR S AR
BEHEER  DRSRERRE
BABRE - Ay AEEZHE
BBRYTERX -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

43.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 December 2018

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December 2018. The amounts presented are
gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

43. HHEREERBERBEE)
(a) MERBEERE)

EEmER (&)
R-F-N\F+—A=+—H4
REEERFRD GRS

TREBAEENEERE 5K
EEEARNEREERR  RIEE
BRAKRASRB HEAEGEME
£ BRTREZNAHER &
R-B-N\F+-_HA=1+—H2%F
RAOBEEDBAER - 2THFH

B EENREAE -
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECL
1218 A 785
EEFSE 2HEREEFR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FIRER E2RER EIMER b A% A%t
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTEx FEx FExT FEx FEx
Accounts receivable* JFEUER TR * - - - 1,001,041 1,001,041
Receivables arising from EHRLHERGEESE
securities and futures Z FEMBR TR
broking 610,817 407,524 - - 1,018,341
Financial assets included in ~ B&EHEMEEZ
other assets MBEE 197,508 = = = 197,508
Financial assets included BEEEMNRIA
in prepayments, other HoAth P AR 3R
receivables and other REMEEDN
assets B EE
— Normal** — IEg** 51,148 - - - 51,148
Cash held on behalf of REFEAES
clients
— Not yet past due - A 442,519 - - - 442,519
Cash and cash equivalents ~ B&FERES
— Not yet past due - AR EH 1,302,527 - - - 1,302,527
2,604,519 407,524 - 1,001,041 4,013,084

For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified approach
for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in
note 22 to the financial statements.

LA The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other

receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are
not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which mainly
comprise cash and cash equivalents, cash held on behalf of clients,
financial assets included in other assets, prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, and derivative financial instruments,
arises from default of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

* 7 £ B 8 AR L 77 S AT 05 e R
RERIE - DB REEDERD
BHRBR I BIREMEE 22

* o WEEEBRMIA  HiEKER
REEMEENTBEEY &8
HEYEARBRIASUBAE
ZEERR B IRHERE AR
mBIZERBEECERES
BERIER]

R-F—+FF+=-A=+—H4
BAEG

AEBEMPBKEE  TERER
e RERBE  REFEAES -
BEEHMEE BAFE  Hip
FUERREMEENTEEER
TEeRmT A HEERBELR
RSHFIEY  MEaRRIES
RHETAZERE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

43.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued) 43. HHEEREEAERBCR(H)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) HHEBREERE
Credit risk (continued) EEEE (&)
Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to REBAR 2 5 E Rk B KRS
credit risk arising from accounts receivable and receivables arising B RS A B A 2 RIR R
from securities and futures broking are disclosed in notes 22 and 23 B4 BHEGERBRZE—FE/L
to the financial statements. BRI B S P 22 )R 23 A
=
Liquidity risk REEZ AR
The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash AEBEFTAFRERERRS
equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance the REBABRBEHKE  BAE
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash SEEEREESRENRSRE
flows. The responsibility of the Group's treasury department is to K22  AEBUBHMZE
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility EREREARTEEEES K
through the use of banking facilities in order to meet its liquidity BMREBEL 2 BEUS T - DARS
requirements both in the short term and long term. The Group EHEHERROARBESTRK - K
maintains significant flexibility to respond to opportunities and SEFERBRREENSACEAR
events by ensuring that committed credit lines are available. All EEHEE  ERTHREEMAEE
debts of the Group as at 31 December 2018 would mature within BEEEN RZE—\F+_H
three years. =+—B AEBEMABREAN=
FREIH -
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end RBREBR  AEEZHBAER
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted BETRERFTRFIEAE 2 HHIE
payments, is as follows: R
2018 —E-N\F
No fixed
terms of 1 year or
repayment/ less but 5 years or
repayable 3 months over less but
on deﬂr;\l%rg orless 3 months over 1 year Undated Total
gy B =B Z=M@AML —FHE
REREE HEUT £ ERF EHIR &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THERT THERT T TERT THET
Accounts payable JEfERFR 108,618 37.399 - - - 146,017
Payables arising m%&ﬁﬂf"i?@é
from securities ~ EA4 Z R
and futures BRA
broking 434,074 22,936 - - - 457,010
Financial Tiabilities £ &£ £ fth i <
included in R e ST
other payables HE 2B
and accruals afE 86,661 201,127 - - - 287,788
Derivative financial {74 €@ T A
instruments - 12,309 - - 96 12,405
Term loans subject hzyi@i%ﬂmm&
to repayment TFHER
on demand
clause 232,256 - - - - 232,256
Other interest-  HAbat BIRTT
bearing bank g%
borrowings - 129,579 364,980 263,805 - 758,364
Bullion loans EcBfREE - 776,202 193,938 - - 970,140
861,609 1,179,552 558,918 263,805 96 2,863,980
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

43.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

43. HHEBREERBERBEE)

decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The fair values of these listed
equity investments are affected by market forces and other factors.
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from individual
equity investments classified as financial assets designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income/available-for-sale
investments (note 20) and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (note 25) as at 31 December 2018. The Group's
listed investments are listed on the Stock Exchange and are valued
at quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The
majority of the listed equity investments are held for non-trading
purposes.

(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) HFEEREZ(E)
Liquidity risk (continued) FEELER(E)
2017 —E—+F
No fixed
terms of 1 year or
repayment/ less but 5 years or
repayable 3 months over less but
on demand or less 3 months  over 1 year Undated Total
& E
BiEH /A =@A Z=@AMUE —FE
RERER sRAT E—F ZhEF EHR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET FET TAT FET FET
Accounts payable JEfTERZR 91,337 30,734 - - = 122,071
Payables arising  #F#H kHAELL
from securities  E4 2 JERT
and futures R
broking 516,652 57,396 - - - 574,048
Financial liabilities B & fEH &R
included in R ERT
other payables BBz #7#%
and accruals aE 95,433 169,462 - - - 264,895
Derivative financial #T4£ £ BT &
instruments - 2,927 845 - 622 4,394
Term loans subject % Z K82 3N
to repayment ZEHER
on demand
clause 93,176 - - - - 93,176
Other interest-  EAbaT BiRIT
bearing bank g%
borrowings - 138,093 336,084 462,459 - 936,636
Bullion loans E2EREE - 861,936 207,937 - - 1,069,873
796,598 1,260,548 544,866 462,459 622 3,065,093
Equity price risk BB AR
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities BN BREBIERNBE T AEE

ﬁlhfh%%?&mm BAEE
HEEEHM R AR - HE LT
B Ez A FEEXTSIER
HMEAEYE - AEER TN\
F+-A=+—BROEAKETEA
BATFEEFAEMEE RS
BEE,/ " #tH &8 E (K 5E20)
MEAFEEFABSNUBEE
(Bt 3E25) 2 @ BB 5 1% & & i &
ZRDERER - AEBZ ETHR
BB FT BT ASRE BARFTIR
MEE - APD LTRHITE T
BEEESHE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

43.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based on
their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period. For the
purpose of this analysis, the impact with respect to the financial
assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income/the available-for-sale equity investments is deemed to
be on the fair value reserve and investment revaluation reserve,

43. BBEREERERRE(E)

(a) HBEBERER)

R ERER (&)

TRETERRE AR 2 REER
B RAEEMESTE R AL
ARAZEMNHRNIZERTFEE
F10% B8 GRE - LA
ME - BEERSZEAFEE AR
tEEKRNOHBEE AIHHE
B REZBRTEDRIRG QY
AVEERERREBHHRER

respectively.

By 88
wE

Carrying Increase/
amount decrease Increase/
of equity in profit decrease
investments before tax in equity
B7REZ BRBi AT A R,/
BREE 2,/ wd L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TER THER
2018 —E-N\F
Investments listed in Hong Kong: REBLEMZEBE :
Financial assets designated at fair EEREATEEFA
value through other comprehensive HL At 2 T R e ) B 7
income BE 807,104 - 80,710
Held-for-trading RKIFEE 13,595 1,360 =
2017 ZE—tF
Investments listed in Hong Kong: REALMZEE :
Available-for-sale A E 854,120 - 85,412
Held-for-trading RHEEE 17,073 1,707 =
Commodity price risk D ERER

The Group is engaged in the sale of jewellery including bullion
products. The bullion market is influenced by global as well as
regional supply and demand conditions. A significant decline
in prices of bullion could adversely affect the Group's financial
performance. In order to reduce the commodity price risk, the
Group uses bullion loans as well as derivative financial instruments,
such as bullion contracts, to reduce its exposure to fluctuation in
the bullion prices on bullion inventories. The bullion price exposures
are monitored by management.

For the bullion loans and bullion contracts, assuming that the
amount outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year, a 10% increase/decrease in
market prices of bullion at 31 December 2018 and 2017 would
have decreased/increased the Group's profit before tax by
HK$144,826,000 and HK$145,191,000, respectively. The sensitivity
to the market prices of bullion used is considered reasonable, with
all other variables held constant and before any impact on tax. This
information has not taken into account potential financial impact
on other financial statement line items.

AEBENEHERE  BEESE
Eme- BEeBMHXERANMLE
HEERBERATE - B RERAK
AT RES AN S B 2 BA TS AR A B A A
TE - BREFmERER A%
EERECBEEURESBEN
ENEemIA  UREESEE
BEDHELBT S 2 ABALRE -
EEREERESBERZABRA

=

HECBEERESBAOMmE
RN BRERARERZ2E BTN
BERFEFEER E2BTMER
—E-NER-T—+E+=A
=T—BEMNRD10% 0 EH
B A/ # INAK & B F Bi AT F
144,826,000 7T 2 145,191,000
BT A EME S G HTE

FARMRERERZEBRT @ &
SERRHMAESBME B
ENBAE - WENTEZEHE
B TEIRETHE 2 BEM ST E

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESEERAERRA

7

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
2018 F R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

43.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(b) Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain a healthy capital ratio in order to support its business and

to enhance shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions and business strategies.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, raise and repay debts or issue
new shares. The Group is required to comply with certain externally
imposed capital requirements set out in certain of its banking
facility agreements. Additionally, certain subsidiaries engaged in
securities and futures broking, which are regulated entities under
the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC"), and
a subsidiary which is a member of the CGSE, are required to comply
with respective minimum capital requirements imposed by the SFC
and the CGSE. During the two years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017, these subsidiaries complied with respective minimum capital
requirements imposed by the SFC and the CGSE. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital

during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total
borrowings to total equity. Total borrowings include interest-
bearing bank borrowings, interest-bearing bank borrowings arising
from securities and futures broking and bullion loans. Total equity
comprises all components of equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company. The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio
at a reasonable level. The gearing ratios at the end of the reporting

periods were as follows:

Total borrowings BEE
Total equity B
Gearing ratio BARGREE

43. HHEREERBERBEE)

(b)

BXER

AEEEAER 2 T ZERRRE
AEBERFERERB 2N Lk
HREZEAL X U EER
REMAR 2 EE

AEBEREBER AR EERE 2 E
HERHEAZLE  WHEEHH
o BB ABREARER  AE
B AEARABIRN 2R E -
MREEEBRETHR - A5E
BETEETROIBERZNEZ
ETFIMEBARRTE o thoh - HFH
BRARNREERARPERLEBT
AEBEARMEERERZES
([EFEe s HEERE u
k—ZHBARASBEXEFH
28 ZEVRAETEEERSE
REZBSLEHRZEBREEARNR
Fo-RBE_Z—\FR_ZT—+
F+-A=+—BIMEFE - %
EMBRARETEESRGBEE
5% BB IRRENET &
E_E-\ER-_ZE—+&F+_H
Zt-BLHEE AEEEEE
AZBE BRSERFTEELE
@j o

ﬁtl:,ﬁfé )ﬁ*?‘ §23S°ﬁ@1a 4
B BRTER BARPEL
%EEEZE#%\%E?TEM BT

B BERDEADAEREAA
[EIERER IR - AEEZH
RABERBBL RERHESTEK
T RBERRZERBRELEN
T

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$°000
TR TET
1,935,862 2,072,076
10,418,937 10,125,075
18.6% 20.5%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

44. Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The following tables set out details of financial instruments subject to

offsetting at the end of the reporting periods.

44. EHEUMBEERUBEE

CETE

2018

TREIRBERRZEHNRZ SR T

Gross amounts
of recognized

Net amounts of

financial ~ financial assets
liabilities presented Related amounts
set off in the in the not set off in the consolidated
consolidated consolidated statement of financial position
Gross amounts statement statement AERGEUBRRARTHEEEBLE
of recognized of financial of financial Financial ~ Cash collateral
financial assets position position instruments pledged Net amount
RERE RS W&
iR HRRP
2R E#EvERR SR EH 2HEHA
HBEEAE BIp ek EERR $RIE REHAR BR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
Assets EE
Accounts receivable YRR 1,001,338 (297) 1,001,041 - = 1,001,041
Receivables arising from % & Hi & &40
securities and futures &4 2 el
broking 5N 1,056,745 (38,404) 1,018,341 - - 1,018,341
2,058,083 (38,701) 2,019,382 - - 2,019,382
Gross amounts Net amounts
of recognized of financial
financial liabilities
assets set presented Related amounts
off in the in the not set off in the consolidated
Gross amounts consolidated consolidated statement of financial position
of recognized statement statement KERGAMERRRPEEZEBELE
financial of financial of financial Financial ~ Cash collateral
liabilities position position instruments pledged Net amount
RERREH WEREHE
DL VL
BER B2 BER XA BEA
g AR Et IBEEER SR $RIA REERR et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TARL TR TR TR TR
Liabilities af
Accounts payable JEREER 146,314 (297) 146,017 - - 146,017
Payables arising from  EHR LML
securities and futures B4 2 JEf
broking R 495,414 (38,404) 457,010 - - 457,010
641,728 (38,701) 603,027 - - 603,027
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MR E M

44. Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued) 44. EHERNBEERMBEE(E)
2017

Gross amounts
of recognized ~ Net amounts of
financial financial assets

liabilities set presented Related amounts
off in the in the not set off in the consolidated
consolidated consolidated statement of financial position
Gross amounts statement statement  RBERGAIBRAEPEE BHEE
of recognized of financial of financial Financial Cash collateral
financial assets position position instruments pledged Net amount
R8T i
HRKF HRKS
BER BHzBRER 2R G BER
R EERS ke ReEs BERE SRIE BeHAm et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TATL TEL THEL THEL THEL
Assets EE
Accounts receivable JEUERR 922,997 (2,909) 920,088 - - 920,088
Receivables arising from &% R H &4
securities and futures  E4 2 el
broking 58 1,077,890 (92,984) 984,906 = - 984,906
2,000,887 (95,893) 1,904,994 - - 1,904,994
Gross amounts Net amounts
of recognized of financial
financial liabilities
assets set presented Related amounts
off in the in the not set off in the consolidated
Gross amounts consolidated consolidated statement of financial position
of recognized statement statement  RAERGARBMARTEH BELE
financial of financial of financial Financial Cash collateral
liabilities position position instruments pledged Net amount
RERE 8% R B
HREKS AR
BH#R i BER ERZHB BEA
HaGESE HBEESR AfERE £RIE BeHAR et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL THEL THEL TAL TAL
Liabilities =t
Accounts payable R 124,980 (2,909) 122,071 - = 122,071
Payables arising from  EHRHELL
securities and futures B4 2 fEft
broking Bt 667,032 (92,984) 574,048 - - 574,048
792,012 (95,893) 696,119 - - 696,119
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

45.

Statement of Financial Position of the Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Interests in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals
Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

Net assets

EQUITY
Issued capital
Reserves (note)

Total equity

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Director

k821
g%

FRBEE
N IFEYNGI P 3

RBEE
B FE
RehERHAS

BRBEE

REBRE
Hith R R R IA R
FERBIE

BRBRE
REBEEFE
BERE
i

B #TBA
ELAGED)

Y F

Winston CHOW Wun Sing

Director

45. ERLQTMBEMRRE

BEARRANAHRERRZHBERRER L

BHMT
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fax FET
3,134,526 3,108,054
324 291
1,728 1,580
2,052 1,871
7393 7,048
139 29
7,532 7,077
(5,480) (5,206)
3,129,046 3,102,848
169,359 169,230
2,959,687 2,933,618
3,129,046 3,102,848
R
B
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

45.

Statement of Financial Position of the Company (continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

At 1 January 2017

Profit and total
comprehensive income
for the year

Equity-settled share option
arrangements

Dividends declared and paid
during the year

At 31 December 2017
and 1 January 2018

Profit and total
comprehensive income
for the year

Issue of shares upon
exercise of share options

Equity-settled share option
arrangements

Transfer of share option
reserve upon the
forfeiture of share options

Dividends declared and paid
during the year

At 31 December 2018

The Company’s contributed surplus arose in 1992 as a result of the
Group's reorganization and represents the difference between the nominal
value of the Company’s shares allocated under the reorganization scheme
and the then consolidated net asset value of the acquired subsidiaries.

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the contributed surplus is

RZZE—+F
—A—H

FREFREE
WzshasE

BaEEZ
BhEz

FRERK
BNBS

PR T By
BIRM

BREEL
BhoEz

TR W PR By
BRBRERE

FREREEA
BE

45, ERQTHHEMRAE(E)

Bz
ARAIFEBZBENT
Share
Share option Contributed Retained
premium reserve surplus profits Total
ROEE  BREMRE PN REEF &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FTEx FEx FTERT THEx
1,051,502 4,570 975,582 819,627 2,851,281
- - - 371,137 371,137
— 9,045 — — 9,045
= = = (297,845) (297,845)
1,051,502 13,615 975,582 892,919 2,933,618
- = - 401,595 401,595
8,854 (1,329) - - 7,525
= 3,086 = = 3,086
- (121) - 121 =
- - - (386,137) (386,137)
1,060,356 15,251 975,582 908,498 2,959,687

distributable to shareholders under certain circumstances.

ARAR—NN_FEEZHABEHKE
AEEER  DHREEAEFERE AR
AR AERRKBHRBEARER 2 &S
BEMEZZHE -

BEERE-AN\—FLRE EETH

AT AR DR TBR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

46.

Particulars of Subsidiaries

Information about subsidiaries is as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

46.

Issued ordinary

o) PN

MEARZEMIT :

Percentage
of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
Ry EBRIZTERE AR frdh
8 B ESiE ERTES REB DL TEEYK
Direct Indirect
HE 4
Acclaim Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$600,000 - 100  Investment holding
il ND RBRAREE 600,000 %71 REZER
Chow Sang Sang Bullion Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100  Investment holding
Dealers Limited
BAEESHERDA & 5,000,000 7T REZR
Chow Sang Sang (China) People’s Republic of ~ HK$1,500,000,000 - 100 Sale of jewellery
Company Limited* China/Mainland China
BEE(FR)EEERQF * REARAME, 1,500,000,000 87T REHE
B AR
Chow Sang Sang Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100 Dormant
Commodities Limited
BAEEERERAR & 5,000,000 7T R
Chow Sang Sang Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Sale of corporate
Corporate Gift Limited gift products
BEECEERERAA B 1,000,000 % 7T PEERHE
Chow Sang Sang Diamond People’s Republic of RMB10,000,000 - 100  Diamond polishing
(Guangdong) Co., Ltd.*" China/Mainland China
FEEER(BR)BRAR REEARLRME, 10,000,000 AR EOITE
B A RE
Chow Sang Sang Diamond People’s Republic of US$10,000,000 - 100 Diamond trading
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.*" China/Mainland China
FEEEA( LB ARAR Y hEARKAE 10,000,000 % 7T EBREE
B AR
Chow Sang Sang Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 - 100 Group financing
[EEE M EER AR B 15,000,000 % 7T SERE
Chow Sang Sang Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100 Futures broking
BAEEHEERAF BB 5,000,000 7T, Mg
Chow Sang Sang Holdings (BVI) British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
Limited
BAEEEE(REERARES) REERRES 50,000 % 7T REER
BRAT
Chow Sang Sang Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$250 - 100  Investment holding
BAEEEEERAR & 250 7T REZER

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

46.

Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

46.

Issued ordinary

)= PN

AR R ()

Percentage

of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
i,/ EBRIZERE NG g ]
8 V- 3:u EITES RERSL TEXH
Direct Indirect
HE i
Chow Sang Sang International Hong Kong/ HK$2 - 100  Property investment
(Shunde) Limited Mainland China
[ & A BIRR (B2 ) B IR A A) B/ EARE 28T MERE
Chow Sang Sang Investments Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 - 100  Investment holding
Limited
BAEEREERAF BB 2,500,000 7T REZER
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Dormant
(China) Co. Ltd.
BEEKRE ST (HB)ARAF REERRES 13670 Tmex
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of
(China) Limited marketing services
and
investment holding
BEERE(PE)ARAH e 187 REMEHERRY
RIREZR
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
Company Limited retail of jewellery
BEEHRBESTARAA B 30,000,000 87T KERERTE
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic of HK$275,307,500 - 100 Manufacture and
(Foshan) Co., Ltd.*" China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
FEERE (Bl BRAR REARLEMBE, 275,307,500 RESLERHEE
B
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Pte Ltd Singapore SG$2 - 100 Dormant
CApIE 2T Tmex
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic of RMB20,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
(Qingdao) Co., Ltd.*" China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
BEERBE(FE)ERARY REARLFE, 20,000,000 AR RERERHE
LN
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic of HK$24,400,000 - 100 Manufacture and
(Shaanxi) Co., Ltd.*" China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
BEERE21T(RAE)BERAR *" hEARKNE,/ 24,400,000 7T RESERHEE
BB
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery British Virgin Islands/ US$50,000 - 100 Sale of jewellery
(Taiwan) Limited Taiwan
BEEHRBEITROD AR AR RBERAHE 28 50,000 % 7T REHE

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEERBEBEERAERADA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

46.

Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

46.

Issued ordinary

B RFE ()

Percentage
of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
i,/ EBRIZERE N g ]
8 IV 3: ERTES BRER DL TEXH
Direct Indirect
HE )
Chow Sang Sang Manufacturing British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100  Investment holding
International Limited
[BE A E R A IR 2 A REERRES 17T AR
Chow Sang Sang Nominees Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Provision of
nominee services
BAEEREABRRF BB 1,000,000 87 RERE ARG
Chow Sang Sang Property Netherlands Antilles/ US$30,000 - 100  Property investment
Holdings N.V. Hong Kong
HRRHOFE BB 30,000% 7T MERE
Chow Sang Sang Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100  Property investment
AEEEFEBRAR BB 10,000,000 % 7T MERE
Chow Sang Sang Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100 Securities broking
BAEEESERAT & 10,000,000 #7T B
Emphasis Jewellery Company Macau MOP25,000 - 100 Retail of jewellery
Limited
HERAREERAT BRI 25,000)2F7T KEZTE
Foshan Shunde Jinpeng Jewelry People’s Republic of RMB1,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
Company Limited*" China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
BILTIEER S EKE S hEARKAME, 1,000,000 TARE RESBERHE
BREEAR B KR
Fullink Developments Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Dormant
REERRES 17T TEEE
Hong Kong Gemological Research Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Gemological
and Authentication Centre research and
Company Limited® authentication
BEREAMAREEFLERAR" & 100,000 % 7T BEAOMERETE
Tsin Chuk Kam Manufactory Ltd. British Virgin Islands/ US$100,000 - 100 Processing of
Mainland China jewellery
TREJUEMARRDA EBAERRES/ 100,000 % T KEMT
B
World Commercial Sales Company Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 - 100 Wholesale of
Limited precious metals
R EITERAF] BB 2,500,000 % 7T ExBitE
338.Net Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Dormant
e 2787 TEax
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

46.

47.

Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued) 46.

* These companies were registered as wholly-foreign-invested enterprises under the
law of the People’s Republic of China

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst &
Young global network

# Incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2017

Approval of the Financial Statements 47.

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the
Board of Directors on 28 March 2019.

G PSS )
* BEARDREREARKNEERER
ZROIERECE

! RBLXEREBRT - LK EIEH
RERBROBBRERAES—FKE

REEZ

' ORMEECER—Ft-ASH-RLEE
RIS

M HE 2

ARBHREN_FT-NF=A-T/\BLK
ERQHERRETE -
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD
As at 31 December 2018

Particulars of major properties held by the Group are as follows:

P s

RZE-N\F+=A=+—H

AEERAOIBRYEFENAT

Gross Lease
Description Lot Number Use Floor Area Type Term
BE 1 B SR B A% BEEE BE HE
(Sq. ft. approx.)
(REFEFR)
Hong Kong
e
# 229 Nathan Road, Kowloon K.I.L. 6357 Rental/own use  31,225*% Commercial Short
NERBE-_ N5 2E b=y [SES b
* G/F & M/F, 326-328 Castle Peak Road, N.K.I.L. 2507 & Rental/own use  2,790* Commercial Medium
Kowloon 2177
NEBSLE=Z—_R"E="/\Sn N EHE ey EES H
* G/F & 1/F, 99-101 Wuhu Street, Hunghom, H.H.I.L. 472, 471 & Own use 2,345* Commercial Medium
Kowloon 447 s A
NEAWERENLTNLZE SR TE—2 BHA % H
* Roof, G/F & 1/F, 432 Prince Edward Road N.K.I.L. 2266 R.P. Rental/own use 1,788* Commercial Medium
West, Kowloon
NEAFERN="3T  —BEXE e g=p= [EES H
Flat A, 11/F and Roof, 199 Nam Cheong N.K.I.L. 1230 Rental 551* Residential Medium
Street, Kowloon s.ARP. &
EEEH-NNR T EBAKERS 5.B.ss.2 A F= H
2/F, Flats A & B, 3/F, 4/F, 5/F & Flat A, 6/F, K.I.L. 6642 Rental/own use 10,836* Commercial Short
231 Nathan Road, Kowloon
NERIE-_=—%_"1& ZBAKRBE . e =)z [GES 5!
mig - AERSNEARE
Units A1, A2, A3, A4, A6, A8, A11, A13, N.K.I.L. 35155 C, Own use 38,440 Industrial Medium
1/F, Unit A6, 2/F, Unit A4, 8/F & Unit A3, D&F
10/F, Block A, 489-491 Castle Peak Road,
Kowloon
BELBOANZENA—RABE—EA BH I¥% H

A2 A3 A4 A6 A8 A1l AI3E
TREAE NEMERTIEAIE
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD

As at 31 December 2018

s/ ES=1
RZZE-N\F+-HA=+—H

Gross Lease
Description Lot Number Use Floor Area Type Term
BE R A% BEEE EE R
(Sq. ft. approx.)
(REFHR)
Hong Kong
B
Car Ports No. 7 & 22 on G/F, Car Ports No. ~ K.L.L. 10223 Rental/own use ~ N/A Car park Medium
26 & 57 in Basement, Ho On Mansion,
107-109 Austin Road, Kowloon
NEFATAE-StE-TNRFLEMT Y g=pii TEA B H
B R+ TR RIEEN TR
I+
Car Parking Space No. B162 in Basement, R.P. of K.I.L. 4208  Rental N/A Car park Long
Balwin Court, 154-164 Argyle Street,
Kowloon
NEGEEH-RANE - NREZRHE atic} TER By &
B162 SR&fi
* G/F-3/F, 691-693 Nathan Road, Kowloon K.I.L. 2444 s.AR.P. Rental/own use  9,890* Commercial Medium
& 2444 R.P.
NERHEAN-—EANZRTE=E B/ 8A [EES H
* 85 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long, Lot No. 3640 in Own use 3,255 Commercial Medium
New Territories D.D. 120
FRTHABLRENT R 21E BA [EE3 s
* Shop B, G/F, 428-430 Prince Edward Road N.K.I.L. 2267 R.P. Own use 1,078* Commercial Medium
West, Kowloon & 2268 R.P.
EATEAN-NZN=2%tTB4H B8R [GES F
* Shop B, G/F, 70-78 Kwong Fuk Road, Tai Po Town Lot Own use 2,089* Commercial Medium
Tai Po, New Territories No. 28
MARNBEREC T2t T/\GHTBE BH [EES e
Shop No. 305, G/F, Lok Hin Terrace, Chai Wan Inland Rental 175* Commercial Medium
350 Chai Wan Road, Hong Kong Lot No. 149
BERREE=NTFET M T =20%H 8 [EE3 e
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD

As at 31 December 2018

Description

fES

Lot Number

i ERRE

Use

ke

P s

RZE-N\F+=A=+—H

Gross
Floor Area

BEME

Type
B

Lease
Term

A

Mainland China
KB

Unit 501, Block 4, Meile Village, Rongshan
Community Association, Ronggui Street
Representative Office, Shunde District,
Foshan City, Guangdong Province

BREGLUTIREES EHBREESIL
BEGRENIELT -

100100-047

Own use

aA

(Sq. ft. approx.)
(REFAR)

1,010

Residential

Medium

East of Guangzhu Highway, Licun
Management Zone, Licun District,
Lunjiao Town, Shunde District,
Foshan City, Guangdong Province

BREGLUTIRERHIEZNEER
BETRER SR A

154077-014

Rental

i

123,700

Industrial/
commercial

I%/m%

Medium

" Unit No. 1-1, Fulihua Mansion, No. 150
Qinghui Road, Daliang Town, Shunde
District, Foshan City, Guangdong Province

BREAFHLTIEERKREEER - DTSR
EEREAE-SZ—

134092-003

Own use

aA

1,906

Commercial

Ax

Medium

16/F, Block B, R&F Yingtai Plaza, Section 2,
No. 100 Huangpu Avenue West,
Tianhe District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province
BREBMTRIREHAEA-STTHR_R
ENBRESB B+NE

2310-7-50

Own use

=)

23,686

Commercial

Ax

Medium

Car Parking Space Nos. 200 and 201,
2nd Basement, R&F Yingtai Plaza,
Section 2, No.100 Huangpu Avenue West,
Tianhe District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province
BREBMMAIREFNEA-—STTHR_R
ENBFESE_E_TTN_THEHEM

2310-7-50

Own use

Sk

N/A

il

Car park

By

Medium

Unit Nos. 1601-1602, 16/F, Block B,
Vanmetropolis, No.1 Tangyan Road, High-
tech District, Xian City, Shaanxi Province

BRE & 78 % T oo 7 2 5 RE B — 5% FEE R R R 03

BEtAE- AT E-AT_E

10501060004-17

Own use

EH

5,025

Commercial

[GES

Medium
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD
As at 31 December 2018

P s

RZE-N\F+=A=+—H

Gross Lease
Description Lot Number Use Floor Area Type Term
BE iR Jic}eS BEEE BE )
(Sq. ft. approx.)
(REFAR)
Mainland China
E KR
Car Parking Space No. D010, 1st Basement ~ 10501060004-17 Own use N/A Car park Medium
and Car Parking Space No. F061,
2nd Basement, Vanmetropolis,
No.1 Tangyan Road, High-tech District,
Xian City, Shaanxi Province
BRPGE PE 22 T =0 T . o5 HLE B — 7% B B PR 43 8H A B M
WHF—EEEDET—FREL T
—EEBEFRTAHREN
No. 3 Xinxi 4th Road North, Lunjiao Town, 164084-189 Own use 583,225 Industrial Medium
Shunde District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province
BERAE LT IEEE mEEN BN =5 g/ I¥% i
Taiwan
EY |
Units 1-2, 7/F, No. 21, Sec. 6, Zhongxiao E.  0568-0000 Own use 6,847 Commercial Freehold
Rd., Nangang Dist., Taipei, Taiwan, R.O.C.
FEREZESITEARLZRERR =l EES KAENE
—tRtE-E B
Car Parking Space Nos. 132 and 133 in 0568-0000 Own use N/A Car park Freehold
B5, No. 21, Sec. 6, Zhongxiao E. Rd.,
Nangang Dist., Taipei, Taiwan, R.0.C.
FEREZESTEARLZRERR g/ AR B KAKERE

Tt TRAE—=_—R—==9EHE

Location of branches
DITHE

* Saleable area
AEEEE
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INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

Financial Calendar

Announcement of 2018 interim results:

2018 interim dividend payment:

Announcement of 2018 annual results:

Closure of register of members for
annual general meeting:

Annual general meeting:

Closure of register of members for
final dividend:

2018 final dividend payment:

Share Information

Stock code on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited:

Board lot size:

Bermuda Principal Share Registrar

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

The Belvedere Building
69 Pitts Bay Road
Pembroke HM 08
Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Telephone:  +852 2980-1333
Facsimile: +852 2810-8185

27 August 2018

21 September 2018

28 March 2019

28 May to 31 May 2019
(both days inclusive)

31 May 2019
6 June to 11 June 2019

(both days inclusive)

18 June 2019

116

1,000 shares

Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Investor Relations

Corporate Affairs Department
27/F, 9 Wing Hong Street

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone:  +852 2991-0366
Facsimile: +852 2730-9683
Email: ir@chowsangsang.com

BRERE

g 4= 5

N ZE—N\F —E2-NFNAZT+H
HERELE -

RE_T—N\F “E-N\FNLA=-1+—H
HERR S

AT )\F —E-AFE=A=1+\H
PEEE

FERERNBF —EZ-AFRAZ-TN\H
B FE ZRA=1—H
(BHRBFAE): (BEEEMK)

BREBAFAD : “E-hFERA=1+—H

TERERHBE —T—AFRANAE
EiLFE EZXAT—H
(REIRS) : (BEEEMX)

RE_T—N\F “E-AFNBTN\E
KRS

B 12 & $

REBEAERZIMBER 116
NEZBHRER

BFEEEN 1,000 A%
BRERNBEERTEE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HM 08

Bermuda

BERRODBFELIR
BEEERARAT
BEERABR-N\=5

EMHRLZ T

B 0 +852 2980-1333

85 : +8522810-8185

BEH - is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

REERZ

PEREBH

BEENERDE
KEENR - T &

B& 0 +852 2991-0366

{88 :  +852 2730-9683
BEH :  ir@chowsangsang.com
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